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BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED
urns RGN, 55 600 600 555
g LEVEL 23, 56 PITT STREET
’ p SYDNEY NSW 2000

03 S GPQ BOX 543
STy SYDNEY NSW 2001
&is 7. 2 AUSTRALIA _
TEL: NATIONAL (02) 8258 1371
TEL: INT'L +61 2 9259 1371
FAX: (02) 9247 3272

FACSIMILE
To: OFFICE OF INTERNATIONAL CORPORATE FINANCE
Company: SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, U.S.A. fﬁ\ /Q S
Facsimile No: 0011 1 202 942 9624
From: PHILIP WEST - Special Counsel ©~“3© -GB
Date: . 16 September 2003 <
Subject ' 12g3-2(b) Exemption Number: 82-1565
No of Pages: 100 pages (including cover sheet)

Burns Philp Financial Year 2003 Annual Report

We attach Current Information Report. Please note that the Burns, Philp & Company Limited
Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2003 which is attached to the Current Information
Report is the same as that released to the Australian Stock Exchange on Friday, 12 September
2003.

Yours sincerely

2

PHILIP WEST
Special Counsel

Att.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

The information contained in this facsimile is intended for the namcd recipients only. It may contain privileged and/or confidential
information, If you arc not an intended recipicnt, you must not copy, distribute, take any action or rcliance on it, or disclose any details
of the facsimile to any other person, {irm or corporation, If you have received this facsimile in crror, please notify us immediately by u
reverse charge telephonc call 1o +61 (2) 9227 9333 and retumn the eriginal 1o us by mail.

INCORPORATED IN NEW SOUTH WALES AUSTRALIA IN 1883
PRINCIPAL COMPANY OF THE BURNS PHILP GROUP OF COMPANIES
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REGARDING ANNUAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003



17/09 '03 WED 07:39 FAX 61 2 9247 3272 BPC LTD. [doo3

BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED
urns ABN 85 000 000 356
P -' LEVEL 23, 56 PITT STREET
h, p SYDNEY NSW 2000
GPO BOX 543

SYDNEY NSW 2001
AUSTRALIA

TEL: NATIONAL (02) 9259 1111

TEL: INT'L +61 (2) 8258 1111
FAX: (02) 2247 3272

12 September 2003

Mr. Graham Gates
Announcements Officer

Australian Stock Exchange Limited
Exchange Centre

20 Bridge Street

SYDNEY NSW 2000

Dear Mr Gates

Burns Philp Financial Year 2003 Annual Report

in accordance with Listing Rule 4.5, | enclose for lodgement a copy of the Burns Philp
2003 Annual Report (incorporating the Directors’ Report and the Financial Report and
Independent Audit Report dated 12 September 2003), as prepared far printing.

| note by such lodgement the company obtains relief frorn dual lodgement of financial
statements granted by ASIC Practice Note 61.

Yours sincerely

s

HELEN GOLDING
Company Secretary

Encl.

INCORPORATED IN NEW SOUTH WALES AUSTRAL(A [N 1883
PRINCIPAL COMPANY OF THE BURNS PHILP GROUP OF COMPANIES
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Burns, Philp & Company Limited
ACN 000 000 359

Registered Office

Level 23

56 Pitt Street

Sydney NSW 2000

Australia

Telephone; (02) 9258 1111

Facsimile: (02) 9247 3272

Email: shareholder.enguiries@burnsphilp.com
Website:  www,burnsphilp.com

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
Thomas J Degnan

Company Secretaries
Ms Helen Golding
Mr Philip West

Auditors
KPMG

Stock Exchange Listings

Ordinary Shares:

Australian Stock Exchange Limited, Sydney
(Home Exchange)

New Zealand Exchange Limited

CP Shares:
Australian Stock Exchange Limited, Sydney

New Zealand Capital Notes:
New Zealand Exchange Limited

Annual Geperal Meeting

5 November 2003 at 10.30 am
Wesley Theatre

Lower Ground Floor

Wesley Conference Centre
220 Pitt Street

Sydney NSW 2000

Australia

BPC LTD.

Share Registry

Ordinary Shares and CP Shares:

ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited

Level 8

580 George Street

Sydney NSW 2000

{Locked Bag A14

Sydney South NSW 1235)

Australia

Telephone: (02) 8280 7127

Facsimile; (02) 9287 0303

Email; registrars@asxperpetusl.com.au
Website:  www.asxperpetual.com,au

Location of other Registries

‘American Depositary Receipts:

JPMorgan Chase Bank
JPMorgan Service Center
PO Box 43013

Providence, Rl 02840-3013

USA

Telephone: +1(781) 575 4328
US Domestic Toll Free; (800) 920 1135
Facsimile: +1(781) 575 4088
Email: adr@jpmorgan.com

New Zealand Capital Notes:
Computershare Investor Services Limited
Level 2

159 Hurstmere Road

Takapuna, Auckland

(Private Bag 92-118

Auckland)

New Zealand

Telephone: +64 9 488 8700

Facsimile: +64 9 488 8787

Email; enquiry@computershare.co.nz
Website:  www.computershare.co.nz

Burns, Philp & Company Limited, incorporated and domiciled in Australia, is & public company limited by shares.
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Chairman’s Report

| arm pleased to repart another year of significant growth and improved performance at Burns Philp.

The Group's earnings showed a modest improvement, when measured on a censistent basis as
against last year.

We completed significant restructuring initiatives, in particular, divesting the Terminals and Vinegar businesses,

acquiring Fleischmann Latin America and Goodman Fielder Limited, refinancing our debt and raising new
equity through the exercise of the 2003 Options.

The businesses acquired are consistent with our stated objectives to grow our core business. They all have
strong brand and market positions. Typically our brands hold the number cne or two positions in the markets

where we operate. This coupled with our geographic diversity strengthens our ability ta generate strang
reliable cash flows.

Looking forward our intention is to continue to follow the same strategies, put simply, to focus on the
continuous improverment of our existing businesses via cost reduction strategies, targeted capital investment,
and capacity expansion in growing markets coupled with appropriste strategi¢ acquisitions,

On behalf of the Directors and shareholders | thank all employees for their continuing dedication and
hard work.

The Group's core businesses are performing well and this coupled with the improved balance sheet glves
the board confidence in the Group's abmty to continue to grow its business.

Alan McGregor AO
Chairman

BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

doo7
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Managing Director’s Review of Operations

Burns, Philp & Company Limited (“Cormnpany”) is an Australian based food company involved in the production
and distribution of food ingredients and consumer branded food products. The year ending 30 June 2003 saw the

Company complete a number of initiatives that led to a significant increase in the scale of the Group and the further
enhancement of the Group’s portfolic of food businesses.

In summary, these initiatives comprised:

= the completion of the acquisition from Kraft Foods and the integration of the Fleischmann yeast and bakery
ingredients business in Latin America;

* the successful takeover of Goodman Fielder Limited, an Australian listed consumer branded foods company; and

the completion of the previously announced sale of the terminals and bulk storage business in Australia and the
industrial vinegar business in North America.

Whilst these strategic initiatives were being implemented, the operations of the Group continued to perform
satisfactorily during the period and the integration of both Fleischmann in Latin America and Goodman Fielder
is largely complete.

Financial Highlights

30 June 2003 30 june 2002
Year ended _ " A% million A$ million
Revenue from sale of goods and rendering of services ] 1,887.2 1,322.7
Adjusted EBITDA of continuing businesses at constant foreign currency
exchange rates before individually significant items 242.5 2351
impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates - 30.4
Goedman Fielder 84.0 -
Terminals 3.2 14.1
Vinegar 5.6 14.9
Adjusted EBITDA , 335.3 254.5
Individually significant items
Gain on sale of Terminals 40.7 -
Gain ¢n sale of Vinegar 10.9 -
Gain on sale of South Yarra property 6.6 -
Unrealised foreign currency gain 139.1 -
Goodman Fielder restructuring costs (48.7) -
Fleischmanm's Latin America restructuring costs (3.3) -
Deferred borrowing costs expensed (32.6) -
Provision for amounts dug from Kmart USA - (10.1)
Provision for Ozkland closure costs - (25.1)
Add back amortisation of prepaid slotting 23.4 325
EBITDAW 471.4 291.8
Depreciation (73.2) (60,6}
Amortisation of intangibles (35.1) (11.9)
Amortisation of prepaid slotting (23.4) (32.5)
EBIT 339.7 186.8
Net Interest » (156.8) (65.9)
Income Tax
Before recognition of individually significant items (13.0) (19.3)
Individually significant income tax benefit a4 47.9
Total income tax (expense)/benefit (8.6) 286
Outside Equity interests (4.3) (3.3)
Net profit attributable to Burns, Philp & Company Limited shareholders 170.0 146.2

(1) EBITDA represents net profit attributable to Butns, Philp & Company Limited shareholdars before related income tax, net interest expense, depreciation and
amontisation and qutside equity lnlerests. Adjusted EBITDA is EBITDA adjusted tor individually significant items and amortisation of prepaid slotting allowance.

2003 ANNUAL REPORT n
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Managing Director’'s Review of Operations (continued)

The profitability of the existing businesses for the period
was marginally ahead of the previous year an a constant
exchange rate basis. The Group's earnings include part
year contributions for Fleischmann Latin America and
Goodman Fielder from their date of acquisition and the
discontinued Vinegar and Terminals businasses until
their disposal.

The reported Australian dollar earnings of the Group
can be significantly influenced by movemants in foreign
currency exchange rates. Due to the Group’s off-shore
operations, movements in foreign exchange rates car
have a material impact on the reported profit. This, of
course, is non cash and simply reflects the “translation”
of the profits earned in a foreign subsidiary into
Australian doliars for reporting purposes.

By way of example, at the end of last financial year,

30 June 2002, the éxchange rate between US$:AS was
0.56. At the end of this financial year, 30 June 2003, it
was at 0.667. Assuming steady earnings in our Group’s
US subsidiaries, US$1,000 of earnings for the year
ended June 2002 would have translated to a reported
profit of A$1,786. By contrast, that same US$1,000
worth of earnings for the year ended June 2003 would
translate to a reported profit of A$1,500. No advarse
change in the performance of the business, simply a
relative strengthening in the Australian dollar resuiting
in a different translation rate.

The Group's balance sheet changed significantly during
the period. Shareholders' funds increased from A$480
millian to A$732 million. Factors contributing to this
increase included the impact from foreign currency
movements, retained earnings and additional equity

of A$195.6 million received during the year from the
exercise of options to subscribe for ordinary shares in
Burns Philp. These were five year options issued in
1998 and 1999.

The Group's debt increased during the pericd. The
“existing senior indebtedness was repald and new debt
facilities were negotiated to provide long term debt
capital for the acquisitions of Fleischmann and Goodman
Fielder. During the year the Group also bought back all
of the convertible debt bonds that were outstanding at
30 June 2002 and this totalled A$181.1 million. .

During the period, the Group invested approximately
A$80 million on capital expenditure, the majority of
which was used to fund projects that will positively
impact profitin future years,

BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND iTS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The Group recognised a number of individually
significant itemns during the period. These totalled
A$112.7 millicn and included:

A gain of A$40.7 million on the sale of the
Australasian Terminals business;

A gain of A$10.9 million on the sale of the North
American indystrial vinegar business;

A gain of A$6.6 million on the sale of property in
South Yarra, Australia, the site of a yeast plant closed
at the end of the previous financial year;

An expense of A$14.4 million relating to the write
off of capitalized borrowing costs incurred as part
of refinancing of the Group’s senior indebtedness in
2001. The facility was for a period of five years but
renegotiated early resulting in the write-off;

An expense af A§18.2 million relating to borrowing
costs incurred with bridge financing of the Goodman
Fielder acquisition. As the facility has been repaid,
the refated costs cannot be amortised over the life
of the loan;

An unrealised foreign currency exchange rate gain
of A$139.1 million. As a portion of the Group's US
dollar denominated borrowings are not effectively
hedging our US dollar assets, foreign exchange gains
and losses must be recorded in our statements of
financial performance;

Restructuring costs of A$48.7 million relating to the
acquisition of Goodman Figlder; and

Restructuring costs of A$3.3 million relating t¢ the
acquisition of Fleischmann Latin Ameri¢a,
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Group Operations

The Group operates globally and following the completion of the acquisition of Fleischmann in Latin America and
Goodman Fielder, now employs approximately 15,000 peaple at 115 production facilities in 28 countries around the
world. Set out below is a summary of the various operations and the countries in which they operate.

Yeast Yeast Extracts Baking

Argentina TJucuman Germany Hamburg Australia Adelaide

Australia Sydney USA Hutchinson :alliar'ath
Toowoomba urag Heads

Cairns

Brazil Bauru . Canberra
Jundiai Bakery Ingredients Carina

Canada Calgary Argentina Lanus Clayton (2)
Lasalle China Panyu gi:::

Valdiyi shanghai Geelong

~ Rockhampton
Tarnworth
Townsville
Unanderra
Wacal

Ireland

Wodoenga
India

Auckland (3)

Australia
Indenesia
West Footscray
Malaysia New Zealand Auckland
New Zealand Auckland Palmerston North Oarridtu
Pakistan Lahoref? Eiji Laucala Beach Palmerston North
. . Well
Peru Callao Nausori (6) ellington
Suva (5)
Philippines lligan
PP 9 Papua New ere
Portugal Setubal Guinea Lae (2) Milling
Spain Cordoba Port Moresby New Zealand Christchurch
Turkey Bandirma New Caledonia  Noumea Mt Maunganui
‘ Solomon Islands  Honiara (2) Papua New

Uruguay Montevideo Guinea Lse @
usa Memphis Port Moresby
Vietnam La Nga New Caledonia Boulouparis

Noumea (2)
{8) under construction

Solomon Islands Honiara

2003 ANNUAL REPORT
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Managing Director’s Review of Operations (continued)

Business Segmentation

The pie charts below illustrate the contributions made by the Group's businesses for the year ended 30 June 2003

and the assets they employ.

Sales 2002/2003
(A$1,887 millien)

Goedman Fielder NZ 9%
Other 6%

Yeast/Bakery 42%

Herbs & Spices 18%

Geodman Fielder australia 25%

EBIT 2002/2003 [Excluding Corporate]

[tneluding Share of Net Profits of Asscciates
but excluding Individually Significant ltems]

(A3246 million)

Gooedman Fielder NZ 7%
Goodman Fielder Australia 7%
Other 3%

Yeast/Bakery 59%

Herbs & Spices 24%

EBITDA 2002/2003 {Ex¢c)uding Corporate)

[Including Share of Net Profits of Associates
but excluding Individuaily Significant items)

(A5352 million)

Other 4%

Yeast/Bakery 57%

Herbs & Spices 18%

Goadman Fielder Australia 13%
Goodman Flelder NZ 8%

Consolidated Total Assats
as at 30 Jjune 2003
{A%4,504 million)

Herbs & Spices 4%

Googman Fielder Australia 43%

Goodman Fielder NZ 13%

Other 7%
Technical & Corporate 3%
Yeast/Bakery 24%

In addition, we have added a second 'Revenue’ pie chart to illustrate, for comparative purposes, the sales of the
Group for the 12 month period to 30 June 2003 if Fleischmann in Latin America and Goodman Fielder had been
included on a full 12 month basis. This is not intended as a budget or forecast and is not necessarily indicative
of the contribution 1o net profit those businesses would have made if owned for the whole year.

(A$3,614 million)

Combined ProForma Sales 2002/2003

YeasvBakery 22%
Herbs & Spices 10%

Other Burns Philp 1%

Goodman Fielder Australia 44%

Goodman Flelder NZ 16%

Other Goadman Flelder 7%

n BURNS, PHILF & COMPANY LIMITED AND IT5 CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Boil
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Operations Review

Yeast and Bakery Ingredients

ASmillion 30 June 2003 30 June 2002 % Change
Sales 803.8 822.9 (2.3%)
Trading EBITDA (before individually significant items) 198.6 2223 (10.7%)
Trading EBITDA (after individually significant items) 201.9 197.2 2.4%
Trading EBIT (before individually significant itermns) 146.4 168.3 (13.0%)
Trading EBIT (after individually significant items) 149.7 143.2 45%
Total assets 1,095.4 1013.0 8.1%
Yeast and Bakery Sales 2002/2003 Yeast and Bakery EBIT 2002/2003

(A$804 million)

[Including Share of Net Profits of Associates
but excluding Individually Significant (tems]

{A$146 million)

Asia Pacific 183% Asia Pacitic 21%

North America 38% North America 50%

Latin America 24%
Europe 20%

Latin America 8%

Europe 21%

Yeast and Bakery EBITDA 2002/2003 Yeast and Bakery Consolidated Total Assets
[tncluding Share of Net Profits of Associates as at 30 June 2003
but excluding Individually Significant {tems] (A$1,035 million)

(A3199 million)

Asia Pacific 20% Asta Pacific 19%

North America 45% North America 28%

Latin America 13% Latin America 32%

Europe 21%

Europe 22%

2003 ANNUAL REPOQRY
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Managing Director’s Review of Operations (continued)

Bakers' yeast is an essential ingredient, without
substitute, used in the production of bread, a food
staple consumed by millions of people around the world
every day. Yeast is produced in fresh and dry forms.
Fresh yeast is available as a liquid (cream) or as a salid
(compressed, crumbled or block). Fresh yeast is more
consistent and as such is the preferred product,
particularly by large, automated bakers. However,

fresh yeast has a limited life and its distribution is
dependent upon adequate infrastructure (i.e. roads and
refrigeration). Where infrastructure is limited, dry yeast is
the preferred product. Burns Philp produces both fresh
and dry yeast, with a predominance in fresh yeast.

The Group's yeast and bakery ingredients business has

a significant position in the North American, Central and
Latin American, and Asia Pacific markets. It has a lesser
position in the European market and relatively little
representation in the Middle Eastern and African region.
Overall, the Group is the world's No, 2 producer of
bakers' yaast,

North America

Fleischmann’s yeast has approximately 36% of the
North American industrial yeast market and 65%
of the consumer yeast market.

During the course of the last three years we have
rationalised our yeast plants from five down to three
with the commensurate improvement in our operating
efficiencies.

The profitability for the period under review was down
marginally as a result of a slight reduction in volurnes,
but more importantly an increase in our promotional
spend in our consumer yeast business as we moved

to protect our market share,

The result in Australian dollar terms was adversely
effected by the appreciation of the Australian dollar
versus the United States dollar,

Looking forward, the North American industrial business
will be subject to pricing pressure following the entry of
a new competitor. Management have made progress on
a number of cost reduction initiatives endeavouring to
offset as much of the margin ercsion as possible with
savings both in manufacturing and overheads,

Notwithstanding the current environment, the business
remains profitable and the North American market and
our leadership position in that market, both with respect
1o industrial and consumer yeast, will be maintained as
they are essential elements to our global yeast portfalio.

“ BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND TS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Europe

Our primary operations in Europe are in the United
Kingdom, treland, Germany, Turkey, Portugal and Spain
with distribution reach, by export, 10 a number of other
markets. The businesses include the production of fresh
yeast, dry yeast and yeast extracts.

Each of the operations performed satisfacterily during
the period with the exception of Turkey, where
competitive pressure had the effect of marginally
reducing the overall profitability for the region.
Subsequently, selling prices have increased in this market
to @ more normal level and as a result we have seen
Turkey return to profitability.

Latin America

The acquisition of the Fleischmann Latin American
business from Kraft Food Inc. fundamentally transformed
our Group's position throughout this region. Previously
we enjoyed a market leading position in Argentina,

a No, 2 position in Brazil, Chile and Uruguay, with little
elsewhere. Businesses in 12 countries were acquired

as part of this acquisition.

The merging of Fleischmann with our existing South
American businesses enhanced our position in Brazil
and throughout the rest of the southern and central
American countries. The integration of the operations
acquired has progressed smoothly, with all credit due
to the management and their teams in this region.
We are now the No. 1 producer in this region.

Whilst the result for the period was down in Australian
dollar terms, the local currency performance was
satisfactory. The economic synergies from the acguisition
of Fleischmann are being realised in accordance with
the plan and the outlook for the region, both in an
economic and strategic sense, accords with the
expectations we developed around the acquisition

of Fleischmann,

Asia Pacific

The region covers all of Asia Pacific and Australia and
New Zealand, it comprises both mature markets and
markets showing consistent growth, We have continued
1o invest heavily in the growth markets of China, and to
a lesser degree in India, and as a result have kept pace
with increased consumption and maintained our market
position. This is reflected in the continuing steady
improvernent in earnings that we saw this year and

that the Board believes will be sustained over time.

Ao13
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Tone Brothers, Inc. — Herbs and Spices

BPC LTID.

ASmillion 30 June 2003 30 June 2002 % Change
Sales . 348.4 381.9 (8.8%)
Trading EBITDA (before individually significant items) 64.8 82.2 4.2%
Trading EBITDA (after individually significant items) 64.8 52.1 24.4%
Trading EBIT (before individually significant items) 58.2 54.7 6.4%
Trading EBIT (after individually significant items) 58.2 44.6 30.5%
Total assets 177.0 229.3 (22.8%)

Our herbs and spices business is involved in the processing and distribution of herbs and spices to the consumer and
foodservice markets in the United States. We also sell cake decorations and dry sauce mixes. We primarily operate from
a manufacturing site near Des Maines, lowa. We also operate a pepper processing fadility in india. During the year we
sold our interest in a joint venture in Indonesia that processed cassia.

Earnings at Tone Brothers, Inc. (our North American herb and spice business) were up on last year, The increase was
due to a slight increase in sales, as measured in local currency, and the results of ¢ontinued efficiency improvements.
An unusual expense of A$10.1 million recognised in the prior period did not recur this year. The gain was partially

[do14

offset by the relative appreciation of the Australian dollar versus the United States doflar.

Goodman Fielder Limifed

in December 2002, we acquired approximately 15%
of the Australian listed company, Goodman Fielder
Lirited. On 3 January 2003, we announced a takeover
offer for the balance of its shares. The takeover was
successful and in Mar¢h 2003 we gained control of
the Goodman Fielder Group, completing the acquisition
on 12 June 2003 at a cost of approximately A$2.0
billion. The acquisition of Goodman Fielder will have

a significant effect on Burns Philp, increasing the

scale of our Group bath with respect to our consumer
branded businesses and our industrial ingredients
business and will further develop and diversify the
Group's portfolio.

Goodman Fielder processes and markets bread, snack
foods, breakfast cereals, edible oils, meal components
and food ingredients, The Group enjoys a portfolio of
icon brands and significant market shares, generally
either No.1 or No.2 in each of its categories.
Approximately two-thirds of its revenues (approximately
A$2.4 billion per annum for the year to 30 June 2003)
are derived from its Australian operations and 20% from
its businesses in New Zealand. Other smaller businesses
operate throughout the South Pacific region.

In the period from March to June year end, we
completed a camprehensive review of Goodman Fielder.
The primary initiatives implemented following this
included:

* the rationalisation of corporate functions that were
either duplicated or no longer required;

* the restructuring of the operating businasses with
the intention of maintaining the benefits of shared
back office functions whilst facilitating a more
entrepreneurial cuiture to drive the sales and
marketing, production and distribution functions
of each business;

+ certain changes o the leadership and management
teams supporting these businesses, utilising the
capable and energetic people within Goodman Fielder;

« the implementation of a set of projects intended to
improve our operating efficiencies by lowering our
cost to produce, improving our capacity utilisation,
or in fact, increasing capacity in circumstances where
demand exceeds supply; and

+ implementation of a pregram to accelerate new
product development in categories where there
is clear potential to grow or to reinvigorate in
categories that had become stagnant. The program
will include the development of both product and
market extension opportunities.

These initiatives will assist in impraving our performance
and developing our responsiveness to the needs and
requirernents of both our consumers and our retailer
customers. This in turn wili lead to the group
maintaining and building on their leadership positions
in their categories.

Looking forward, we are committed to Goodman
Fielder maintaining and building on their brands and
the leadership positions they enjoy in their various
categofies.

2083 ANNUAL REFORT
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Managing Director's Review of Operations (continued)

Summary

Since 30 June 2002 we have;

achieved a satisfactory earnings result;

further developed our food ingredient and consumer branded businesses by acquiring Fieischrmann Latin
Armerica and Goodman Fielder;

completed the integration and undertaken significant restructuring in the newly acquired businesses to improve
focus, operating efficiencies, and profitability;

divested our non-core Australasian bulk liquid storage and North American industrial vinegar businesses;
raised new debt and refinanced the Group's indebtedness with new longer term funding; and

received new equity proceeds of approximately A$135 million from the exercise of outstanding options.

The Group’s financial position and liquidity are strong. ts earnings and cash flows are stable and predictable as a result
of both the “consistency in demand” for food product and the “business and geographic diversity” of the portfolio,

Finally, | wish to record my sincere appreciation to every individual within our Group who centributed to the results
achieved this year, both within the operations and in the completion of the acquisitions of Fleischmann Latin America
and Goodman Figlder,

%m/ 4/””)

Thomas J Degnan
Managing Director
& Chief Executive Officer

n BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Directors’ Report

Yeur Directors present their report made in accordance with a resalution of the Directors with respect to the financial
report of Burns, Philp & Company Limited (the Company) and the consolidated financial report of the consolidated

entity, being the Company and its controlled entities {the Group), for the year ended 30 lune 2003 and the audit
report thereon.

Directors

The Diractors of the Company in office and each of their qualifications, experience and special responsibilities
at the date of this report are:

Name and Qualifications Age  Experience and Special Responsibilities

Alan McGregor AQ, MA(Hong), LLB 67 Chairman. Appointed to the Board on 3 March 1993 a5 a non-executive
director. Member of the Audit Committee. Mr McGregor is Chairman of
James Hardie Industries N.V, and Australian Wool Testing Authority Limited.
He is a director of several unlisted companies and a board or committee
member of numerous charitable and community related organisations.

Graeme Hart mBA 48 Deputy Chairman. Appointed to the Board on 22 September 1997 as a
_non-executive director. Member of the Audit Committee for the period to

10 September 2002. Mr Hart is the Managing Director and awner of Rank
Group Limited, a private investment company, which indirectly is the
Company’s largest shareholder. Mr Hart is also a director of and, through
Rank Group Limited, owns 100% of New Zealand Dairy Foods Holdings
Limited and New Zealand Dairy Foods Limited, a consumer foods group
supplying a range of dairy products. Prior to joining the Company, Mr Hart
was Chairman of Whitcoulls Group Ltd, @ New Zealand publicly listed
stationery and book retail group operating in Australia and New Zealand.

Thomas Degnan BA =) Appointed Chief Executive Officer on 1 September 1997 and Managing
Director on 3 September 1997. Member of the Audit Committee for
the period to 14 August 2002. Mr Degnan was previously Group Vice
President, Universal Foods Corporation, a North American based yeast
and specislised food products manufacturer.

Mark Burrows BA, LLB, ASIA 59 Appointed to the Board on 21 Octobeér 1991 as a non-executive director,
Chairman of the Audit Committee. An investment banker, Mr Burrows
is currently Deputy Chairman of ING Holdings Limited (UK) and Brambles
Industries Limited, and a director of John Fairfax Holdings Limited.

Fred Smith Cert Mech E, Bcomm 71 Appointed to the Board on 3 March 1993 as a non-executive director.
Member of the Audit Committee. Mr Smith was previously Chairman of
Stallion Technologies Pty Limited and Sastek Pty Limited, Deputy Chairman
of Australian National Industries Limited and a director of GEA Process
Technologies GrmbH,

Bryce Murray CA, BMS 46 Appeinted 1o the Board on 6 June 2003 a5 a non-executive director.
Mr Murray is Chief Financial Officer of Rank Group Limited and a director
of New Zealand Dairy Foods Haldings Limited and New Zealand Dairy Foods
Limited, From 1980, Mr Murray worked with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and
became a partner in 1990, In 1992 he became the Chief Financial Officer
of Whitcoulls Group Limited (a New Zealand public company whose major
_shareholder was Mr Hart). Since 1996 Mr Murray has worked as Chief
Financial Officer for Rank Group Lirmited.

Messrs McGregor, Hart, Degnan, Burrows and Smith have been in office for the whale of the reporting period.
Mr Murray has been a Dirgctor since € June 2003,

2003 ANNUAL REPORT “
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Directors’ Meetings

BPC LTD.

The number of Directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of Directors) and number of Audit Committee
meetings attended by each of the Directars of the Company during the financial year were:

Directors’ Meetings (b)

Sub Committee Meetings (¢)

Audit Committee Meetings {d)

No. held (3) No. attended No. held (a) No. attended No. held (3) No. attended
A G McGregor 17 17 - - 4 4
G R Hart 15 15 3 3 2
T } Degnan 17 17 3 3 1 1
M D | Burrows 17 16 - - A 4
F W Smith 17 16 -~ - 4 4
B M Murray - - ~ - - -

(2} Reflects the maximum nurnber of meetings each Cirectar was eligible 1o attend, Mr Hart was not entitled 10 altend 2 meetings due 1o the nature of the matters
being considered. No meetings were held in the financlal period afler Mr Murray’s appointment.

(b} In addition 1o the meetings held, written resolutions of the Board of the Company were passed on 6 August 2002, 30 August 2002, 27 November 2002,
14 Jamuary 2003, 15 January 2003, 28 January 2003, 13 February 2003, 17 February 2003, 20 February 2003, 27 February 2003, 3 March 2003, 1 April 2003,

21 May 2003, 23 May 2003 3nd 2 June 2003,

{c
Senior Notes.

Pricing Committee meetings to approve cerlain 1erms of the 9.75% Senior Subordinated Noles, the 10.75% Senior Subordinated Notes and the 8.5%

{d) On 18 December 1997 it was determined that the full Board of the Company would constitute the Audit Committee. On 14 August 2002 the Board of
the Company resolved that only nen executive directars would constitule the Audit Commitiee. Mr Degnan resigned as 38 member of the audit Committee
on 14 August 2002, At 3 meeting of Directors held on 10 September 2002, the Board determined that only independent non-executive directors be members
of the audit Commitlee, Accordingly, Mr Hart resigned as a member of the Audit Committee effective 10 September 2002,

In addition to the meelings held, o written resolutiors of the Audit Commitize was passed en 6 Degember 2002.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group during the financial
year were the manufacture, marketing and distribution
of food ingredignts and consumer branded food -
products, in¢luding yeast, bakery ingredients, herbs and
spices. Following the acquisition of Goodman Fielder
Limited, the principal activities of the Group also include
the manufacture, marketing and distribution of bread,
snack foods, breakfast cereals, edible eils and meal
components.

Review of Operations

The Managing Director’s review of operations and the
results of those operations for the financial year are set
out on pages 3 to 10 of this Annual Report.

State of Affairs

The following significant changes in the state of
affairs of the Group cccurred during the financial year
under review:

During the period, Burns Philp acquired all of the
outstanding ordinary shares of Goodman Fielder Limited
pursuant to an off-market 1akeover offer for all the

“ BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

issued shares of that company. The aggregate purchase
price paid for all the shares of Goodman Figlder Limited
was approximately A$2 billion. The results of the
operations of Goodman Fielder Limited and its controlled
entities were consolidated into the Burns Philp results
from 19 March 2003, being the date effective control
was gained over Goodman Fielder.

On 31 October 2002, Burns Philp completed the
acquisition from Kraft Foods International Inc of its
Fleischmann yeast and industrial bakery ingredients
business in Latin America, far a total cansideration
of A$211.7 million.

During the period Burns Philp refinanced its existing
senior debt in addition to raising additional debt

to facilitate the acquisition of Fleischmann Latin
Arnerica and Goedman Fielder Limited, Burns Philp’s
indebtedness as at 30 June 2003 is set out in Note 14
of the Financial Report.

Consolidated Result

The net consclidated result attributable t© members
of the Company for the financial year was a profit of
A$170 mitlion (2002 profit of A3146.2 million).

@017



17/09 '03 WED 07:43 FAX 61 2 9247 3272

Events Subsequent to Balance Date

Except as set out below, no matter or circumstance
has arisen since the end of the reporting period that
has significantly affected, or may significantly affect,
the Group's operations, the results of those operations,
of its state of affairs in future financial years.

Since the end of the reporting period, 251,082,230
ordinary shares have been issued pursuant to the
exercise of 251,082,230 options. Refer Note 16 of
the Financial Repart for further details,

Dividends

There have been no dividends paid, declared or
recornmended since the end of the previous financial
year in respect of the ordinary shares. The Converting
Preference Shares ("CP Shares”) are entitled to receive,
where there are profits available for payment of
dividends, a cumulative preferential dividend of 7.5%
per annum based on the issue price of A30.30 per CP
Share. Dividends are paid quarterly. Since the end of the
previous financial year, the following interim dividends
were paid to holders of the CP Shares:

Payment Date Total Dividend Amount per

CP Share (cents)

1 July 2002 $4,423,953 0.55480
30 September 2002 $4,473,381 0.58100
31 December 2002 $4,522,018 0.56710
31 March 2003 $4,423,875 0.55480
30 June 2003 $4,473,252 0,56100

Likely Developments

Likely developments in the Group's operations in
future financial years and the expected results of those
operations are reported as appropriate (refer Managing
Director's Review of Operations).

Environmental Regulation
Introduction

All of the Group's manufacturing operations are subject
to the environmental laws of the particular countries in
which they operate. The management of environmenta!
risks and compliance with environmental [aws is
regarded as a key issue. The Company has locally based
procedures to monitor and manage compliance with
existing and new environmenta! regulations as they
come into force.

BPC LTD. ’ @ois

The Directors are not aware of any significant breaches
of environmental regulations during the financial year.

Environmental Improvements

During the finamcial year the Group continued its
program of environmental improvement initiatives at its
manufacturing locations worldwide. As in previous years,
the main area of focus was in improving wastewater
treatment facilities at its yeast manufacturing operations.
In March 2003 the Group acquired control of Goodman
Figlder Limited. Information regarding Goodman Fielder's
performance during the financial peried in relation to
environmental regulation is set out below,

Environmental Performance - Australian Yeast
Operations

All of the operations are subject to environmental
regulation, mainly under state environmental laws.

The areas of regulation applicable include air emissions,
water and wastewater discharges, noise emissions,
dangerous goods storage and handling, solid and liquid
waste disposal and site contamination. Each of the
manufacturing operations holds licences from state
environmental agencies or local regulatory authorities
with regard to at least ane of these issues.

During the period under review compliance with
the requirements of the relevant environmental laws
was substantially achieved, There is an ongoing
environmental issue with respect to our Camellia,
Sydney, site (as specified below) where appropriate
corrective and preventative actions are being taken
to ensure compliance with relevant statutory

and licence requirements.

With respect to the yeast manufacturing operation
located in Sydney, the Company has entered into a
voluntary remediation proposal with respect to soil and
groundwater contamination at the site. The Company
submitted a remediation proposal for the site on

18 November 2002. The Company is liaising with the
NSW Environment Protection Authority with a8 view

o entering into a Voluntary Remediation Agreement.
itis not anticipated that the costs of remediation ta

be conducted on the site will exceed A$300,000.

Environmental Performance - International Yeast
and Herbs and Spices Operations

Burns Philp’s overseas operations are regulated by
national or state enviranmental laws, which are
administered by relevant regulatory authorities.

Compliance with regulatory requirements was
substantially achieved across all operations. At some
yeast manufacturing operations wastewater discharges
do not meet local standards but action plans are in place

2003 ANNUAL REPORT n
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Directors’ Report (continued)

1o address those issues and there is an ongoing program
of investment in improved wastewater treatment
systems across the Group.

Goodman Fielder Operations

There were no prosecutions, fines or penalties issued
in connection with any of Goodman Fielder's 90
manufacturing sites during the financial period.

Many of Goodman Fielder’s sites are in areas where
residential zoning and demographics have altered
significantly over the years. This has led to sites liaising
more with the local communities than in the past, on
odour and noise issues in particular, Many sites,
including sites at Mascot, Murarrie, Moorebank and
Bunbury, have seen significant improvements in their
odour and noise generation as a result of process

and management improvernents.

The West Footscray Meadow Lea site achieved

ISO 14001 certification on its first audit by external
accreditors. The certification was part of a strategy to
provide ongoing improvements at the site in line with
developing community attitudes.

During the financial year, over 2,300 tonnes of general
waste generated by Goodman Fielder operations was
diverted from landfill to recycling options. The Australia
wide packaging light-weighting program saved over
650 tonnes of material that would normally proceed

to landfill or recycling stations. The National Packaging
Covenant Plans for both Burns Philp and Goodman
Fielder have now been combined.

At a new chicken breeder farm in Fiji, Gooedman
Fielder devised and implemented a site Environmental
Management System (EMS) to provide a frarmnework for
managing the sites potential odours and ensuring the
storm water from the site does not pose 3 risk to the
local communities with contamination by the plant.
The local planning and environment departments
approved the EMS.

The Goodman Figlder envirenmenta! and site risk
management structure has not been altered since
Burns Philp gained control of the Group.

BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED aNO IT5 CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Remuneration of Directors and
Executives

Under Group policy the performance and remuneration
of the Board and senior executives are reviewed
annually, The Managing Director’s remuneration is
approved by the Board. The fees paid to non executive
Board members are determined by the Board and are
within the combined amount approved by the
shareholders of the Company in General Meeting

on 19 November 1993.

The maximum amount of fees payable to non executive
Directors of Burns, Philp & Company Limited, in
aggregate, is A$450,000 (exclusive of retirement
payments). Far the year to 30 June 2003 the basic fee
paid to a non executive Director was A$60,000. An
additional fee was paid to Mr M D Burrows for acting
as Chair of the Audit Committee. The Chairman was
paid three times the basic fee, ie A$180,000. Statutory
superannuation contributions are paid to Directors in
addition to their directors’ fees. The Deputy Chairman,
Mr G R Hart, and Mr 8 M Murray did not receive a
director’s fee for the financial period.

Executive remuneration and other terms of employment
are reviewed annually by the Company having regard
to performance during the year, relevant comparative
information and independent expert advice. The broad
policy is to ensure that remuneration packages properly
reflect the nature of the individual’s duties and
responsibilities and are competitive enough to attract,
retain and motivate people of the highest calibre.

Senior executives may receive a performance based
incentive related to achievement of specific objectives
set at the start of the year, including profit achigvement
and operational goals. Non executive Directors do not
receive any performance based remuneration.
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Details of the nature and amount of each elerment of the emoluments of each Director of Burns, Philp & Company
Limited are as follows;

Base " Non cash Superanpuation Options Retirement Toral

Emolument Incentives Benefits Contributions  Issued (3) Benefits Emoluments
Directors AS A% AS A% AS AS A%
Non executive
M D 1 Burrows 65,000 - - 5,850 ‘ - - 70,850
G R Hart - - - - - - -
A G McGregor 180,000 - - 16,200 - - 196,200
B M Murray - - - - - - -
F W Smith 60,000 - - 5,400 ~ - 65,400
Executive
TJ Degnan (b} 1,676,856 878,166 127,766 24,279 - - 2,807,067

(») No oplions over unissued shares in the Company were granted to any Director or any officer of the Burns Philp Group as part of thelr remuneration
during the reporting period. There are no unvested options held by any Directer or officer,

(b} Remuneration iy payable in US$ and for the purposes of disclasure has been converted to A$ at the prevalling exchange rates,

Burns, Philp & Company Limited is the holding company of the Burns Philp Group. Other than T J Degnan, whose
emoluments are disclosed above, only four individuals qualify as “officers of Burns, Philp & Company Limited” for the
purposes of the Corporations Act 2001. Details of the nature and amount of each element of the emoluments of each
of the four most highly remunerated officers of Burns, Philp & Company Limited, of the five continuing officers of the
Burns Philp Group, and the five non-cantinuing officers of the Burns Philp Group {all employees of Goodman Fielder
Limited) receiving the highest emoluments are as follows:

Base Non-Cash Superannuation Options Retirement Total
Executive Officers Emolument Incentives Benefits (¢) Contributions Issued (3) Benefits Emoluments
{excduding Directors) AS AS AS AS AS AS AS
The Company .
A P Hugli 390,500 87,625 25,435 - - - 513,560
R P Meagher 270,000 17%,000 8,231 30,000 - - 481,231
H D Golding 246,104 75,000 47,655 30,000 - - 398,739
G M Black 176,000 44,000 1,333 44,000 - - 265,333
Consolidated — Continuing Employees
S Martin (b) 768,559 768,559 34,744 15,441 - - 1,587,303
J lynch (b} 421,576 39,785 92,692 268,212 - - 822,265
F Schoonyoung (b) 571,511 135,371 89,726 24,279 - - 820,887
F wall (b) 539,365 152,838 33,375 - - - 725,578
R Macpherson (b) 337,118 210,968 32,751 15,441 - - 596,278

Base Non-Cash Superannuation Options Termination Total
Emolument Incentives  Benefits Contributions Issued Payments Emocluments

AS AS AS AS AS AS (d) AS
Nan-continuing Employees; Goodman Fielder Executives (for the period from 13 March 2003 to 30 June 2003)
T Park 125,179 - 3,359 1,244 - 2,601,708 2,731,487
G Logan 99,163 - 2,548 2,536 - 1,423,880 1,528,137
S McDowell 93,896 - - 5,663 - 1,283,479 1,383,038
M Sage 58,131 - 169 1,244 - 1,040,389 1,089,933
1 Glasson 287,353 - 176 7,829 - 700,070 995,428

(3) No options over unissued shares in the Company wera granted to any Diractor or any officer of the Burns Philp Group as panl of their remuneration
during the reporting period.There are no unvested options held by any Director or oflicer,

(b} Remuneratlon was pald in currencles other than a$ and for the purposes of disclosure it wos converied at the average axchange rates during the period.
(¢} This includes movements in acerued annual leave liabilities fram the previous financial year.
(d) These amaunts inciude payments of accrued leave entitlements,

doz2o0
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Options Over Unissued Shares or Interests

In 1998 and 1999 the Company implemented an A$300 million recapitalisation plan which involved the issue of notes
* and options (2003 Options). Full details of the 2003 Options are set out in Note 16 of the financial statements, As at
30 June 2003 the number of 2003 Options on issue was 251,571,018, In accordance with their terms and conditions
of issue, the 2003 Options expired on 14 August 2003, unless exercised prior to their expiration date. Since year end a
total of 251,082,230 2003 Options were exercised prior to the expiration date resulting in the issuance of 251,082,230

doz1

ordinary shares. There are no 2003 Options on issue at 4 Septernber 2003,

No employee options were on issue as at the date of this report (refer Note 16).

Directors’ Holdings of Ordinary Shares and CP Shares

The number of ordinary shares and CP Shares in which each Director has a relevant interest as at the date of this report
and which have been notified by the Directors to the ASX in accordance with Section 205G(i) of the Corporations Act

2001 is as follows:

Ordinary Shares CP Shares
A G Mc¢Gregor 114,608 244,226
G R Hart 1,091,671,101 537,644,211
T ) Degnan 3,391,050 619,122
M D | Burrows 5,843 -
F W Smith 13,723 5,779
B M Murray - -

Directors’ Interests Under Contracts

Details of any benefits received by Directors of the
Company are disclosed in Note 26 of the financial
statements. These include reimburserment of salaries and
expenses to Rank Group Limited of which Mr G R Hart
is Managing Director and Mr B M Murray is the Chief
Financial Officer.

Contracts under which a Director, or a firm in which a
Director is 8 member, or a company in which a Director
has a substantial financial interest, has received or
become entitled to receive a benefit, are as follows:

1. A subsidiary of the Company, Burns Philp Inc.,
has entered into an Employment Agreement with
Mr T } Degnan in relation to his appointment as
Managing Director and President of Burns Philp Inc.
The terms of the agreement are similar to those
generally associated with such offices. All benefits
paid and potentially payable with respect to the
financial year to 30 June 2003 pursuant to the
agreement have been disclosed on page 15 of this
Directors’ Report and in the financial statements.

BURNS, PHILF & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

In accordance with the terms of his Employment
Agreement, Mr Degnan will be entitled to a change
of controlling shareholder payment in the form of a
lump sum equal to approximately twice his annual
base salary, maximum bonus and car allowance if
Mr G R Hart ceases to be the controlling shareholder
of the Company on a fully diluted basis.

. In July 1997 the Company entered into a Director's

Access Deed with each of Messrs M O | Burrows,

F W Smith, A G McGregor and 4 others who were
Directors of the Company at that time (each a
beneficiary) whereby the Company agreed to
provide access to board papers and to use its best
endeavours to take out and maintain directors’ and
officers' liability insurance in relation to the pericd
during which the beneficiary was a Director of the
Company, for a period of 7 years after the date of
resignation of the beneficiary as Director, The
Company adreed to pay premiums in respact of such
insurance. Many of the Company's obligations as
expressed in these Deeds are now provided by the
Corporations Act 2001, Disclosure of the amount
of the premium and of the liabilities covered is
prohibited under the insurance contract.
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3,

Each of the Directors, other than Mr B8 M Murray,
hold ordinary shares and CP Shares as detailed on
page 16 of this report. The CP Shares have certain
rights attached to them, as set out in the Statement
of Terms of Issue of CP Shares approved by
shareholders at an Extracrdinary General Meeting of
the Company held on 15 June 2001. Ordinary shares
have the rights attached to them as set out in the
Company's Constitution and in the Corporations

Act 2001.

Indemnification and Insurance
of Officers:

Company’s Constitution

The Company's Constitution permits the Directors to

authorise the Company to indemnify certain officers of '

the Company or any of its related body corporates, to
the extent permitted by law, for liability incurred as an
officer provided that;

the liability is not owed 1o the Company or a related
body corporate; or

the liability is not for a pecuniary penalty ar
compensation order made by a court under the
Corporations Act; and

the liability does not arise out of conduct involving
a lack of good faith.

The Company's constitution alsc permits the Directors to
authorise the Company to indemnify each officer, to the
maximum extent permitted by law, for legal costs and
expenses incurred in successfully defending civil or
criminal proceedings.,

Indemnities

1.

By @ Deed Poll dated 5 Novemnber 2001 the
Company agreed to indemnify the then current
Directors, secretaries and chief financial officer of the
Company in the circumstances authorised by the
Company's Constitution. The Company has also
agreed to indermnify Mr B M Murray on the same
terms as set out in the Deed Poll dated S November
2001, effective from the date of his appointment as
a Director, 6 June 2003,

By a Deed Poll dated 18 December 1997 (as
amended on 3 November 2000) the Company has
agreed to indemnify each director and company
secretary {indemnified Party) from time to time of
a subsidiary of the Company aga'inst any liability
incurred on or after 15 April 1835 and prior to

13 March 2000 to any person (other than a

BPC LTID.

subsidiary or a related body corporate of the
Company) as a result of having served as a director,
secretary or employee of a subsidiary. The indemnity;

{a) does not apply to liability arising out of conduct
involving lack of good faith, conduct known to
be wrongful, or personal matters such as travel
to and from work; and

{b) extends 1o costs and expenses incurred in
successfully defending civil or crirmina!
proceedings or in connection with an application
in relation to such proceedings in which relief is
granted under the Corporations Act 2001.

in a¢cordance with amendments made to the
Corporations Act 2001, the Deed Poll was amended
on 3 November 2000 sa that, from 13 March 2000,
the Company indemnified each Indemnified Party to
the maximum extent provided by law in respect of a
liability incurred on or after 13 March 2000 as a
result of facts or circumstances relating to the
Indemnified Party serving or having served as a
director or secretary or employee of any subsidiaries
of the Company.

The Company also agreed for a period of 6 years
after a person ceases to be a director or secretary of
a subsidiary, to maintain directors’ and officers’
liability insurance, if available, on terms that require
no materially greater cost to the Company than as at
the date of the Deed. The Company agreed 16 pay
premiums in respect of the insurance, except
premiums in respect of insurance cover against
liability arising aut of breach of duty, or other liability
in respect of which the Company is prohibited

from paying premiums by law.

. On 29 July 1997 the Company entered into a Deed

of Release with Mr | D Clack (a former Director of
the Company) under which the Company agreed
among other things, to maintain or cbtain directors’
and officers’ liability insurance for the benefit of

Mr Clack at the current level of benefit for any
liability arising out of his service as an employee and
Director of the Company and any of its subsidiaries,
partnerships or joint ventures,

If the Company cannot effect insurance in the terms
of the Deed, it has agreed to indemnify Mr Clack to
the same extent as he was indemnified at the date
of the Deed by existing directors’ and officers’
insurance, The Company’s directors’ and officers’
liability insurance policy covers the period during
which Mr Clack was an officer of the Company.

doz2
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Directors’ Report (continued)
4, By letter dated 8 August 1997 the Company Insurance

agreed, 10 the extent permissible by law, to
indemnify Mr | D Clack in respect of fiabilities he
may have incurred in the proper performance

of his employment as an officer of the Company
and to release him from any claims it might
otherwise be able to make against him (except for
misappropriation of Company property or lack of
good faith) in respect of conduct undertaken by
Mr Clack in the proper course of his employment
and within the limits of his authority.

5. Under a number of Deeds of Indemnity dated
23 December 1393 a Group company indemnified
the Directors of the Company as at that date (being
Messrs W R M Irvine, D J Docherty, A G McGregor,
M D | Burrows, F W Smith, | D Clack, ] M Cowling
and A Turnbull) and certain former senior Gréup
executives for all liabilities arising from daims made
by third parties under United States of America
securities laws as a consequence of any action or
statement made in relation to the Company’s
securities traded through the American Depositary
Receipts system, except where the liability arises
out of conduct involving a lack of goed faith.

6. Under a number of Deeds dated 19 August 1993 the
Company and certain Group companies indemnified
Mr 1 D Clack and three senior Group executives for
all claims made under United States of America
securities laws by third parties as a consequence of
any action in their capacity as directars of Nutrition
21, Inc. (formerly AMBI Inc., an associated company
at 30 June 1997), except where the liability arises
out of conduct involving a lack of good faith.
all of the beneficiaries of the Deed have ceased
to be directors of this company.

The Company has not been advised of any claims under
any of the above indemnities.

“ BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

During the financial year the Company agreed to pay,
and has paid, insurance premiums in respect of a
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance contract,
The officers covered by the insurance policy are:

» the current and former executive officers of the
Company and the current and former directors,
secretaries and executive officers of its subsidiaries;

« the current Directors of the Company, being Messrs
A G McGregoer, T Degnan, G R Hart, M D | Burrows,
F W Smith and B M Murray;

s the current secretary of the Company, Ms H D Golding,
and the additional secretary, Mr P J P West; and

¢ the former Directors of the Company.

Disclosure of the amount of the premium and of the
liabilities covered is prohibited under the insurance
contract.

Rounding of Amounts

Burns, Philp & Company Limited is a company of

the kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated
10 July 1898 and in accordance with that Class Order
amounts in the financial report and in this Directors’
Repert have been rounded to the nearest tenth of a
million dollars, unless otherwise shown,

This report has been made in accordance with a
resolution of the Directors.

%/m, / lgrm/
Thomas ) Degnan

Managing Director.

Sydney, 12 September 2003

hoz3
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\ Corporate Governance Statement

The following are the main ¢orporate governance
practices in place throughout the financial pernod, unless
otherwise stated:

Board of Directors and its Committees

The Board is responsible for the overall corporate
governance of the Group, including its strategic direction
and ensuring that there are appropriate corporate
governance practices in place. This includes the setting
of goals, monitaring performance and ensuring the
Group’s internal control and reporting procedures are
adequate and effective,

Composition of the Board

The names of the Directors of the Company in office at
the date of this statement are set out in the Directors’
Report on page 11 of this report.

The Board is structured so that the majority vote is by
individuals who are independent non-executive
Dirgctors. The Company's Constitution requires the
retirement of Directors (other than the Managing
Director) on a three year basis. Retiring Directors may
offer themselves for re-election by the members.

Independent Professional Advice

All of the Directors may, in the furtherance of their
duties, obtain independent professional advice at the
Company's expense,.

Audit Committee

The Board’s Audit Committee was made up of all the
Directors for the period from 18 December 1897 to

14 August 2002. On 14 August 2002 the Board resolved
that enly non-executive directors would constitute the
Audit Committee. At @ meeting of Directors held on

10 September 2002, the Board determined that it was
appropriate that only independent non-executive
directors be members of the Audit Committee. Meetings
are attended from time 1o time, by invitation, by other
Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Company
Secretary, the Chief Financial Officer and the external
auditor, KPMG., The business covered by the Audit
Committee is governed by a charter approved by

the Board.

The primary function of the Audit Committee is 10
provide advice to the Board in respect of:

» the reliability and integrity of accounting policies and
financial reporting and disclosure practices;

« the establishment and maintenance of processes to
ensure that there is compliance with all applicable
laws, regulations and company policy; and

= internal control systems, management of business
risks and the safeguard of assets.

These functions are carried out by:

= reviewing the appropriateness of the accounting
principles adopted by management in the
composition and presentation of financial reports;
and

« overseeing the financia! reports and the results
of the external audits of these reports.

The external auditor is respansible for planning and
carrying out a proper audit of the Group's annual
financial reports and reviews of the Group’s semi annual
financial reports and other procedures.

The Audit Cammittee also reviews the appointment,
performance and rotation of the external auditor and
whether the non audit services provided by the exiernal
auditor are consistent with the external auditor’s
independence. All non audit services provided by KPMG
require pre-approval by the audit Committee.

The rale of the Audit Committee is documented in a
Charter, which was approved by the Board of Directors
of the Company on 10 Septermber 2002. All members
of the Committee must be independent, non-executive
directors, The Chairman of the Audit Committee may
not be the Chairman of the Board of Directors. The
Audit Committee conducts a review of its own processes
and Charter annually to ensure that it has carried out its
functions in an effective manner. it is proposed to
update the Audit Committee Charter in line with
recommendations recently made by the ASX Corporate
Governance Council (refer page 20 of this report). The
revised charter will be made available on the Company’s
website, The current Charter is available to shareholders
on request.

Idoz4
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Corporate Governance (continued)

External Auditor

The external auditor was appainted on 27 November
1984. The lead external audit engagement partner was
last changed in June 2000.

The Audit Committee intends, in relation to the 2004
financial reporting pericd, to meet with tha external
auditor at least twice without management being
present. The external auditor will also be provided with
the opportunity, at its request, to meet with the Board
of Directors without management being present.

Certification of Financial Reports

Both the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer have certified to the Board that the Financial
Report for the year ended 30 June 2003 presents a true
and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial
condition of the Company and is in accordance with
relevant accounting standards,

Executive Committees

These include a general management committeg,
which reviews strategy and business performance and
a capital expenditure committee.

ASX Corporate Governance Council
Principles of Good Corporate
Governance and Best Practice
Recommendations ('Best Practice
Recommendations’)

The ASX released the Best Practice Recommendations
on 31 March 2003. Listed entities are required to include
a corporate governance report in the annual report for
the first financial year commencing after 1 January
2003, disciosing the extent to which they have followed
the Best Practice Recommendations in the reporting
period. There is no obligation to include this disclosure
in this year's annual report, however companies are
encouraged to make an early transition to the Best
Practice Recommendations,

The Board has resolved to implement the Best Practice
Recommendations, to the extent its practices do not
currently conform with those recommendations. It is
anticipated that the Best Practice Recommendations
will be progressively implemented during the course
of the year.

The Company currently complies with Listing Rule 12.7
with respect to audit committee composition, operation
and responsibility.

BUYRNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Internal Contro! Framework

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the
overall internal control framework but recognises that
no cost effective internal control system will preclude all
errors and irregularities. The following internal control
framework is in place:

Financial Monitoring and Reporting

The Group has a comprehensive strategic planning and
budgeting system, the resuits of which are presented to
and approved by the Board. Management and the Board
monitor performance against budget and key financial
benchmarks through menthly reperting routings and
detailed business reviews.

Risk Management

The Group has designed management functions,

which include finance, legal, taxation, environrmental
and human resources that work closely with operational
and executive management in identifying and managing
business risk.

The Group has implemented globalised insurance
arrangements with major international insurars which
evaluate the economic balance hetween self retention
of risks and risk transfer; the establishing, upgrading
and monitaring of campliance with the Group's risk
management standards; and the development of
contingency plans to manage potential business
interruptions.

Internal Controls

Management assumes the primary responsibitity for
internal controls and takes responsibility for their internal
control environment. The Group has implemented a
policy whereby each regional president and financial
controller reports, on a gquarterly basis, to the Chief
Financial Officer and the Audit Committee on the
operation and effectiveness of key internal controls.

Any known deficiencies in internal controls are followed
up and actioned by regional management.

Ethical Standards

All directors, managers and employees are expected

to act with the utmost integrity so as to enhance the
reputation for fair and reasonable congduct of the Group.
The Group provides guidance to managers and
employees through code of conduct policies.
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Director Dealings in Company Securities

Company policy prohibits directors and senior
management from dealing in Company securities:

* gxcept during the one month period following the
release of the Company's quarterly, half yearly or
final results; or

« while in the possession of price sensitive information.

Directors must obtain the approval of the Chairman (or
in the case of the Chairman, the Deputy Chairman)
before they buy or sell securities of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of the Corporations
Act 2001 and the Listing Rules of the ASX, Directors
advise the ASX of any transactions conducted by them
in the securities of the Company.

Employee Share and Share Option Plans

The Group has in place employee and executive share
plans and an incentive share option plan (full details of
which are set out in Note 16 of the financial _
statements). No shares have been issued or loans made
under the share plans nor any options issued under the
incentive plan since 1997, The remaining options issued
under the incentive plan were issued at an exercise price
of $1.02 and expired on 1 Qctober 2002, There is no
present intention to make any further loans or issue any
turther options under such plans.

Equal Access to Material Information

The Company has a policy that all shareholders

and investors have equal access to the Company's
information and has procedures to ensure that all

price sensitive information is disclosed to the ASX in
accordance with the continuous disclosure reguirements
of the Corporations Act 2001 and ASX Listing Rules.

All information pravided to the ASX is immediately
posted to the Company’s website, The Company
Secretary is responsible for all communications with

the ASX in relation to listing rule matters.

2003 ANNUAL REPORT n
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Shareholder Information

Additiona! information required by the Australian Stock Exchange Limited Listing Rules and not disciosed elsewhere
in this report follows; ‘

Shareholdings
Substantlal Shareholders

As at 8 September 2003 the following substantial shareholding had been advised to the Company:

Ordinary Shares

Rank Group Lid (a) 1,091,671,101

(8 This includes holdings in the names of Millstreet Invesiments Lid and Kintron Developments Lid.

Holders of each class of Equity Security

As at 4 Septemnber 2003 the distribution and number of holders of each class of equity security, together with holders
holding less than a marketable parcel, were as follows:

Ordinary Shares CP Shares
No of Holders No of Holders

(a) Distribution
1 - 1,000 ' £,630 3,578
1,001 - 5,000 11,685 2,883
5,001 — 10,000 6,092 882
10,007 = 100,000 7,480 a70
100,001 —and over 569 138
(b) Number of Holders of each class of equity security 32,456 8,451
{€) Holding less than a marketable parcel 4,313 2,794

See Note 16 of the financial statements for zn explanation of terms used.
These numbers are the number of holders as shown on the relevant register. Beneficial holdings may differ.
Voting Rights

The voting rights attaching to the ordinary shares are set out in Article 56 of the Company’s Constitution. (n summary,
that article provides that every member present or represented shall have one vote on a show of hands and upon a poll
shall have one vote for each fully paid ordinary share held.

Holders of CP Shares have the right to attend but no right to vote at members’ meetings.

BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND IT5 CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Twenty largest Ordinary Shareholders at 4 September 2003~

Number of Ordinary

% of Ordinary

Shares Held Shares Held
Kintron Developments Ltd 977,497,474 48.11
Millstreet Investments Ltd 114,173,627 5,62
Westpac Custedian Nominees Ltd . 98,579,499 4.85
J P Morgan Nominees Australia Ltd 66,193,385 3.26
National Nominees Ltd 54,375,097 2.68
Queensland Investment Corporation 25,033,913 1.23
Citicorp Nominees Pty Ltd 23,961,318 1.8
CSFB Fourth Nominees Pty Ltd 17,288,386 0.85
Goodman Equities Pty Ltd 15,101,800 0.74
Albert Street Nominees Lid 15,036,600 0.74
ANZ Nernineés Ltd 14,887,025 0.73
Permanent Trustee Austratia Ltd (MMC0002 A/) 14,024,310 0.69
AMP Life Ltd 11,697,568 0.58
RBC Global Services Australia Nominees Pty Ltd 9,552,775 0.47
Commonwealth Custodial Services Ltd 9,046,068 0.45
Cogent Nominees Pty Ltd 7,705,538 0.38
Woodross Nominees Pty Lid 6,752,684 0.33
Permanent Trustee Australia Ltd (HUNOOQ2 A/) 6,174,162 0.30
UBS Private Clients Australia Nominees‘Pty Lid 5,063,218 0.25
Governmert Superannuation Office 4,802,893 0.24
Total 1,496,947,946 73,67

Total issued ordinary shares at 4 September 2003

* As shown on the registar, beneflclal holdings may differ,

2,031,831,335

At 4 September 2003 the Company had 32,436 ordinary shareholders of which the 20 largest holders held
1,496.3 miltion of the 2,031.8 million ordinary shares on issue. There are 28,210 ordinary shareholders with registered
addresses in Australia, 3,832 in New Zealand and 414 registered elsewhere, mostly in the United Kingdom and the

United States of America.

2003 ANNUAL REPORT



17/09

'03 WED 07:47 FAX 61 2 9247 3272 BPC LTD.

Shareholder Information (continued)

Twenty largest CP Shareholders at 4 September 2003"

Number of CP Shares

% of CP Shares

Held Held
Kintron Developments Lid 507,615,601 63.67
National Nominees Ltd 41,672,481 5.23
Westpac Custodian Nominees Ltd 31,479.260 3.95
Millstreet Investments Ltd 30,028,610 3.77
J P Morgan Nominees Australia Ltd 21,080,107 2.64
Elise Norminees Pty Ltd 17,073,126 2.14
ANZ Nominees Ltd 16,187,974 2,03
Culien Investments Ltd 12,398,514 1.56
RBC Global Services Australia Nominees Pty Ltd (DE As) 5,795,281 0.73
Invia Custodian Pty Lid (Black A/Q) 4,881,966 0.61
Queensland Investment Corporation 4,634,845 0.58
Woodross Nominees Pty Ltd 4,577,131 0.57
Invia Custoedian Pty Ltd (WAM Equity Fund AJc) 4,061,832 0.5
Invia Custodian Pty Ltd (WaM Capital Ltd &/¢) 2,859,124 0,37
Hanover Portfolio Ltd 2,457,676 0.31
Tower Trust (NSW) Ltd 1,854,304 0.23
Parmanent Trustee Australia Ltd 1,738,978 0.22
Warbont Nominees Pty Lid 1,678,816 0.21
Rect Funds Management Ltd 1,612,000 0.20
RBC Global Services Australia Nominees Py Ltd (RA A/c) 1,602,731 0.20
Total - 715,390,357 - 89.73
Total issued CP Shares at 4 September 2003 797,303,360

* As shown on the regisier, beneficial holdings may differ,

At 4 Septernber 2003 the Company had 8,451 CP shareholders of which the 20 largest holders held 715.4 million of the

797.3 million CP Shares on issue. There are 7,480 CP shareholders with registered addresses in Australia, 935 in New

Zealand and 36 registered elsewhere.

BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND TS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Enquiries

Securityholders seeking information on their security
holdings should contact the registrar, ASX Perpetual
Registrars Limited, Level 8, 580 George Street, Sydney
NSW 2000, telephone (02) 8280 7127, international

B1 2 8280 7127, facsimile (02) 9287 0303, international
61 2 9287 03032, email registrars@asxperpetual.com.au
or via the registrar's website www.asxperpetual.com.au.

All enguiries must include your Securityholder Reference
Number (SRN) or Holder Identification Number (HIN).
Your SRN or HIN is recorded on most documents
farwarded to you including your holding statement,
CHESS statement and proxy form.

Tax File Number Information

The Company is obliged to record Tax File Number

or exemption details provided by Australian resident
shareholders. While it is not compulsory to provide your
Tax File Number or exemption details, the Company is
obliged 10 deduct tax at the 1op marginal income tax
rate plus Medicare levy from unfranked dividends paid
to shareholders resident in Australia who have not
supplied this information, Far shareholders who have
not provided this information, forms are available

upon request from our registrar.

Change of Address

Please advise the registrar in writing if you have
a new postal address.

American Depositary Receipts

In the United States, the Company's shares are

traded an the cver-the-counter market in the form

of sponsored American Depositary Receipts (ADR).

Each ADR represents six Burns Philp ordinary shares.
Enquiries about ADRs should be made to the depository,
JPMorgan Chase Bank.

BPC LTD, ‘ o3o

Goodman Finance Limited Capital Notes

Goadman Finance Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Campany incorporated in New Zealand, has
issued NZ$212.5 million Capital Notes (New Zealand
Capital Nates). Quotation and trading of the New
Zealand Capital Notes on the New Zealand Exchange
Limited commenced on 1 July 2003, Enguiries about
the New Zealand Capital Notes should be made to the
registrar, Compuitershare investor Services Limited,
Level 2, 159 Hurstmere Road, Takapuna, Auckland
(Private Bag 92-119), telephone +64 S 488 8700,
facsimile +64 9 488 8787,

Burns Philp Communications

The annual report is the main source of information

for shareholders. All announcements made to the

ASX are available for viewing on the Company’s website
www.burnsphilp.com. You can subscribe via our
registrar’s website www.asxperpetyal.com.au to

receive email notification of the Company's major
announcements.

Shareholders not wishing to receive annual reports
should advise the share registry in writing or via our
registrar’s website.
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Statements of Financial Performance

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated " Company Limited

AS milllon Note 2003 2002 2001 20083 2002
Revenue from sale of goods 2 1,880.2 1,292.8 1,328.0 - -
Cost of goods soid {1.119.5) (730.5) (784.5) = -
Gross profit ) 760.7 562.3 5415 - -
Revenue from rendering of services 2 7.0 28.9 30,7 - -
Other revenues from ordinary activities 2 27.5 6.4 189 6.6 20.7
Qther revenues from ordinary activities -
individually significant items 2, 3(b) - 308.7 - - - -
Share of net profits of associates accounted
for using the equity method 9 111 101 12.4 - -
Selling, marketing and distribution expenses (378.4) (250.9) (280.7) - -
General and administrative expenses.

Individually significant itemns 3(b) (196.0) (35.2) - - -

Other (200.9) (135.8) (137.4) {13.0) {16.7)
Net borrowing costs:

Borrowlng costs 3a) (174.8) (72.9) (85.8) (0.5) (0.1)

Interest revenue 2 18.0 7.0 13.0 22.0 8.3
Profit from ordinary activities before related
income tax (expense)/benefit ’ 3 182.9 120.9 © 1026 15.1 13.2
Income tax (expense)/benefit relating to
ordinary activities 4 (8.6) 28.6 (12.1) 6.2 37
Profit from ordinary activities after related
income tax (expense)benefit 174.3 149.5 20.5 21.3 16.8
Profit attributable 1o outside equity interests 19 (4.3) (3.3) (2.0) - -
Net profit attributable to Burns, Philp
& Company Limited shareholders 18 170.0 146.2 885 21.3 16.9
Non-owner transaction changes in equlity
Net exchange difference relating to self-sustaining
foreign operations 17(3) (75.2) (177.0) 21.0 - -
Net increase in accumulated losses on initial
adoption of Revised AASB 1028 “"Employee Benefits” ) (0.3) - - - -

Total revenues, expenses and valuagtion adjustrments

attributable to Burnms, Philp & Company Limited

shareholders recognised directly in equity (75.5) (177.0) 21.0 -
Total changes in equity from non-owner

related transactions attributahle to Burns,

Philp & Company Limited shareholders © 20 94.5 (30.8) 109.5 21.3 16.9

Earning per share — basic (cents)

Continuing operations 25 9.0 14.3 10.5
Discontinued operations 25 5.4 2.4 31
Basic earnings per share 14.4 17.3 13.6

£arnings per share — diluted (cents)

Continuing operations 25 4.5 5.5 4.6
Discontinued operations 25 2.3 0.8 1.4
Diluted earnings per share 6.8 6.3 6.0

The attached notes form part of these financial statemneants.
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Statements of Financial Position

AS AT 30 JUNE

Consolidated

Burns, Philp &

Company Limited -

AS million Note 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002

Currant assers

Cash assets 5 180.5 923.6 218.2 0.7 21.0

Receivabiles & 385.0 160.4 229.9 4267 254.3

Inventories 7 314.5 1231 132.7 - -
Other assets 8 53.5 27.9 '32.9 4.5 -
Total current assets 933.5 1,235.0 €13.7 4319 275.3

Non current assets

Receivables & 8.4 1.8 4.9 - -
Investments accaunted for using the equity method g 53.6 58.6 66.9 - -
Other financial assets 10 4.7 6.7 7.6 2304 132.9

Property, plant and equipment 11 1,114.9 577.2 704.1 0.1 0.1

Intangible assets 12 2,265.3 319.4 407.5 - -
Deferred tax assets 4 78.2 66.2 5.5 - -
Other assets 8 145.5 99,6 50.6 - -
Tetal non current assets 3.670.6 1.129.5 1.247.1 230.5 133.0
Total assets 4,604.1 2,364.5 1,860.8 662.4 - 408.3

Current liabijlittes

Payables 13 499.7 142.5 174.7 67.4 6.8
Interest bearing liabilities 14 178.8 2058 282.8 - -
Current tax liabilities 4 29.0 3.9 8.8 0.1 0.1

Provisions 15 195.5 38.5 44,3 0.7 6.2

Total current liabilities 903.0 396.7 510.6 68.2 13.1

Non current lisbilities

Payables 13 6.2 35 - - -
Interest bearing liabilities 14 2,813.8 1,449,7 1,028.9 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 4 2.4 12.0 20,2 - -
Provisions 15 100.4 23.1 23.2 0.5 0.5

Total non current liabilities 2,942.8 1,488.3 1,072.3 0.5 0.5

Total liabilities 3,845.8 1,885.0 1,582.9 68.7 13.6
Net assets 758.3 479.5 277.9 593.7 3947

Equity

Contributed equity 16 1,063.9 868.3 613.7 1.063.9 868.3

Reserves 17 (234.4) {159.2) 17.8 18.2 18.2

Accumulated losses 18 (96.7) (248.5) (378.8) (488.4) (481.8)
Equity attributable to Burns, Philp & Company

Limited shareholders 732.8 460.6 252.7 593.7 394.7

Outside equity interests 19 25.5 18.9 25.2 - -
Total equity 20 758.3 4785 277.8 593.7 394.7

The attachad notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

Burns, Philp &
Consolidated .Company Limited

AS million : 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
Cash flows from operating activities '
Cash receipts in the course of operations 1,934.1 1,404.2 1,409.6 4.7 a7
Cash payments in the course of operations: .

Payments 1o suppliers and employees {1.562.2) (1,101.1)  (1,167.2) (19.7) (18.3)

Prepaid slotting aliowances paid (10.5) (32.0) (40.5) - -
Interest received 17.0 6.8 12.9 22.0 9.3
Borrowing costs paid (104.3) (63.5) (85.1) (0.5} 0.1
Dividends received from associates 12.7 15.3 8.6 - -
Dividends received from centrolled entities - - - 1.9 16.0
income taxes paid (54.2) {16.6) (3.9) (0.2) (0.2)
Business restructuring costs (31.1) - - - -
Net cash provided by operating activities(b) 201.5 213.1 1184 8.1 11.4
Cash flows from investing activities(d)
Payrrients for proparty, plant and gquipment (80.2) (82.3) (88.8) (0.1) -
Payments for other financial assets - (3.0} - - -
Payments for businesses, net of cash acquired(c) -

Goodman Fielder Limited (1,867.3) - - - -

Fleischmann'Latin America (191.5) (20.2) - - -

Other - (2.3) (11.9) - -
Equity contributed 1o 2 controlled entity - - - (100.0) {2.0)
Proceeds from disposal of praperty, piant and equipment 2715 2.3 2.3 - -
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets : 5.2 - - - -
Proceeds from disposal of businesses, net of cash disposed of(c) 260.8 0.7 .9 - -
Proceeds from liquidation of controlled entities - - - 2.6 28.1
Other ) (1.2) {(1,0) (0.3) ~ -
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities (1,948.7) (105.8) {89.8) (97.5) 27.1
Cash flows from financing activities(d),(a)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares on exercise of options 195.6 20.2 32.2 195.6 20.2
Proceeds from issue of CP Shares - 104.0 - - 104.0
Repayment of 7.5% Notes - (135.8) - - -
Buy-back of convertible debt bonds {181.1) (2.6) - - -
Repayment of other borrowings (2,696.4) (848.1) (49.1) - (13.8)
Drawdown of other barrowings 4,040.4 1,520.3 - - -
Refinancing costs paid (75.49) (20.3) - - -
Debt issue costs paid (31.4) (18.3) - - -
Loans to controlled entities - - - {104.4) (114.8)
Dividends paid - CP Shares (22.3) {11.5) - (22.3) (11.5)
Dividends paid — Goodman Fielder shareholders (195.3) - - - -
Dividends paid — outside equity interests (1.0) {i.1) {1.4) - -
Other 0.7 0.6 0.8 - -
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 1,033.8 607.4 (17.5) 68.9 (15.9)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash held (711.9) 7147 11 (20.5) 22.6
Cash at beginning of year 922.7 216.0 187.5 21.0 (0.1)
Effacts of exchange rate changes on cash (including cash at
beginning of year and cash transactions during the year) (33.3) (8.0) 17.4 0.2 (1.8)
Cash at end of year(a) 178.0 922.7 216.0 0.7 21.0

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows (continued)
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A% million

Consolidated

Burns, Philp &
Company Limited

2003 2002 2001 2003 12002
(a) Reconciliation of cash
Cash assets (refer note 5) 1805 923.6 218.2 0.7 21.0
Bank overdrafts (refer note 14) (2.5) (0.8) (2.2) - -
Cash as per statements of cash flows 178.0 922.7 216.0 0.7 21.0
{b) Recontiliation of net cash provided by operating
activities to profit from ordinary activities after
income tax
Profit from ordinary activities after income tax 174.3 149,5 20.5 213 16.3
Add/(less)
Deprecistion and amortisation 131.7 105.0 100.7 0.1 0.1
Net expense from movements in provisions 102.1 49,7 16.9 0.5) 3.4
Share of net profits of associates (11.1) {10.1) (12.4) - -
Dividends received from associates 12.7 15.3 8.6 - -
Net (profit)/loss on disposal of non current assets
and businesses (62.9) 2.0 (0.5) - -
Fareign currency (gains)/losses on barrowings (139.1) - - (4.0) 0.3
Deferred borrowing costs expensed 41.4 3.9 - - -
Changes in assets and liabilities net of effects of acquisitions
and disposals of businesses:
Trade debtors 47.0 8.6 (12.2) - -
Inventories 18.7 {14.9) 5.2 - -
Trade creditors (4.5) 8.4 1.7 - -
Prepaid slotting allowances (10.5) (32.0) (40,5) - -
Provisions (91.7) (24.3) (26.3) (0.5) 4.0)
Current and deferred tax provisions (38.6) (0.8) 1.7 (6.5) (3.9)
Future income tax benefit (7.0) (44.4) 0.5 - -
Other assets and liabilities, (net) 39.0 (2.8) (15.5) (1.8) (1.4)
Net cash provided by operating activities 201.5 213.1 118.4 2.1 11.4
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Consolidated
2003 2002 2001
AS million Acquisitions Disposals  Acquisitions Disposals Acquisitions  Disposals
(¢) Acquisitions and disposals of businesses
Consideration:
Cash payment (2,164.5) - (22.5) - (11.9) -
Deposit paid — prior year (20.2) - - - - -
Amount payabie (26.0) (0.5} - - {2.5) -
Cash proceeds* - 266.0 - 0.7 - 8.8
Amount receivable - - - - - 3.9
‘ ' (2.210.7) 265.5 @22.5) 07 (14.4) 128
Fair value of net assets acquired/disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment {(731.9) 134.6 - - - 9.5
Goodwill {1,376.8) 26.9 - - - -
Identifiable Intangible assets (691.2) 9.4 - - (14.4) -
Trade debtors (288.0) 28.0 - - ~ -
Inventories (262.1) 35.4 - - ~ 1.3
Cash (8.4) 5.2 - - - -
Other cutrent and nen current assets (120.1) 341 (20.2) 0.7 ~ -
Trade creditors 259.2 (6.9) - - ~ -
Dividend payable — Goodman Fielder shareholders 195.3 - - - - -
Other payables 75.9 4.1 (2.3) - - -
Bank overdraft 2.7 - - - - -
QOther interest bearing liabilities 351.4 - - - - -
Current and deferred tax liabilities 55.3 (6.2) - - - -
Provisions 318.4 (11.5) - - - 1.9
{2.220.3) 213.9 (22.5) 0.7 {14.4) 12.7
Qutside equity interests 9.6 - - - - -
Profit on disposal of businesses - 51.6 - - - 0.1
{2,210.7) 265.5 (22.5) 0.7 (14.4) 12.8
(Qutflow)inflow of cash:
Cash (paymentYproceeds (2,164.5) 266.0 (22.5) 0.7 (11.8) 8.9
Cash acquired/{disposed of) 5.7 (5.2) - - - -
(2.158.8) 260.8 (22.5) 0.7 (11.9) 8.9

* Cutrent year proceeds of A5266.0 million include A$105,1 million received in respect of Goodman Figlder's US and Argentinian gelatin operations.
The sale of lhese operatisng had been recognised in the Goodman Fielder financial statements prior ta Burns Philp acquiring controt af Goodman Flelder

on 19 Mareh, 2003, but the proceeds were not received until after that date.

(d) Non cash financing and investing activities

There waere no significant non cash financing and investing activities during the current year,
During the year ended 30 June 2002, A$260.9 millien of 7.5% Notes were bought back pursuant to 8 Notes Buy Back Offer.

Total consideration for the Notes Buy Back comprised cash of A$130.45 million snd a A$130.45 million allotment of converting
preference shares (CF Shares). A35.3 million of the 7.5% Notes were also redeemed for cash during the year ended 30 June 20Q2.

in addition to the A$130.45 miflion allotment of CP Shares pursuant to the Notes Buy Back Offer, a renounceable rights issue
of CP Shares during the year ended 30 June 2002 raised cash of A$104.0 million.

(e) Financing facilities - refer note 14(l).
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l Notes to the Financial Statements

NOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report are:

(a)

)

(<)

(d)

(e)

Basis of Preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial repart which has been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards,
Urgent lssues Group Consensus Views, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board
and the Corporations Act 2001, ‘

It has been prepared on the basis of historical costs and, except where stated, does not take into account changing money
values or fair values of non current assets.

These accounting policies have bean consistently applied by each entity in the consolidated entity and, except where there
is a change in accounting policy, are consistent with those of the previous year.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Burns, Philp & Company Limited (the Company),
being the parent entity, and its controlled entities (the consclidatad entity or the Group).

Controlled entities

The financial statements of controlled entities are included from the date ¢ontrol commences until the date contro! ceases.
Outside interests in the equity and result of the entities that are controlled by the Company are shown as a separate item
in the consolidated financial statements.

Associates

Associates are those entities, other than partnerships, over which the consaclidated entity exercises significant influence
and which are not intended for sale in the near future.

In the consolidated financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for using equity accounting principles.

Investments in associates are carried at the lower of the equity accounted amount and recoverable amount. The consolidated
entity's equity accounted share of the associates' net profit or loss is recognisad in the consolidated statement of finantis!
performance from the date significant influence commences until the date significant influence ceases. Other movements

in reserves are recognised directly in consolidated reserves.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Unrealised gains and losses and inter entity balances resulting from transactions with or between controlled entities are
eliminated in full on ¢consslidation,

Unrealised gains resulting from transactions with associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the consolidated entity's
interest. Unraalised gains relating to associates and joint venture entltles are eliminated against the carrying amount of the investment.
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, unless they evidéence a recoverable amount impairment,

Fareign Currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated 1o Australian currency a1 the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Amounts receivable and payable in foreign currencies at balance date are translated at rates of exchange ruling on that date,

Statements of financial performance for overseas controlled entities are transtated to Australian currency at the weighted average
rates of exchange ruling during the year. All overseas operations are considered to be self-sustaining. On consolidation, exchange
differences arising on the translation of financial statements of overseas controfled entities are transferred directly to the foreign
cyrrency translation reserve together with any exchange gains or losses on foreign currency monetary liabilities, after applicable
income tax, which hedge the net investment, or form part of the net investment, in self-sustaining overseas operations,

Other foreign exchange translation gains or losses arising on current account balances and unhedgad foreign currency
borrowings are reflected in the consolidated result.

Goodwill

Goadwill, being the excess of purchase consideration cver the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired, is amartised on

a straight line basis over the period of expected benefit, not exceeding 20 years. In the years ended 30 June 2003, 2002 and
2001, goodwill has been amortised st an annual rate of 5%, in addition, the carrying value of goodwill is reviewed annually
by the Directors.

Identifiable Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets {(trademarks, tradenames, brandnames and technalogical assets) are amortised on 3 straight’
line basis over the period of expected benefit, not exceeding 40 years. In the years ended 30 June 2003, 2002 and 2001,
identifiable intangible gssets have been amortised at an annual rate of 2.5%. in addition, the carrying vaiue of identifiable
intangible assets is reviewed znnually by the Directors.

BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONYROLLED ENTITIES
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)

(9)

(h)

@®

®

Research and Development

Research and development expenditure, including expenditure on developing, maintaining, enhancing and protecting
termentation technology and other technologies, is charged against the consolidated result in the year in which it is incurred.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Deprecistion is provided on plant and equipment generally on a straight line basis at annual rates varying between 3% and 33%
(2002 — 3% and 33%: 2001 — 3% and 33%) so as to write off the cost of the assets over their expected economic useful llves of
3 to 33 years. Depreciation is also provided on freehold buildings on a straight line basis at annual rates varying between 2%

and 2.5% (2002 = 2%: 2001 - 2%) over their expected economic useful lives of 40 1o 50 years. Leaseheld properties and
improvements are amortised over the economic useful life of the property or the period of the respactive lesse, whichever

is the shorter, at annual rates varying between 3% and 5% (2002 - 3% and 5%, 2001 - 3% and 5%) being 20 ta 33 years,

All items of property, plant and equipment are carried at the lower of cost less accumulated deprecistion and amortisation,
and recoverable amaunt.

Investments

Associates

Investments in associates are accounted for using equity accounting principles. Investments in associates are carried at the lower
of the equity accounted amount and recoverable amount.

QOther Investments

Other investments are carried at the lower of cost and recoverable amount,

Recoverable Amount of Non Current Assets Valued on Cost Basis

The carrying amounts of non current assets valued on the cost basis are reviewed to determine whether they are in excess of
their recoverable amount st balance date. (f the carrying amount of a non current asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is written down to the lower amount. The write down is recognised as an expense in the net profit or loss in the reporting
period in which it occurs.

Wherte a group of assets working together supports the generation of cash inflows, recoverable amount is assessed in relation
to that group of assets, "

In assessing recoverable amounts of non current assets the relevant cash flows have not been discounted to their present value,
except where specifically stated.

Revenue Recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised (net of returns, discounts and allowances) when the risks and rewards of ownership
and title of goods pass to the customer. :

Following the acquisition of Goodman Fielder Limited, the Group has reassessed the presentation of allowances deducted from
gross sales revenue. As a consequence of this, certain payments which were previously recognised in marketing, selling and
distribution expenses have been reclassified and deducted from sales revenye,

The impact of this reclassification is to reduce sales revenue and marketing, selling and distribution expenses by approximately
A$74.2 million in the year ended 30 June 2003, There is no impact on net profit from this reclassification.

Comparative financial information has been reclassified which has resulted in a reduction in consolidated sales revenue of
A368.9 million for the year ended 30 June 2002 and A$64.9 million for the year ended 30 June 2001. The impact on sales
revenue as previously reported by business segment is set out below:

Yeast North America Herbs & Spices Other
A$ million 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Sales revenue previeusly reported 360.8 353.4 439.5 438.9 118.1 125.0
Effect of reclassification (11.1) (12.7) (57.6) {51.5) (0.2} (0.7)
Adjusted sales revenug 349.7 340.7 381.9 387.4 117.8 124.3

Rendering of services

Revenue comprises revenye earned fram provision of services to entities outside the consolidated entity. Revenue is recognised
when the fee in respect of services provided is receivable,

Interest revenue

interest revenue is recognised as it acqrues, taking into account the effective yield on the financial asset.

Ao38
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Notes ta the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k)

)

(m)

(m

(o)

Sale of non current assets

The gross proceeds of non current asset sales are included as revenue 3t the date contral of the asset passes 10 the buyer,
usually when an unconditional contract of sale is signed.

The gain ar loss on disposal is calculated as the difference betwean the carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal
and the net proceeds on disposal,

Dividends
Revenue from dividends and distributions from controllied entities is recognised by the Company when they are declared
by the contralled entities.

Revenue from dividends from other investments are recognised when received.

Berrowing Costs

Borrow'i‘ng costs include interest, amortisation of discounts or pramiums relating to borrowings and amortisation of ancillary costs
incurred in connection with arrangement of borrowings. ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings
are capitalised and amortisad over the life of the borrowings.

Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred unless they relate to qualifying assets. Qualifying assets are assets which take more than
twelve months to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Taxation

The income statement liability method of tax effect accounting is adopted. Under this methed, income tax expense Is based
on accounting profit adjusted for permanent differences between sccounting and taxable income.

Future income tax benefits relating to timing differences are not brought to account unless realisation of the asset is assured beyond
reasonable doubt. Future income tax benefits relating to tax losses are only brought to account when their realisation is virtually certain.

As a consequence of the substantive enactment of the Tax Consolidation legislation and since the consolidated tax group, being
the Company and all Australian resident wholly cwned controlled entities within the ¢onsolidated entity, had not notified the
Australian Taxation Office at the date of signing this report of the implementation date for the tax consolidation, the consclidated
entity has applied UIG 38 "Effect of Propased Tax Consclidation Legislation on Deferred Tax Balances.” There was no impact on
the Group's future income tax benefits as at 30 June 2003,

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is determined on the basis of first-in-first-out, or average
cost, whichever is the most appropriate for each individual business, The method of assigning costs to inventory in each business
is appiled consistently from year (o year, Selling and distribution costs are estimated and deducted to determine net realisable
value, Adequate provision is made for slow moving and obsolete inventory.

The cost of manufactured inventory and werk in progress includes applicable variable and fixed factory overhead costs, the fatter
being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity.

Prepaid Slotting Allowances

The consolidated entity has incurred costs (slotting allowances) in connection with shelf space contracts for certain of its herbs
and spices foad products. Time based comtracts are amortised over the life of the ¢ontract, generally three to five years, Volume
based contracts are amortised over the volume of purchases. Prepaid slotting allowances are not recorded in excess of thelr
recoverabla amount.

Employee Entitlements
Annual leave

The provision for employee entitlements to annual leave represents present obligations resulting from employees’ services
provided up to balance datg, caleulated at undiscounted amounts based on remuneration wage and salary rates that the
consolidated entity expects to pay as at reporting date including related on-costs.

Long service lesve
The provision for employee entitlements 1o long service leave rapresents the present value of the astimated future cash
outflows to be made resulting frarm employees’ services provided up to balance date.

The provision is calculated using expected future increases in wage and salary rates including related on-costs and expected
settlement dates based on turnover history and is discounted using the rates attaching 16 national government securities
at balance date which most closely match the terms of maturity of the related liabilities.

n BURNS, PHILP B COMPANY LIMITED AND IT5 CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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(q)

n

(s)

t)

Superannuation plans .
The Company and other controlled entities contribute to several defined benefit and defined contribution superannuation
plans. Contributions are expensed as incurred.

in the event of an actuarially assessed deficit in a defined benefit plan, a provision is recognised teo fully provide for the
estimated plan deficit. No asset is recognised for any estimated plan surplus.

Statements of Cash Flows

for the purpose of the statements of cash flows, ¢ash includes cash assets net of bank overdrafts,
Converting Financial instruments

Converting financial instrumnents, such as converting preference shares, which must convert to ordinary shares are classified

as contributed equity on initial recognition to the extent that holders are exposed to changes in the fair value of the Company's
ordinary shares with related distributions treated as dividends.

Accounting for Acquisitions

Acquisitions are accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of net tangible assets acquired is allocated first to the fair value of identifiable intangible assets. The remaining cost of
acquisition is then allocated to goodwill,

Provisions

A provision is recognised when there is a legal, equitable or constructive obligation a5 a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the timing or amount of which is uncertain.

Dividends

A provision for dividends payable is recognised in the reporting period in which the dividends are declared, for the entire
undistriputed amount, regardiess of the extent 10 which they will be paid in ¢ash,

Restructuring and employee terminatian benefits

A provision for restructuring, including employee termination benefits, related to an acquired entity or operation is recognised
at the date of acquisition where:

» the main features of the restructuring were announced, implementation of the restructuring commenced, or contracts were
entered by the date of acquisition; and

» 2 detailed formal plan is developed by the earlier of three months after the date of the acquisition and the completion
of this financlal report.

The provision only relates to costs associated with the acquired entity, and is included in the determination of the fair value
of the net assets acquired. The provision includes liabilities for termination benefits that will be paid ta employees of the acquired
entity as a result of the restructuring.

ther provisions for restructuring or termination benefits are only recognised when 2 detailed plan has been approved and
the restructuring or termination benefits has either commenced or been publicly announced, or firm contracts related to the
restructuring or termination benefits have been entered into. Costs related to ongoing activities are not provided for,

Surplus leased premises
Provision is made for non-cancellable operating lease rentals payable on surplus leased premises when it is determined that
no substantive future benefit will be obtained from its occupancy and sub-lease rentals are less than the jease rental payable,

The estimate is calculated based on discounted net future cash flows, using the interest rate implicit in the lease or an
estirnate thereof, ’

Workers® compensation

Goodman Fielder Limited, 3 wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, is 3 licensad self-insurer under the New South Wales Workers'
Compensation Act and the Victorian Acgident Compensation Act. Provisions have been made in respect of all Goodman Fielder
employees in New South Wales and Victoria for all assessed warkers' compensation liabilities, together with an estimate of
liabifities incurred but not reported, based on an independent actuarial assessment. Workers’ compensation cover for ai
remaining employees is insured commercially.

Rounding Off

Burns, Philp & Company Limited is a cormpany of the kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1988 and in
sccordance with that Class Order amounts in the financial report have been rounded off to the nearest tenth of a million deollars
unless ctherwise shown. ’

do4o0
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cohtinued)

NOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenyues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ fram thase estimates.

(v} Changes in Accounting Policies

Foreign currency translation :
The Group has applied the revised Australian Accounting Standard AASB1012 “Foreign Currency Translation” (issued in
Noverber 2000) for the first time from 1 July 2002,

The prirmary change in the revised AASB1012, as it applies to the Group, is the requirernent that financial reports of self-sustaining
foreign operations in hyperinfiationary economies be adjusted for inflation before transiation.

As a result of this change in accounting polloy, the current year's profit from ordinary activities before and after tax decreased
by A$2.2 miliion, There was no impact on opening accumulated losses &t 1 July 2002,

Employee benefits
The Group has applied the revised Australiah Accounting Standard AASB1028 “Etnplayee Benefits” (issued in June 2001)
for the first tirme from 1 July 2002,

The liakility for wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave is now calculated using the remuneration rates the consolidated
entity expects to pay as of each reporting date, not wage and salary rates current as of each reporting date.

As a result of this change in accounting policy, opening accumulated losses at 1 July 2002 increased by A$0.3 million.
The change in accounting policy had na impact on the current year's consolidated profit.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
The Group has applied Australian Accounting Standard AASB1044 “Frovisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
(issued in October 2001) for the first tima frem 1 July 2002, ARSB1044 codifies recognition, measurement and disclosure

requirements for provisions, cantingent lizbilities and contingent assets. Specifically, a provision should only be recognised
when a present obligation exists.

As a result of this change in accounting policy, there was no impact on opening accumulated losses at 1 July 2002
or the current year's consolidated profit,

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE 2. REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
Revenue from operating activities
Sale of goods revenue 1.880.2 1,292.8 1,326.0 - -~
Randering of services revenue 7.0 28.9 30.7 - -
Total revenue from sale of goods and rendering of services 1,887.2 1,322.7 1,356.7 - -
Qther revenues from operating activities:
Interest revenue from controlled entities - - - 216 9.0
Interest revenue from other parties ) 18.0 7.0 13.0 0.4 0.3
Dividends received from controlled entities - - - 1.9 16.0
Proceeds from disposal of non current assets and businasses 23.5 2.3 18.3 - -
Other ‘ 4.0 4,9 3.6 a7 47
Revenue from outside operating activities
Individually significant proceeds from disposal of non
current assets and businesses 169.6 - - - -
individually significant unrealised foreign currency gain 139.1 - - - -
Total revenue from ordinary activities 22414 1,336.1 1,388.6 28.6 30.0

ﬂ BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLER ENTITIES



17/09 '03 WED 07:51 FAX 61 2 9247 3272

BPC LID.
Burns, Philp &
Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE 3. PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE INCOME TAX
(a) Profit from ordinary activities before income tax
has been determined after crediting/(charging):
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of praperty, plant and equipment* 10.4 (2.0 0.4 - -
Nat gain on disposal of other financial assets 0.9 - - - -
Net gain on disposal of businesses** 51.6 - 0.1 - -
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss)*** 138.3 (0.2) (0.3) 4.0 (0.3)
Net bad and doubtful debts expense including movements .
in provision for doubtful debts (4.4) {9.3) (4.1} - -
Operating lease rental expense (12.0) (7.5) 8.1 (0.1) (0.2)
Research and development costs expensed (8.7) (5.8) (7.0 - -
Carrying value of net assets and properties sold** (111.4) - - - -
Deferred borrowing costs written off*~ (32.6) - - - -
Provisions for restructuring of businesses** (52.0) (25.1) - - -
Borrowing costs:
7.5% Notes' - (2.4) {22.4) - -
Debt Bonds {1.8} (10.7) {10.3) - -
Deferred borrowing costs amortised (8.8) {3.9) - - -
Other parties (164.2) (55.9) (63.1) {0.5) (0.1}
Tota) borrowing costs™**~ (174.8) (72.9) (95.8) (0.5) 0.1
Depreciation and amortisation:
Plant and equipment {67.0) " (53.8) (57.4) {0.1) (c.1)
Freehold properties (4.7) (4.8) (5.6) - -
Leasehold properties (0.9) 0.2) (0.1) - -
Leasehold improvernents (1.1) (1.8) (1.8) - -
Goodwill (21.8) {2.5) (1.9) - -
Identifiable intangibles (13.3) (9.4) (3.7) - -
Prepaid slotting allowances (23.4) {32.5) (24.2) - -
Total depreciation and amontisation (131.7) (105.0) (100.7) {0.1) (0.1)

as an individually significant item (refer note 5(b)).

- These amounts have been induded in individually significant items (refer note 3(b)).

has been reporied 8s an individually significamt item (refer note 3(b)).

v*e* To13l borrowing costs of AE174.8 million in the current year do not Include the A$139.1 million untealised foreign currency gain on unhedged borrow!ngs,

The net gain of 4%$10.4 million in the current year incdludes a gain of A$8.8 millign on the sale of the South Yarra property which has been reported

The net gain of A$138.3 million in the current yeor includes an unrealised foreign curreney gain of A$139.1 million on unhedged borrowings which
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million ) 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE 3. PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
(b) Individually significant items
Included in other revenue from ordinary activities 308.7 - - - -
Included in general and administrative expenses from .
- ordinary activities {196.0) (35.2) - - -
112.7 (35.2) — - -
Consisting of:
()  Gain on sale of Australasian Terminals business
Sale proceeds 83.5 - - - _ -
Carrying amount of net assets sold (42.8) - - - -
(i) Gain on sale of North American Industrial Vinegar business
Sale proceeds : 76.9 - - - -
Carrying arnount of net assets sold (66.0) - - - -
(iii) Qain on sale of Svuth Yarra property - - -
Sale proceeds 9.2 - - - -
Carrying amount of property (2.6) - - - -
{iv) Deferred borrowing costs written off - - -
Former senior funding agreement (14.4) - - - -
Acquisition bridge facility {18.2) - - - -
(v) Unreslised foreign currency gain 139.1 - - - -
(vi) Provisions for restructuring of new businesses (52.0) - - - -
(vii} Provision far amounts due from Kmart USA - (10.1) - - -
{viii) Provision for Qakland closure costs - {(25.1) - - -
112.7 (35.2) - - -

(i}  On 7 August 2002, the Company announced that it had entered into an agreement to sell the Terminals business to subsidiaries

of Kaneb Pipe Line Operating Partnership LP. The sale of the business was completed on 18 September 2002, resulting in a
A$40.7 million gain.

(il On 23 August 2002, the Company announced that it had entered into an agreement to sell the North American Industrial
Vinegar business to Swander Pace Capital L.L.C., a private equity investor. The sale was completed on 8 October 2002,
resulting in a A$10.9 million gain.

(il Following the closure of the South Yarra yeast manufacturing facility in Australia in July 2002, the South Yarra property
was sold, resulting in a A$6.6 million gain.

(iv) A part of the acqulsition of Goodman Fielder Limited (refer note 30 for further details), the Group’s senior funding facility was

refinanced. Consequently, deferred costs of A$14.4 million incurred in establishing the Group's previous senior funding facility
were written off.

On 13 March 2003, the Group drew down the entire amount of an A$1.35 billion secured senior share acquisition bridge facility
in order to, among other things, fund acceptances of the offer for Goodman Fielder shares and related expenses, refinance the
Group's existing secured senlor indebtedness and fund working capital requirements. On 4 April 2003, the Group repaid the
A$1.35 billion secured senior share acquisition bridge facility in full. Fallowing the repayment of this share acquisition bridge
facility, the borrowing costs associated with the facility of A$18.2 million were expensed.

(v)  As detailed in note 14, significant additional borrowing arrangements have been entered into to fund the acquisition of
Goodman Fielder Limited. These borrowings have been drawn down mainly in US dollars and are not fully hedged. In accordance

with accaunting poticy 1(c), an unrealised foreign currency gain of A$139.1 million has been included in the current year's
consolidated profit.
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(vi) Following the acquisition of Goodman Fielder Limited on 19 March 2003, the Graup announced a number of restructuring
programs arising from 2 review of Goodman Fielder's operations. These programs included, amongst other things, the closure
of eight regional bakeries in Phase 1 of the Baking Manufacturing Review. As these programs were not announced at the time

of our acquisition, the redundancy and other costs arising from these restructuring programs amounting to A$48.7 million have

been expensed during the current year. in addition, restructuring costs of A$3.3 million have been incurred in respect of the

Group's Fleischmann Latin America acquisition.

{viiy In December 2001, Kmart USA, 3 major customer of the herbs and spices business, announced it was seeking protection from

its creditors under US bankruptcy laws, As & result, & provision of A310.1 million, being the full amount outstanding from Kmart

USA, was made as at 31 December 2001.

(viii) In March 2002, the Group announced the closure of its yeast plant in Ozkland, California. As a result of this decision, the
‘Group recorded an expense of A%$25,1 million, This charge inciuded A$3.2 millien related to expected severance costs and
costs to remediate the fand and a non cash charge of AS21.9 million to record & write-down In the carrying value of the land,

buildings and equiprnent to net realisable vaiue.

Consolidated

Burns, Philp &
Company Limited

AS$'000 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
(c) Auditors’ remuneration
Audit services
Auditors of the Company — KPMG
KPMG Australia }
Audit and review of financial reports* 922.6 336.5 321.0 152.0 110.0
Other regulatory audit services 1.0 11.0 11.0 1.0 11.0
Overseas KPMG firms
Audit and review of financial reports* 751.0 547.1 644.3 ~ -
Other regulatory audit services 58.4 73.9 1131 - -
Total KPMG 1,743.0 968.5 1,089.4 163.0 121.0
Other auditors
Audit and review of financial reports 147.7 23.0 26.0 - -
Total audit services 1.890.7 991.5 1,115.4 163.0 121.0
Other services
Auditors of the Company — KPMG* *
KPMG Australia
US GAAP assurance services*™* 1,246.8 653.5 - - -
Refinancing due diligenca**** 1,340.6 - 2537 - -
Other assurance servicas 141.0 149.2 149.0 12.0 15.0
Ovarseas KPMG firms
US GAAP assurance services®** 546.0 222.5 - - -
Other assurance services 59.2 262.8 743 - -
Taxation 436.0 2249 206.5 - -
Jotal KPMG 3,769.6 1,518.9 683.5 12.0 15.0
Other auditors
Other assurance services 2.9 - - - -
Taxation 5.5 0.1 - - -
Total other services 3,778.0 1,519.0 683.5 12.0 15.0

the services do not impact KPMG's independence.

subordinated Notes,

=+ The 2003 fees represent amounts pald far due diligence reports requirad by the Graup's financiers as a condition of raising additianal funding,

The 2003 fees include amaounts paid in relation to the audit of Goodman Fielder Limited and its contralled entities.

All non-avdit {other services) provided by KPMG are pre-approved by the Audit Committee. As part of this approval process, the Audit Commiltee ensures

The 2003 feas {or US GAAP assurance services represent amounts paid in relation to opinions provided on US GAAP financial information as parl of
raising e 10.75% Sanior Subordinated Notas and the 2.5% Senior Notes, The 2002 fees include amounts paid in relation to the 9.75% Senior

Boas

2003 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Burns, Philp &
Consolidated Company Limited

AS million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE &. INCOME TAX

Income tax {expense)/benefit relating to ordinary activities

Prima facie income tax (expense)/benefit calculated at 30%
-+ (2002 - 30% 2001 — 349%) on profit from ordinary activities (54.9) (36.2) (34.9) (4.5) (4.0)
(increase)decrease in income tax (expense) due to:
Utilisation ofAtax Iossas and timing differences not

previously recognised 44.3 18.8 15.8 1.2 3.3
Non assessable gain on sale of Australasian
Terminals business 12.5 - - - -
Share of net profits of associates 3.3 3.0 4.2 - -
Differances in overseas 1ax rates (8.3) (5.9) 1.2) - -
Amartisation of intangible assets not deductible for tax (10.5) (3.6) (3.9) - -
Rebateable dividends - - - - 4.8
Other permanent adjustments 0.6 3.5 7.8 (0.5) (0.4)
Income tax (expense)/benefit relating 1o ordinary
activities before Indlvidually significant income 1ax items (13.0) (18.3) (12.1) 6.2 3.7

Individuelly significant income tax items:
Income tax (expense) resulting from a subsidiary

ownership restructuring (4.6) - - - -

Recoupment of United States tax losses and timing

differences not previously recognised(b) 9.0 47.9 - - -
Income tax (expense)/benefit relating to ordinary activities (8.6) 28.6 (12.1) 6.2 3.7

Income tax (expense)/benefit is made up of:

Current income tax {expense} {12.0) (15,0} (9.9) 0.9) (C.3)
Deferred income tax benefit/expense) 3.4 43.6 (2.2) 6.6 4.0
(8.6) 28.6 (12.1) 6.2 3.7

Current tax liabilities

Provision for current income tax 29.0 9.9 8.8 0.1 0.1

Deferred tax liahilities
Provision for deferred income tax 22.4 12.0 20.2 - -

Comprises the deferred liability at current income tax
rates of the following items:

Excess of taxation depreciation over accounting depreciation 15.6 9.7 12.4 - -
Unrealised foreign currency gains 47.9 - - - -
Tax lpsses carried forward (41.7) - - - -
Other items 0.6 2.3 7.8 - -

22.4 12.0 20.2 - -

n BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND I¥S CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Burns, Philp &
Consolidatad Company Limited
AS million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
Deferred tax assets
Future income tax benefit 78.2 66.2 5.5 - -
Comprises the future tax benefit at current income '
tax rates of the following items:
Tax losses carried forward 56.2 63.6 23 - -
Provisions 15.0 0.5 2.3 - -
Other items 7.0 . 21 0.9 - -
78.2 66.2 5.8 - ~
Future income tax benefit not recognised(c)
Tax losses 200.5 236.3 285.2 5.1 1.7
Timing differences 95.8 132.5 130.3 - =
296.3 368.8 415.5 5.1 117

(@) The Group had gross deferred tax assets of A$416.2 million (2002 - A3435.0 million; 2001 - A$421.0 millien), a valuation
allowance of A$296.3,0 million (2002 -~ A$3688.8 million; 2001 - A%415.5 million), net deferred tax assets of A$78.2 million
(2002 — A$68.,2 million; 2001 — A$5.5 million), and gross deferred tax habilities of A$64.1 million (2002 = A$12.0 million; 2001 -
A%$20.2 million). The net change in the valuation allowance for the Group for the year ended 30 Jung 2003 was a degrease
of A$72.5 million (2002 ~ A$46.7 million decrease; 2001 - A$5.9 million decrease).

)

=

asset in relation ta.the US businesses of A$9.0 million and A547.9 million, respectively.

The resuits for the years ended 30 june 2003 and 30 June 2002 inciude gains arising on the recegnition of a deferred tax

The recent history of the Group’s US businesses indicates an ongoing improvement in profitability and a return to genegrating
taxable profits. Furthermare, the US businesses are forecast to continue to remain profitable and generate future taxable profits.

Given the forecast profitability and the generation of taxable profits, the Directars are of the opinion that virtual certainty now
exists in relation to the recoverability of a3 component of the unrecognised US future income tax benefit relating
10 18X loss carry forwards and that the recovery of certain timing differences is now assured beyond any reasonable doubt,

{c) The potential future income tax benefit arising from other tax {osses and timing differences has not been recognised as an asset
because recovary of tax losses is not virtually certain and recovery of timing differences is not assured beyond any reasonable
doubt, The potential future incomme tax benefit will enly be realised if thare are no adverse changes in tax legislation and the
companies concerned derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be realised and continue te camply

with the conditions for deductibility imposed by the law,

(d) The adjusted dividend franking account balance in Burns, Philp & Company Limited st 30 June 2003 was Nil (2002 ~ Nil;

2001 ~ A30.9 millicn).

2003 ANNUAL REPORT



17/08 '03 WED 07:53 FAX 61 2 9247 3272

BPC LTD.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Consclidated

Burns, Philp &
Company Limited

A% million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE 5. CASH ASSETS
Cash at bank and on hand 91.4 76.0 304 0.7 5.7
Short term deposits B9.1 832.3 187.8 - -
Restricted deposit - 15.3 ~ - 15.3
Total cash assets 180.5 923.6 2182 0.7 21.0
NOTE 6. RECEIVABLES
Current
Trade debtors 359.4 156.3 226.5 - -
Provision for doubtful debts(a) (10.3) {12.7) {13.2) - -
349.1 143.6 2133 - -
Secured receivables 0.1 0.4 0.4 0.1 0.4
Other recelvables 358 16.4 16.2 2.2 2.4
Amounts receivable fram controlled entities - - - 424.4 2515
Total current receivables 385.0 160.4 229.8 426.7 254.3
Non current
Other receivables 8.4 1.8 4.9 - -~
(a) Movements in provision for doubtful debts were:
Balance at beginning of year 12.7 13.2 11.4 - -
Foreign currency fluctuations (0.9) (5.2) 15 - -
Movement due to business disposals (0.4) - - - -
Additions to provision 3.6 5.8 5.1 - -
Bad debis written off against provision (4.7) {1.1) (4.8) - -
Balance at end of year 10.3 12.7 13.2 - -
NOTE 7. INVENTORIES
Current
Finished goods(a) 147.0 64.7 74.4 - -
Provision against, finished goods(b) (1.4) {1.9) (2.9) - -
Work in progress(a) 23.1 7.6 4.5 - -
Provislon against wark in progress(b) (0.1) - - - -
Raw materials(a) 148.3 55.2 52.5 - -
Provision against raw materials(b) (2.4) (2.5) (0.8) - —~
Total inventaries 314.5 1231 132.7 - -
(a) At cost
(b) Movements in provision for inventory absolescence were:
Balance at beginning of year 4.4 3.7 6.1 - -
Foreign currency fluctuations (0.4) (0.5) 12 - -
Additions 1o provision 0.9 3.7 1.1 - -
inventories written off against provision (1.0) (2.5) (4.7} - -
Balance at end of year 3.9 4.4 3.7 - -

BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND IT5 CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Goav



17/09

'03 WED 07:53 FAX 61 2 9247 3272 BPC LTD, hoas
Burns, Philp &
Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE 8. OTHER ASSETS
Current
Prepayments 27.8 10.6 14.6 4.5 -
Prepaid slotting allowances(a) 10.2 16.4 18.0 - -
Properties held for sale 14.7 - - - -
Deferred expanditure 0.8 0.9 0.3 - -
Total current other assers 53.5 27.9 32.9 4.5 -
Non current
Prepayments 6.9 5.6 6.5 - -
Prepaid slotting allowances(a) 20.3 32.9 36.6 - -
Business acquisition deposit - 20.2 - - -
Deferred berrowing costs(b) 113.2 34.7 1.2 - -
Deferred expenditure 4.4 6.2 6.3 - -
Total non current other ascets 145.5 99.6 50.6 - -
(a) Cost 160.1 172.2 165.8 - -
Accumulated amortisation (129.6) (129.9) (111.2) ~ -
30.5 49.3 54.6 ~ -
(b) Cost 122.7 38.3 1.2 - -
Accumulated amortisation (8.8) (3.6) - ~ -
113.9 34,7 1.2 - -
Consolidated
A% million . 2003 2002 2001
NOTE 3. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
Non current
Associates 53.6 58.6 £66.9

Details of investments in associates are as follows:

Name

% Ownership Interest

Principal Activities Balance Date 2003 2002 2001
Levaduras Collico SA Yeast Manufacgture 30 June ' 50.0 50.0 50.0
Mauri Fermentation (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Yaast Manufacture 30 June 42.0 42.0 42.0
Mauri Fermentation Pakistan (Private) Ltd Yeast Manufacture 30 June 50.0 50.0 50.0
Mauri Products Limited Yeast Manufacture 1S September 50.0 50.0 50.0
Meishan-Mauri Yeast Co Ltd Yeast Manufacture 30 june 50.0 50.0 50.0
Pilmico-Mauri Foods Corporation Yezst Manufacture 30 June 50.0 50.0 50.0
Proofex Products Company Yeast Manufacture 16 Septernber 30.0 30.0 30.0
PT. Indo Fermex Yeast Manufacture 31 December 49.0 43.0 439.0
PT, Sama Indah Yeast Manufacture 31 December 49.0 48.0 49.0
PT. Natraco Spices Indonesia Spices Processing 31 December - 50.0 50.0
Gelec S.A, Food Manufacture 30 Jure 33.3 - -
Fresh Start Bakeries Australia Pty Ltd(a) Buns Manufacture 30 June 90.9 - -~
PT. Sinar Meadow International indonesia Margarine Manufacture 31 December 50.0 - -~
Quingdao Xinghua Foodstuff &
Cereal Oil Co Ltd Food Manufacture 30 June 30.0 - -

2003 ANNUAL REPORT n
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BPC LTD.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

@o49

Consolidated

AS million 2003 2002 2001
NOTE 9. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

(CONTINUED)
Rasults of associates
Share of associates”
Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense 15.2 14.2 16.7
Income tax expense relating te profit from ordinary activities 4.1) (4.1) {4.3)
Share of net-profits of assaciates accounted for using the equity method 11.1 10.1 12.4
Share af post-acquisition retained profits and reserves attributable to associates
Retained proﬁrs
Share of associates’ retajned profits at heginning of year 2.3 7.5 3.7
Share of retained profits of asseciates of Goodman Fielder Limited 0.4 - -
Share of associates’ net profits accounted for using the equity method 11.1 10.1 12.4
Dividends frorn associates (12.7) (15.3) (8.6)
Share of associates’ retained profits at end of year 1.1 23 75
Asset revaluation reserve
Share of associates’ asset revaluatian reserves at beginning and end of year 19.0 18.0 19.0
Foreign currency translation reserve
Share of associates’ foreign currency translation reserves at beginning of year (24.5) (20.9) (25.6)
Share of (decrement)/increment in associates’ foreign currency transiation raserves (2.5) (3.6) 4.7
Share of associates' foreign currency translation reserves at end of year (32.0) (24.5) {20.9)
Other reserves
Share of associates’ other reserves st beginning and end of year 18.9 18.9 18.¢ -
Movements in carrying amount of investments
Carrying amount of investments in associates at beginning of year 58.6 66.9 S8.1
Associates acquired with Goodman Fielder Limited 4.6 - -
Share of net profits of associztes 11.1 10.1 12.4
Dividends received from associates {12.7) (15.3) (8.6)
Share of (decrement)increment in associates' foreign currency translation reserves (7.5) (3.5) 4.7
Capital contributed to an associate 0.2 0.5 0.3
Return of capital by an associate (0.7) - =
Carrying amount of investments in associates at end of year(b) 53.6 £8.6 £6.9

n BURNS, FHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Consolidated
AS million 2003 2002 2001

Summary performance and financial pesition of associates
The consolidated entity's share of aggregate assets, liabilities and profits of
associates are as follows:

Net profit = as reported by associates and equity adjusted(c) 111 10.1 12.4
Net assets _

Current assets 23.5 27.9 31.4
Non current assets 54.9 48.4 52.6
Total assets : 84.4 76.3 84.0
Current liabilities 18.9 12,5 13.4
Non current lizbilities 11.9 5.2 3.7
Total liabilities 30.8 17.7 17.1
Net assets — 3s reported by associates and equity adjusted(c) 53.6 58.6 . 669

{a) At 30 June 2003, the Group owned more than 50% of the equity in Fresh Start Bakeries Australia Pty Limited, but did not control
this entity. Under a shareholder agreement, the Group did not control a majority of the board of directors and did not have contro!

of the operating and financial decisions. Subsequent to year end, in accordance with the shareholder agreement, the Group's
ownership interest has been reduced to 50%.

{b) No individual investment in an associate is material in amount,

(c) There were no adjustments arising frorm equity accounting.

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
_ NOTE 10. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Non current
Shares in controlled entities(a) - - - 230.4 132.9
Shares in other listed corporation{b) 4.0 4.0 7.6 - -
Interest bearing deposits 0.7 2.7 - - —-
Total non current other financial assets 4,7 6.7 7.6 230.4 132.9
(3) Shares in controlled entities:
Cost - - - 259.6 162.1
Provision for diminution in value - - - (29.2) (28.2)
- - - 230.4 132.9

(b) Written down to receverable amount,

2003 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment
Cost 1.014.8 788.6 929.5 1.4 1.3
Accumulated depreciation {334.7) (427.8) (479.9) (1.3) (1.2)
680.1 3608 449.6 0.1 o1
Freehold properties(a)
Cost 414.9 206.7 242.9 - -
Accumulated depreciation (18.4) (24.3) (23.3) - -
396.5 182.4 219.6 - -
Leasehold properties(a)
Cost 24.0 8.0 5.9 - -
Accumulated amortisation (1.5) (0.6) 0.5) - -
22.5 7.4 5.4 - -
Leaseheld improvements
Cost 21.1 38.4 40.7 - -
Accumulated amortisation (5.3) (11.8) (11.2) - -
15.8 26,6 29.5 - -
Tota!l property, plant and equipment 1.114,9 577.2 704.1 0.1 0.1
(3) The carrying amaunt of freehold and lgasehald
propenties comarises;
Goodman Fielder properties 2543 - - - -
Other Group properties 164.7 189.8 225.0 - -
419.0 189.8 225.0 - -

The Goodman Fielder properties are included in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2003 at their
fair values at acquisition date, 19 March 2003, less depreciation and amortisation provided since that date,

independent valuations, on an existing use basis of valuation, were obtained for all other Group properties at 30 June 2003,
These valuatians, which disclosed a surplus of A$33.1 million pver the carrying amount of A5164,7 million, have not been
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position.

BURNS, PHILF & COMPANY LIMITED aND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES



17/09 '03 WED 07:54 FAX 61 2 9247 3272 BPC LTID. @os52

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2Q02
(b) Reconciliations of the ¢arrying amounts for each
class of property, plant and equipment are set out below:
Plant and equipment
Carrying amount at beginning of year 360.8 449.6 3812 0.1 0.2
Foreign currency fluctuations (27.9) (94.1) 47.9 - -
Movement due to business acquisitions 466.6 - - - -
Movement due 1o business disposals (114.8) - - - -
Additions 63.2 76.1 79.8 0.1 -
Dispasals (7.2) (17.5) (8.5) - -
Depreciation (67.0) {(53.8) (57.4) {0.1} (0.1}
Reclassifications - 0.5 1.8 - -
Carrying amount at end of year 680.1 360.8 449.6 0.1 0.1
Freehold properties
Carrying amount at beginning of year ‘ 182.4 2136 197.8 - -
Foreign currency fluctuations (16.8) (25.4) 23.7 - -
Movement due to business acquisitions 249.4 - - - -
Movement due to business disposals (13.2) - - - -
Additions 10.0 3.0 5.7 - -
Disposals (10.6) 2.8 (2.0) - -
Depreciation ' 4.7) (4.8) (5.6) - -
Reclassifications - (3.2) - - —
Carrying amount at end of year 396.5 182.4 219.6 - -
Leasehold properties
Carrying amount at beginning of year 7.4 5.4 4. - -
Foreign currency fluctuations (0.9) 0.2 0.2 - -
Movement due to business acquisitions 15.9 - - - -
Movement due to business disposals (0.2) - - - -
Additions 0.7 2.0 1.4 - -
Amortisation (0.4) (0.2) (0.1 - -
Reclassification - - 0.2} - -
Carrying amount at end of year 225 7.4 sS4 - —
Leasehold improvements
Carrying amount 2t beginning of year 26.6 295 22.8 - -
Foreign currency fluctuations 3.2) (2.2) 3.1 - -
Movement due to business disposals (6.8) - - - -
Additions 0.3 1.2 1.9 - -
Disposals - (0.1) - - -
Amortisation (1.1) (1.8) (1.8) - -
Reclassifications - - 35 - -
Carrying amount at end of year 15.8 26.6 29.5 - -

2003 ANNUAL REPORT



17/09 '03 WED 07:54 FAX 61 2 9247 3272

BPC LTID.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Consolidated

8urns, Philp &
Company Limited

AS million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE 12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ldentifiable intangible assets

Cost 969.3 331.2 398.6 - -
Accumulated amaortisation (45.4) {34.3) (29.6) - -
Total identifiable intangible assets 923.9 296.9 363.0 — -
Purchased goodwill

Cost{a) 1,374.1 36.1 54.3 - -
Accumulated amentisation {32.7} (13.8) (15.8) - -
Total purchased goodwill 1,341.4 225 38.5 - ~
Total intangible assets 2,265.3 319.4 407.5 - -
{(a) Written down 1o recoverable amount where appropriate.

NOTE 13. PAYABLES

Current

Trade credltors 312.3 68.0 86.0 - -
Other creditors and accruals 187.4 74.8 88.7 5.4 3.1
Owing 1o controlied entities - - - 62.0 3.7
Total current payables 499.7 142.5 174.7 67.4 6.3
Non current

Other creditors 6.2 3.5 - - -

BURNS, PHILF & COMPANY LIMITED AND IT5 CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Burns, Philp &
Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE 14. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
. Current
Secured
Senior indebtedness
Term loan facilities(d) 94.0 - - - -
Revolving loan facility(d) 60.0 - - - -
Other - 17.8 19.7 - -
Bank overdrafts(e) 11 0.9 2.2 - -
7.5% Notes - - 260.9 - -
Other indebtedness(e) 10.4 12.3 - - -
Unsecured
Bank overdrafis(e) 1.4 - - - -
Convertible debt bonds(j) - 174.8 - - -
Other indebtedness(e) 11.9 - - - -
Total current interest bearing liabilities(b)(c) 178.8 205.8 282.8 - -
Non current
Secured
Senior indebtedness
Term loan facilities(d) 1.572.1 - - - -
Other - 738.7 816.7 -
7.5% Notes - - 5.3 - -
Other indebtednessie) - - 8.5 - -
Unsecured
9.5% Senior Notes due 2010(h) 149.9 - - - -
10.75% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2011(a){g) 299.6 - - - -
5.75% Senior Subecrdinated Notes gue 2012(f) 599.8 711.0 - - -
New Zealand Subordinated Capital Notes(i) 185.7 - - - -
Convartible debt bonds - - 197.4 - -
Qther indebtedness(e) 6.7 - - - -
Total non current interest bearing liabilities{b)¢) 28138 1,449.7 1.028.9 - -
{a) Notes paysble 314.9 - - - -
Unamortised discount (15.3) - - - -
299.6 - - - -~
(b) Interest bearing liabilities by currency:
United States doliars 1,458.2 1.526.7 828.8 - -
Australian dollars 1,238.9 ~ 402.3 - -
New Zealand dollars 199.0 14.3 13.6 - -
Canadian dollars 40.4 42.3 34.9 - -
Euro 383 66.0 - - -
Others 17.8 6.2 32.1 - -
Tota! interest bearing liabilities 2,992.6 1,655.5 1,311.7 - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 14, INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

{c) Consolidated interest bearing liabilities by maturity at 30 June:

Sanior 2040 2011 2012 NZ Capital Bank Other Other
indebtedness Notes Nates Nates Notes Overdrafts Indebtedness Indebtedness
&S mitllan Floating Fixed Fined Fixed Fixed Floating Floating Fixad Toual
2003 -
1 year or less 154.0 - - - -~ 2.5 15.2 7.1 178.8
110 2 years 144.0 - - - -~ - - 6.7 150.7
2to 3 years 189.0 - - - - - - - 189.0
3 1o 4 years 229.0 - - - ~ - - - 229.0
410 5 years 629.0 - - - - - - - 629.0
5 to 6 years 381.1 - - - 151.7 - - - $32.8
6 to 10 years - 149,89 299.6 599.8 34.0 - - - 1,083.3
1,726.1 149.9 299.6 599.8 185.7 2.5 15.2 13.8 2,992.6
Weighted
average
interest rate 7.11% 8.50% 10.75% 9.75% 9.79% 10.70% 5.60% 10.23% 8.30%
senior 2012 Debt Bank Other Other
Indebtedness Nates 8onds Overdrafts  Indebtedness  indebtedness
AS emillion Floating Flxed Fixed Floating Floating Fixed Total
2002
1 year or less 17.8 - 1748 0.8 8.5 3.8 205.8
110 2 years 22.2 ~ - - - - . 22.2
210 3 years 97.8 ~ - - - - 97.8
310 4 years 128.9 ~ - - - - 128.9
4 to 5 years 488.8 - - - - - 489.8
10 to 11 years - 711.0 - - - - 711.0
756.5 711.0 174.8 0.9 8.5 3.8 1,655.5
Weighted
average _
interest rate 3.85% 3.75% 5.5% 14.78% 5.18% $.63% 6.57%
Senior Senlar 7.5% Pebt Bank Other
indebtedness  Indebtedness Notes Bonds Overdrats Indebledness
A% million Floating Fixed Fixed Fixed Floating Floating Tolal
2001~
1 year or less 595.0 241.4 260.9 - 2.2 9.5 1,108.0
2 10 3 yesrs —~ - 5.3 197.4 - —~ 202.7
585.0 241.4 266.2 1837.4 2.2 9.5 1,311.7
Weighted
average ‘
interest rate 6.81% 7.89% 7.50% 5.50% 6.91% 6.91% 7.00%

* The 2001 classifications were determined prior to tha refinancing which oceurrad subsequent to year end on 13 August 2001,

n BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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{d) Senior indebtedness as 2t 30 June 2003 consisted of A$1,726.1 million (equivalent) drawn under the Group's secured senior

(e

)

=~

credit facllities. As at 30 June 2003, A3154.0 million of this indebtedness is classified as a current liability and A31,572.1 million
as a non current liability.

Term A Loan Senior Funding Agreement

On 16 January 2003, the Group entered into 8 A$1.4 billion five year senior secured credit facility, which is governed by the

Term A Loan Senior Funding Agreement, comprised of an A$1.3 billian term loan facility, referred to as the Term A loan facility,
available for the purpese of funding the acquisition of Goodman Fielder, refinancing the then existing senior secured indebtedness,
the expected repayment of certain indebtedness of Goodman Fielder and for other corporate purposes, and an A$100.0 miflion
revolving loan facility which is available for warking capital purposes. Certain controlled entities of 8urns Philp are permitted to
make borrowings under the Term A joan facility and tha revolving loan facility. On 3 April 2003, the Group drew down A$1.3
billion under the term loan facility. As at 30 June 2003, the Group had drawn down A%$60.0 million of the revolving facility.

Term B Secured Senior Loan Facility

On 20 February 2003, the Group entered into a US$270.0 million six year senior secured credit facility, referred to as the

Term B loan facility, for the purpose of funding the acquisition of Goodman Fielder, refinancing the then existing senior secured
indebtedness, the expected repayment of certain indebtedness of Goodman Fielder and for other corporate purpases. A wholly
owned controlied entity of Burns Philp is the sole borrower under the Term B loan facility. Cn 2 April 2003, the Group drew
down US$270.0 million under this facility.

Security Arrangements

Burns Philp and its major asset owning controlied entities in Australia and certain other jurisdictions have granted security over
their assets as security for the Term A loan facility, the revolving loan facility, the Termn B loan facility and certain working capital
facilities and treasury transactions, in favour of a security trustee.

The Group has granted security interests 1o the security trustee on trust for the lenders of these facilities by way of a Security
Trust Deed dated 28 July 1998, a Debenture Trust Deed dated 28 July 1998, fixed and floating equitable charges granted by
Burns Philp and certain Australian controlled entities, and various other forms of security granted by non-Australian controlied
entities in other jurisdictions. As at 30 June 2003, Goodman Fielder Limited and its controlled entities had not become guarantors
of these facilities, and had not granted security over their assets to secure these facilities. However, Goodman Fielder Limited and
cartain of its Australian controlled entities have since bacome guarantors of these fagilities and have granted certain security over
their assets to sacure these facilities. Under Australian corporations law, any guarantees or securities given by Goodman Fielder
Limited or its Austrafian controlled entities in relation to the facilities could anly be given subject to obtaining tha approval of
Burns Philp's shareholders. This approval was obtained at an Extragrdinary Genersl Meating of Burns Philp held on 23 July 2003.
In addition, Burns Philp intends for certain of the Goadman Fieider Limited controlled entities incorporated cutside of Australiz to
became guarantars of these facilities and to grant security over their assets 10 secure these facilities to the extent required by the
loan agreements and, as a result, substantially all of the Group's assets will be pledged to secure the senior indebtedness.

in addition to the Term A loan facility, the revolving loan facility and the Term B loan facility, there are 3 number of other financings
typically invalving small amounts extended to operating companies in the Group. Thase faciiities are either secured by the security
arrangements referred to in (d) above, or have the benefit of securities at the operating company level, or are unsecured.

On 21 June 2002, a controlled entity of Burns, Philp & Company Limited issued in a private offering, US$400 miilion of Senior
Subordinated Notes (9.75% Senior Subordinated Notes) that bear interest at 9.75% and mature on 15 July 2012,

The payment of principal and interest, and the performance of all other obligations in respect of the 9.75% Senior Subordinated
Notes, are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Burns, Fhilp & Company Limited and certain of its controlled entities, including
Goodman Fielder Limited and certain of its controlled entities. Both the 9.75% Senior Subordinated Notes and the guarantees are
senior subordinated obligations of the issuer and the guarantors, ranking equally with their other senior subordinated debt

and subordinated to their senior debt (that is, debt which is not subordinated 1o other debt).

The Cempany has lodged with the Securities and Exchange Commission in the United States a Form F-4 Registration Statement for
registration of an exchange offer under which the 8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes will be exchanged for identicsl registered notes,

On 20 February 2003, a controlled entity of Burns, Philp & Company Limited issued in a private offering, U5$210 million of Senior
Subordinated Notes (10.75% Senior Subordinated Notes). These notes were issued with an original issue discount of US$10.7
million, bear interest at 10.75% and mature on 15 February 2011,

The payment of principal and interest, and the performance of all other obligations in respect of the 10.75% Senior Subordinated
Notes, are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Burns, Philp & Company Limited and certain of its controlled entities, including
Goodman Fielder Limited and certain of its controlled entities. Both the 10.75% Senior Subordinated Notes and the guarantees
are senior subordinated obligations of the issuer and the guarantors, ranking equally with their other senior subordinated debt
and subordinated to their senior debt,

The Company has lodged with the Securities and Exchange Commission in the United States a Form F-4 Registration Statement for
registration of an exchange offer under which the 10.75% Senior Subordinated Notes will be exchanged for identical registered notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 14. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(h) On 16 June 2003, a controlled entity of Burns, Philp & Company Limited issued in a private offering, US$$100 million of Senior
Notes (9.5% Senior Notes) that bear interest at 9.5% and mature on 15 November 2010.

The payment of principal and interest, and the performance of all other obligations in respect of the 3.5% Senior Notes, are fully
and uncanditionally guaranteed by Burns, Philp & Company Limited and certain of its controlled entities, including Goodman
Fielder Limited and certain of its controlied entities. Both the 9.5% Senior Notes and the guarantess are senior unsubordinated
obligations of the issuer and the guarantors, ranking equally with their other senior debt.

The Company has ladged with the Securities and Exchange Commission in the United States a Form F-4 Registration Staterent
for registration of an exchange offer under which the 3.5% Senior Notes wili be excharged for identical registered notes.

(i) New Zealand Subordinated Capital Notes

The Group has issued NZ$212.5 million of New Zealand Subordinated Capital Notes (Capital Notes). These instruments were issued
by 3 newly created controlled entity, Goodman Finance Limited, and are general unsecured obligations of this controlled entity,
guaranteed by Burns, Philp & Company Limited and certain of its controlied entities, including Goodman Fielder Limited and
certain of its controlied entities. Both the Capital Notes and the guarantees are subordinated obligations of the issuer and the
guarantors, rapking behind all their other secured and unsecured liabilities.

The Capital Notas ware issued in two series, one series of which mature on the fifth anniversary of their issue date and bear
interest at a rate of 9.75% and, the other series which mature on the eighth anniversary of their issue date and bear interest
at a rate of 9.95%.

Upan the maturity of the Capital Notes, the Capital Notes may continue upon new terms (if this is proposed by the issuer and if
the noteholder accepts the new terms), or may be redeamed in cash equal to the face value of the Capital Notes, or at the sole
discretion of the issuer, may be redeemed by Burns, Philp & Company Limited issuing ordinary shares for the face value of the
Capital Notes,

() All of the outstanding convertible debt bonds were redeemed by Burns Philp Treasury (Europe) BV on 9 September 2002,
(k) Refer nate 31 for additional financial instruments disclosure.
{l) Financing Facilities

Details of the consolidated entity's committed financing facilities as at 30 June are set out belaw:

Consolidated

2003 Average 2002 Average 2001 Average
AS millian Maturity A% million Maturity A% million Maturity
Bank overdrafts 19.3 1.0 years 83  0.9years 51.7 0.3 years
Bank loan facilities 1,801.7 4.8 years 792.1 4.1 years 591.7 0.1 years
Senior Notes 1499 7.4 years - -
Senior Subordinated Notes 899.4 8.7 years 711.0 10.0 years -
New Zealand Subcrdinated
Capital Notes 185.7 6.0 years - -
Debt Bonds - 174.8 1.8 years 197.4 2.8 years
7.5% Notes - - 266.2 0.1 years
Other note issuance facilities - - 2431.5 0.1 years
Jotal commitied lines of credit 3,056.0 1,686.2 1,348.5
Add cash 180.5 9236 218.2
Less interest bearing liabilities (2.992.6) (1,655.5) (1,311.7)
Undrawn lines of credit and cash 2439 954.3 253.0

(m) Securitisation Pragram

A controlled entity has entered into 3 receivables purchase agreement which enables it to securitise selected amounts of its debtors
portfolio up to a limit of A$50.0 million {2002 ~ Nif; 2001 - Nil). At 30 June 2003, A$50.0 million (2002 ~ Nil; 2001 — Nil) has
been securitised and is not included in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Burns, Philp &
Consolidated Company Limited

AS miilion . 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE 15. PROVISIONS
Current )
Employee benefits 54.1 13.7 14,7 Q.7 0.5
Business closure and rationalisation 75.7 7.7 4.1 - -
Workers' compensation (refer note 1(s)) 11.4 - - - -
Legal claims 26.9 1.1 - - i1
CP Shares dividend - 4.4 - - 4.4
Other 27.4 11.6 255 - 0.2
Total current provisions 195.5 38.5 44.3 0.7 6.2
Non qurrent
Employee benefits 55.3 23.0 23.2 0.5 0.5
Workers' compensation (refer note 1(s)) 34.4 - - - ~
Other 10.7 0.1 - - -~
Total non cufrent provisions 100.4 231 23.2 0.5 0.5
{a) Reconciliations of the carrying amount of each class

of provision, except for employse benefits, are

Set out below:

Business ¢losure and ratienalisation — current

Carrying amount at beginning of year 2.7 -

Foreign currency fluctuations (0.9) -

Movement due to business acquisitions 70.3 -

Provisions made during the year 52.0 -

Payments made during the year (53.4) -

Carrying amount at end of year 75.7 -

Workers” compensation —~ current

Carrying amount at beginning of year - -

Movement due to business acquisitions 13.4 -

Provisions made during the year 5.2 -

Payments made during the year (7.2) -

Carrying ameunt st end of year 11.4 -

Legal claims — current

Carrying amount at beginning of year 1.1 1.1

Movement due to business acquisitions 26.9 -

Provisions made during the year (0.8) (0.8)

Payments mage during the year {0.3) {0.3)

Carrying amount at end of year 26.9 -

1

CP Shares dividend — current

Carrying amount at beginning of year 4.4 4.4

Dividend paid during the year 4.9) 4.8)

Carrying amount at end of year
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited

AS million : 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE 15. PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)

Qther ~ current

Carrying amount at beginning of year ' 11.6 0.2

Foreign currency fluctuations (1.2) -

Movement due to business acquisitions 84.1 -

Movement due t@ business disposals (9.8) -

Provisions made during the year 20.9 - -

Payments made during the year (78.2) (0.2)

Carrying amount at end of year 27.4 -

Workers’ compensation — non current

Carrying amount 3t beginning of year - -
Movement due to business acquisitions 31.9 -
Provisions made during the year 2.5 -
Carrying amount at end of year 344 -

Other — non current

Carrying amaunt at beginning of year 0.1 -
Movement due 1o bysiness acquisitions 10.6 -
Carrying amaunt at end of year 10.7 -
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Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE 16. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Issued and paid up share capital
1,780,681,266 (2002 — 802,685,892;
2001 - £98,822,121) ordinary shares, fully paid 2320,0 634.4 613.7 830.0 ©634.4
787,371,189 (2002 — 797,395,767; 2001 - Nil}
converting preference shares, fully paid 233.9 233.9 - 23329 2338
Total contributed equity 1,063.9 £68.3 613.7 1,063.9 268.3

Movements since 30 June 2000 in Burns, Philp & Company Limited ordinary shares, converting preference shares (CP Shares),
share options {2003 Options) and the Debt Bonds issued by Burns Philp Tressury (Europe) BV have been as follows:

Ordinary Shares

Number of shares AS million
Ordinary shares at 3¢ June 2000 538,844,137 581.5
Exercise of 2003 Options 161,077,984 32.2
QOrdinary shares at 30 June 2001 689,922,121 €13.7
Exercise of 2003 Options 101,136,905 ) - 202
Conversion of CP Shares 1,626,966 0.5
Ordinary shares at 30 June 2002 802,685,992 634.4
Exercise of 2003 options 977,970,706 195.6
Conversion of CP Shares 24,568 -
Ordinary shares at 30 June 2003 1,780,681,266 230.0
Exercise of 2003 Options since year end 251,082,230 50.2
Conversion of CP Shares since year end 67,839 -
Ordinary Shares at 4 September 2003 2,031,831.338 880.2

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time t¢ time and, at members' meetings,
are entitled 10 one vote on a show of hands and one vote per share on a poll.

In the event of winding up of the Company, ordinary shareholders rank after secured and unsecured creditors and holders
of the CP Shares (but only as to payment of any declared and unpaid dividend and the repayment of capital) and are fully
entitled to the balance of any proceeds on liquidation.

Converting Preference Shares (CP Shares)

Number of shares AS million
CP Shares at 30 June 2000 and 30 June 2001 - -
CP Shares issued : 799,022,733 239.7
CP Share issue costs - (5.3)
CP Shares converted into ordinary shares (1,626,966) {0.5)
CP Shares at 30 June 2002 797,395,767 2339
CP Shares converted into ordinary shares (24,568) - -
CP Shares at, 30 June 2003 ’ 797,371,199 233.9
CP Shares converted inte ordinary shares since ygar end (67,839) -
CP Shares at 4 September 2003 797,303,360 233.9
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 16. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY (CONTINUED)

Holders of CP Shares are entitled to receive, where there are profits available for the payment of dividends, 5 cumulative preferential
dividend of 7.5% per annum based on the issue price of A$0.30, payable quarterly with no guarantee of franking. Each CP Share will
convert (subject to takeaver laws) into one ordinary share at any time during its five year term at the optien of the holdeér, or otherwise
on the fifth anniversary of its issue date of 13 August 2001 (or, in certain limited circumstances, later). No further payment will be
required by the holder on conversion of the CP Shares, The conversion ratio will be adjusted in <ertain circumstances, including

on the final ¢onversion date if any cumulative dividend remains undeclarad.

Holders of CP Shares have the fight to attend but no right to vote at members' meetings. In the event of winding up of the Company,
CP shareholders rank after creditors but in priority to any other class of shares as to payment of any declared and unpaid dividend
and the repayment of capital.

Guaranteed Subordinated Convertibie Debt Bonds (Debt Bonds)

Nurnber of bonds AS million
Issued Debt Bonds at 30 June 2000 20,000 167.2
Foreign currency fluctuation - 30.2
lssued Dabt Bonds at 30 June 2001 20,000 187.4
Debt Bonds bought back and cancelled {335) (3.1}
Foreign currency fluctuation ' - (19.5)
issued Debt Bonds st 30 June 2002 . 19,665 174.8
Foreign currency fluctuation - 6.3
Debt Bonds redeerned and cancelled (19,665) {181.1)

Issued Debt Bonds at 30 June 2003

The Debt Bonds due 2004 were issued by Burns Philp Treasury (Europe) BV (BPTE), together with non detachable subordinated
conversion bonds (Conversion Bonds) issued by Burns, Philp & Company Limited, on 24 March 1994.

On 9 September 2002, BPTE, after having given notice to the Trustee and holders of the Debt Bonds on 1 August 2002, redeemed

all the outstanding Debt Bonds. Upon redemption of the Debt Bonds, the Debt Bonds and the attached Conversion Bonds were
cancelled.

Share Options (2003 Options)

Number of Options

Total number of 2003 Options Issued
2003 Options exercised 2t 30 June 2002

1.500,000,000

{270,458,276)
2003 Options exercised during the current year {977,970,706)
2003 Opticns at 30 June 2003 251,571,018
2003 Options exercised since year end (251,082,23Q)
2003 Optians [apsed (as nat exercised) since year end ’ (488,788)

2003 Options at 4 September 2003

The terms of the 2003 Options were set out in a Notes Trust Deed dated 11 August 1998,
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The main terms of the 2003 Options were as follows:

] issuer: Burns, Philp & Company Limited,
2 Exercise Price: A$0.20
3 Exercise Dates: The holder could elect to exercise the 2003 Options in whole or in part

(in muitiples of 100 unless exercising all options held) at any time up
untit 5.00 pm on 14 August 2003. Any 2003 Options not exercised
automatically lapsed.

4 Tradeability: The 2003 Options were quoted on the ASX under code BPCO, ASX guotation
of the 2003 Options ceased on 7 August 2003.

5 Ranking of shares issued Ordinary sharas issued on exercise of 2003 Optians rank in all respects pari
on exercise of Options: passu with the Company’s issued ordinary shares.

& Rights of Option holders to A holder of 2003 Options was entitled to participate in new issues of securities
participate in any share issue (other than issues of Bonus Shares as defined in the Notes Trust Deed) of
or interest issue of the Company: Burns, Philp & Company Limited 16 holders of ordinary shares without

exercising the 2003 Options.

New Zealand Subordinated Capital Notes

A controlied entity issued NZ$212,5 million of New Zealand Subordinated Capital Notes (Capital Notes) during the current year which
may, upen maturity and at the sole discretion of the issuer, be redeemed by Burns, Philp & Company Limited issuing erdinary shares
for the face value of the Capital Notes (refer note 14 for further details).

Employee Share Plans

Employee share plans — still operate for employess in Australia, New Zealand, Indonesia and Malaysia. The structures of the plans
vary depending on local |egisiative and taxation requirements, but In most locations interest free loans have been provided to enable
employees ta purchase up to 500 ordinary shares each, The last loans were provided in 1997 and there is no present intention to
provide further loans.

Executive share plan — ordinary shares are held under this plan by executives. Interest free loans were provided to enable executives
to purchase ordinary shares at market value. Entitlement was based on seniority. No ordinary shares were allotted to employees under
this plan during the year. The plan was replaced by the incentive plan in 1992.

During the current year the shares of those members of the Employee and Executive share plans who were no longer employees were
sold, with the proceeds of sale being applied to repay outstanding loans and any residual loan balances being forgiven.

The number of participants, ordinary shares and the value of outstanding loans under the Employee and Executive share plans
at 30 June 2003 were:

Ordinary Loans

Members Sharesg A$'000

Employee share plans 41 24,405 58.4
Executive share plan 2 28,900 51.3
a3 53,305 109.7

Goodman Fielder Employee Share Plans

All of the shares issued under the Goodman Fielder Employee Share Plans (in¢luding the Long Term Incentive Plans) were acquired
pursuant to the Burns Philp offer or compulsory acquisition.

Employee Share Option Plans

Incentive plan — under an incentive plan available 1o executives worldwide prior to 1998, participants could purchase a specified
number of options based on seniority, The exercise price of the aptions was based on the market price of the Company’s ordinary
shares at the time of issue of the opticns. During the current year no options were issued, no options were exercised and 69,550
aptions were forfeited on expiry on 1 October 2002, No options were on issug &t 30 June 2003 and there is no present intention
to offer further options.

Goedman Fielder Employee Share Option Plans

All of the options issuad under the Goedman Fielder Employee Share Option Plans were acquired pursuant to the Burns Philp offer
or compulsory acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Consolidated

Burns, Philp &
Company Limited

AS million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE 17. RESERVES
Capital reserves
Asset revgluation reserve 106.4 106.4 106.4 220 22.0
Other capital reserves 8.8 8.8 8.8 a.1 Q.1
115.2 115.2 115.2 221 22.1
Revenue reserve
Genersl reserve 18.1 181 18.1 - -
Fareign currency translation reserve(z) (367.7) (292.5) (115.5) (3.9) (3.9)
Total reserves (234.4) (159.2) i7.8 18.2 18.2
(a) Movements in foreign currency translation reserve were:
Balance at beginning of year (292.5) (115.5) (136.5) (3.9) (3.9)
Net foreign exchange translation (lossygain
transferred directly 1o reserve:
Controlled entities
Net translation (loss)/gain (54.7) (200.3) 16.3 - -
Related deferred income tax {expensel/beneflt (13.0) 26.9 - - -
Associates
Net transiation (loss)/gain (7.5) (3.6) 4.7 - -
Balance at end of year (367.7) (292.5) (115.5) {3.9) (3.9)

b

~

Nature and purpose of reserves
Asset revagluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve comprises the net revaluation increments and decrements arising in prior years from the revaluation

of properties, identifiable intangibles and other financia! assets. As a result of adopting the deemed cost election for these classes

of assets an the application of AASB 1041 from 1 July 2000, the reserve balance is not available for future property, identifiable

intangible or other financial asset write downs.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve records the foreign currency differences arising from the translation of self-sustaining
foreign operations and the transiation of transactions that hedge the consclidated entity's net investmeant in foreign operatians
or the translation of foreign currency monetary iterms forming part of the net investment in self-sustaining cperations, net of

related income tax expense/benefit.

Other capital reserves and general reserve

The amounis standing to the credit of other capital reserves and the general resarve resulted from histarical transactions,

These balances are availahle for transfer into retained earnings.

BURNS, PHILP B COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Burns, Philp &
Consclidated Company Limited
AS million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE 18, ACCUMULATED LOSSES
Accumulated losses at beginning of year (248.5) (378.8) (467.3) (491.8) (492.8)
Net profit attributable to Burns, Philp & Company
Limited shareholders 170.0 146.2 88.5 21.3 16.9
Dividends paid or payable — CP Shares(a) (17.9) (15.9) - (17.9) (15.9)
Net increase in accumulated losses on initial adoption
of Revised AASB 1028 "Employese Benefits” (refer note 1(v)) (0.3) - - - -
Accumulated losses at end of year (96.7) (248.5) (378.8) (488.9) (491.8)
() Details of dividends paid or payable on CP Shares are:
2003
Paid 30 September 2002 0.56100 cents per share (unfranked) (4.5) - - (4.5) -
Paid 31 December 2002 0.56710 cents per share (unfranked) (4.5 - - (4.5) -
Paid 31 March 2003 0.55480 cents per share (unfranked) (4.4) - - (4.4) -
Paid 30 June 2003 0.86100 cents per share (unfranked) {4.5) - - (4.5) -
2002
Paid 2 October 2001 0.31438 cents per share (franked
amount per share 0,31438 cents) - (2.5) - - (2.5)
Paid 31 December 2001 0.55480 cents per share (franked
amount per share 0,55480 cents) - (4.4) - - (4.4)
Paid 2 April 2002 0,56710 cents per share {franked amount
per share 0.07474 cents per share) - (4.6) - - {4.6)
Provided 30 June 2002 and paid 1 July 2002 0.55480 cents
per share (unfranked) - (4.4) - - - {4.4)
(17.9) (15.9) - {17.9) (15.9)
NOTE 19. OUTSIDE EQUITY INTERESTS
Outside equity interests in contralled entities comprise:
Interest in retained profits at beginning of year 6.4 4.2 36 - -
Interest in retained earnings of partly owned controlled
entities of Goodman Fielder Limited at 19 March 2003 2.0 - - - -
Interest in profit from ordinary activities after related
income tax expense 4.3 33 2.0 - -
Interast in dividends paid (1.0) (1. {1.4) - —
Interest in retained profits at end of year 11.7 6.4 4.2 - -
interest in contributed equity 1B8.8 13.9 13.3 - -
interest in reserves (5.0) (1.4) 7.7 - —
Total outside equity interests 25.5 18.9 25.2 - -

Boe4
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2003

Consolidated

Burns, Philp &
Company Limited

AS million 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE 20. TOTAL EQUITY
Totat equity at beginning of year 479.5 277.8 128.6 394.7 135.1
Total changes in equity attributable to Burns, Philp &
Company Limited shareholders recognised in statements
of financial performance 94,5 (30.8) 109.5 21.3 16.2
Transactions with Burns, Philp & Company Limited
shareholders as owners:
Contributions of equity (refer note 16) 195.6 254.6 32.2 195.6 254.6
Dividends paid or payable -~ CP Shares (17.9) (15.9) - (17.9) (15.9)
Total changes in outside equity interests 6.6 (6.3) 6.6 - -
Total equity at end of year 758.3 473.5 277.9 593.7 3947
NOTE 21. COMMITMENTS
Capital expenditure commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at balance
date but nat provided for:
Payable within 1 year 16.1 12.3 18.8 - -
Operating lease commitments(a)
Aggregate amount contracted for at balance
date but not provided for:
Payable within 1 year 25.0 6.1 7.2 0.1 e
Payable between 1 and 2 years 18.1 5.2 5.2 - -
Payable between 2 and 3 years 8.0 3.6 4.3 - -
Paysble between 3 and 4 yaars 7.1 2.5 2.5 - -
Fayable between 4 and 5 years 6.4 21 1.2 - -
Payable after 5 years 7.0 14.6 2.1 - -
Total operating lease commitments 71.6 341 22.5 0.1 0.1

{a) The consolidated entity leases property and motor vehicles under non-cancellable operating leases expiring from 1 to 20 years.

Property leases generally provide the consolidated entity with a right of renewal at which time alf terms are renegotiated. Propenty

lease payments may comprise a base amount plus an incremental contingent rantal. Contingent rentals are based on either

movements in consumer prices indices or operating criteria.
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NOTE 22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(2) The consolidated entity is subject to litigation in the ordinary course of operations, for which a provision of A$26.3 million has
been recognised in the consolidated financial statements as 2t 30 June 2003 (refer note 15), The consclidated entity does not
beligve that it is engaged in any other legal proceedings for which provisions have not been made which would be likely to have
a material affect on its business, financial position or results of operations.

(b) As part of the security arrangements entered into with the consolidated entity’s financiers (refer note 14(d) for further details),
Burps, Philp & Company Limited has entered into a Deed of Guarantee and Indemnity whereby it {(and certain controlled entities)
have guaranteed payment of amounts owing under certain financing documents, The total amount owing by its contrelled entities
25 at 30 June 2003 is A$2,892.6 million (2002 - A%1,655.5 million; 2001 — A$1,227.8 million),

() On 8 January 2003, Goodman Fielder advised in an ASX announcement of recent correspendence from the Australian Taxation
Office (ATO). On 24 Decernber 2002, the ATO advised Goodman Fielder that it had determined that Part VA of the Australian
Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 applied 1o arrangements concerning a financial facility entered into in 1980, On 26 March 2003,
Goodman Fielder announced to the ASX that the ATO had issued amendad assessments in respect of the matter, which imposed
additicnal Income tax, penalties and interest of approximately A$126.5 millian. A tentative arrangement has been made with the
ATO to settle the matter for A353.0 million in tax and penalties subject to final agreement between the parties. A$20.0 million
was paid in cash on 4 June 2003 and A$33.0 -million has been provided at 30 June 2003,

—_
s

The Company and certain of its wholly owned controlled entities identified in note 29 have entered into a Deed of Cross
Guarantee, The effect of the Deed is that the Company guarantees to each Creditar payment in full of any debt in the event of
winding up of any of the controlled entities under centain provisions of the Corparations Act 2001, If 3 winding up occurs under
other pravisions of the Law, the Cormpany will only be liable in the event that after six months any creditor has not been paid in
full. The controlled entities have also given similar guarantees in the event that the Company is wound up,

Consolidated statements of financial performance for the years ended 30 June 2003, 2002 and 2001 and consolidated statements
of financial position as at 30 June 2003, 2002 and 2001, ¢omprising the Company and controlled entities which are parties to the
Deed, after eliminating all transactions between parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, sre set out on page 62,

2003 ANNUAL REPORT “
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

A% million 2003 2002 2001

Statements of Financial Performance

Profit from ardinary activities before income tax benefit{expense) 101.3 24.2 92.5

incorne tax benefit/(expense) relating to profit from ordinary activities : 3.1 2.3 (2.6)
Profit from erdinary activities after related income 1ax benefit/(expense) 104.4 26.5 89.9

Statements of Financial Position

Cash assets 324 235 0.¢
Receivables 456.6 142.3 286
Inventoriés 2.3 3.5 2.1

Qther assets 29.9 2.0 1.1

Total current assets 521.2 172.3 32.7
Invastments 2,877.5 712.6 &71.5
Property, plant and equipment 17.6 19.0 22.2
Intangible assets 9.2 9.4 14.1

Other assets 71.2 20.6 2.3
Total non current assets 2,975.5 761.6 910.1

Total assets 3.,496.7 9339 942 .8
Payables a43.1 314.6 4156
interest bearing liabilities 80.0 - 0.8
Provisions 3.2 11.4 9.9
Total current liabilities ' 536.3 3260 4286.3
Interest bearing liabilities 2,173.7 - 13.5
Provisions ’ 1.0 0.8 5.6
Total non current liabilities 2.174.7 ) 0.9 18.1

Toral liabjlities 2.711.0 326.9 445.4
Net assets 785.7 607.0 497.4
Contributed equity 1.063.9 263.3 613.7

Reserves and accumulated losses (278.2) (261.3) (116.3)
Total equity ’ 785.7 €07.0 497.4

BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND 1TS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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NOTE 23. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s business segments are identified based ¢n the nature of the products provided and services rendered. The Group also
operates in four main geographic regions. The Directors selected these segments for internal reporting purposes and have organised
the enterprise around these products and services and geographic areas.

Business and geographic segments

Changes in business segments

Following the acquisition of Goodman Fielder in March 2003, the group now operates in four business segments with additional
activity segmented in Other and Corporate. During the current year, the Terminals and Vinegar businesses, previcusly separately
reported as business segments, were sold. Business segment information in respect of these two businesses has now been included
in Other in respect of each of the years ended 30 June 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Business segment Geographic segment Products and services

Yeast/Bakery North America Bakers' yeast and bakers’ ingredients — industrial and
Latin America consumer yeast, yeast extracts and bakery ingredients
Europe
Asia Pacific

Herbs and Spices North America Sourcing, grinding, blending, packaging and
Asia Pacific  distribution of herbs and spices

Goodman Fielder Australia Asia Pacific Packaged bread and other baked goods, breakfast cereals,

nutritious snacks, cake mixes, branded flour, margarine,
mayonnaise, dressings and spreads

Goodman Fielder New Zealand Asla Pacific Salty and nutritious snacks, spreads and oils, loaf bread,
baked goods, frozen meals and flour

Other Asia Pacific Mainly flour, pracessed chicken, margarine, ice cream
. and snack foods*
Asia Pagific Bulk liquid storage**
North America Industrial vinegar* ¥
Corporate/T&D . North America Administration and technology and develcpment
Europe
Asia Pacific

-

Malnly represented by Goadman Fielder's businesses in the South Paclfic and Asia,

xn

The Australasian Terminals (bulk liquid storage) and the Nerh American Industrial Vinegar businesses were sold during the current year. Refer notes 3(b) and
24 for further details.

Major customers

Na single customer represented 10% or more of the Group's consolidated revenug in any of the years ended 30 June 2003,
2002 and 2001.
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BPC LTD.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 23. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Primary reporting by business segment

doso

AS million

North
America

Latin
America

Yeast/Bakery

Europe

Asia
Pacific

Toual

2003

Revenue

External segment revenue from sale of goads and
rendering of services™

Proceeds from sales of businesses and property
interest revenue

Unrealised foreign currency gain

QOther unallocated revenue

Total revenue from ordinary activities

Resulr

Segment result.

Share of net profits of associates

EBIT

Net interest (expense)

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax
Income tax (expense)

Profit from ordinary activitis after income tax
Outsige equity interests

Net profit

Included in the segment resuit above were:

Depreciation and amortisation (excluding prepaid
slotting allowances)

Amortisation of prepaid slotting allowances

Net expense from movements in provisions**
Individually significant items

- Gain on salte of terminals business in Australasia
- Gain on sale of vinegar business in North America
- Gain on sale of Sauth Yarra property

— Deferred borrowing casts written off

— Unrealised foreign currency gain

- Provisions for restructuring of new businesses

Assets

Segment assets

Equity accounted investments

Unallocated assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities

Unaliocated liabilities

Consolidated tota! liabilities

Acguisitions of non ¢urrent assets during the year

M There were ng significant inter-zegment sales.
*+  gxcluding Individually signiflcant items.

BURNS, PHILE & COMPANY LIMITED AND 1TS CONTROLLED ENTITIRS

305.0

72.8

181.4

7.8
1.6

163.7

25.1
5.6

143.7

33.0
3.8

803.8

138.7
11.0

72.8

9.4

30.7

36.8

149.7

(17.1)

(3.9

309.8

(13.0)

(2.9)

3.3)

337.8
9.6

(13.1)

2.7)

209.6
20.1

(9.0)

189.1
19.4

(52.2)

(9.5)

(3.3)

1,046.3
49.1

309.8

347.4

229.7

208.5

1,095.4

329

30.6

40.3

22,9

126.7

32.9

30.6

40.3

22.9

126.7

8.8

131

6.9

12.2

a1.0
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Herbs & Goodman Flelder Qther Corporate/ Consolidated
Spices T&D Total
New
Austraifa Zealand
3434 464.9 161.8 108.3 - 1.887.2
193.1
18.0
139.1
4.0
2,241.4
58.2 (19.6) 8.2 39 139.2 328.6
- 0.1 - - - 11.1
58.2 (13.5) 8.2 3.9 139.2 339.7
(156.8)
182.9
(8.6)
174.3
(4.3)
170.0
(6.6) (30.1) (10.9) (6.9) (1.6) (108.3)
(23.9) - -’ - - (23.4)
(4.0 27.7) - (1.5) (7.9) (50.1)
- - - - 40.7 40.7
- - - - 10.9 10.9
- - - - - 6.6
- - - - (32.6) (32.6)
- - - - 132.1 133.1
- (36.6) (8.3) 3.9 - (52.0)
177.0 1,907.0 846.9 318.2 155.0 4,450.4
- 4.5 - - - 53.6
100.1
177.0 1.911.5 846.9 318.2 155.0 4,604.1
24.1 304.6 74.2 32.8 242.0 804.4
3,041.4
24.1 304.6 74.2 32.8 242.0 3,845.8
4.1 22.2 7.6 4.5 0.8 80.2
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. BPC LTD.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 23. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Primary reporting by business segment (continued)

@o71

Yeast/Bakery

North Latin Asia :
AS millien America® America Europe Pacific Total
2002
Revenue
External segment revenue from sale of goods
and rendering of services** 348.7 167.4 163.5 142.3 822.8
Praceeds from sales of businesses and property
interest revenue
Other unallocated revenue
Total revenue from ordinary activities
Result
Segment result 58.4 251 29.4 20.2 1334
Share of net profits of associates - 2.0 4.4 3.7 10.1
EBIT 58.4 27.1 33.8 23.9 1432
Net interest expense
Profit from ordinary activities before income tax
income tax benefit
Prafit from ordinary activities after income tax
Outside equity interests
Net profit
Included in the segment result above were:
Depreciation and amortisation {excluding prepaid
slotting allowances) {22.1) (12.1) {11.4) (8.4) (54.0)
Amonrtisation of prepaid slotting allowances - - - - -
Net expense from moevements in provisions™** (3.0) (3.6) (2.2) (2.7) {11.5)
Individually significant items
- Provision for Oakland ¢losure costs (25.1) - - - (25.1)
~ Provision for amaunts due from Kmart USA - - - - -
Assets
Segment assets 389.8 135.3 222.4 206.9 954.4
Equity accounted invastments - 10.8 253 22.4 58.6
Unallocated assets
Consclidated total assets 389.8 146.2 247.7 229.3 1,013.0
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 50.5 16.8 44.7 25.5 137.5
Unallocated lisbilities
Consalidated total liabilities 50.5 16.8 44.7 25.5 137.5
Acquisitions of non current assets guring the year £.4 24.7 111 18.0 62.2

*  Refer to note 1(j) for details regarding a reclassification of revenues.

**  There were no significant inter-segment sales.
»+» gxcluding individually signlficant items,

BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Herbs &
Spices*®

Goodman Fielder

New

Australia Zealand

Other~

Corporate/ Consolidated
T&D Total

381.8

117.9

8.9

- 1.322.7
23

7.0

4.1

1,336.1

(12.9) 176.7
- 10.1

446

18.8

(18.9) 186.8

(7.5)
(32.5)
{4.5)

(10.1)

2293

(10.4)

(4.7)

141.0

(65.9)
120.9
286
149.5

(3.3)
146.2

(0.6) (72.5)
- (32.5)
(3.9) (24.6)

7.5 1,386.2
- £8.8
909.7

229.3

141.0

71.5 2,364.5

32.9

15.6

18.1 2041
1,680.9

32.3

15.6

18.1 1,885.0

11.9

0.1 85.3
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BPC LTD.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 23. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

-Primary reporting by business segment (continued)

o73

AS milllon

North
Amerjca*

Latin
America

Yeast/Bakery

Europe

Asia
Pacific

Total

2001

Revenue

External segment revenue from sale of goods
and rendering of services**

Proceeds from sales of businesses and property
Interest revenue

Other unallocated revenue

Total revenue from ordinary activities

Result

Segment result

Share of net profits of associates

EBIT

Net interest expense

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax
Income tax (expense)

Profit from ordinary activities after income tax
Outside equity interests

Net profit

Included in the segment result above were:

Depreciation and amortisation (excluding prepaid
slotting allowances)

Amortisation of prepaid siotting allowances
Net expense from movements in provisions

Assets

Segment assets

Equity accounted investments
Unallocared assets
Consolidated total assets
Liabilities

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities

Agguisitions of non current assets during year

»

Refer to note 1()) for detsils regarding a reclassification of revenues.
There were no signlflcant Inter-segment sales,

.

BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

340.7

69.1

2238

19.5
2.0

26.89
5.7

18.7
4.7

845.0

134.2
12.4

59,1

21.5

32.6

23.4

146.6

(24.0)

(3.3)

347.2
13.4

{10.3)

(0.6)

205.2
29.0

(8.4)

(2.4)

207.6
245

(S8.7)

(7.6)

1,225.4
66.9

360.6

234.2

232.1

1.292.3

44.5

378

25.3

154.6

47.0

44,5

37.8

25.3

154.6

29.5

20.2

1a.4

14.1

78.2
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[@o74

Herbs & Goodman Flelder Other* Corporate/ Consolidated
Spices* T&D Total
New
Australia Zealand
387.4 - - 124.3 - 1,356.7
15.3
13.0
3.6
1,388.6
333 - - 21.0 (15.5) 173.0
- - — - - 12.4
33.3 - - 21.0 (15,5) 185.4
(82.8)
102.6
(12.1)
90.5
(2.9)
58.5
(8.0 - - (10.0) (0.4) (76.5)
(24.2) - - - - (24.2)
8.1) - - (4.2) 3.0 - (16.9)
253.3 - - 135.8 209 1,635.8
- - - - - 66.9
- - 158.4
253.2 - - 135.9 20.9 1,860.8
45.5 - - 15.1 321 . 247.3
1,335.6
45.5 - - 151 321 1,582.9
3.5 - - 7.1 - 88.8

2003 ANNUAL REPORTY m



17,09 '03 WED 07:59 FAX 61 2 9247 3272

7

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 23. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Secondary reporting by geographical segment

BPC LTD.

Hors

BURNS, PHILF & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENYITIES

North Latin Asia Consolidated
AS million America* America Europe Pacific Total
2003
Revanue
External segment revenue from sale of
goods and rendering of services** 678.9 191.4 163.7 853.2 1,887.2
Proceeds from sales of businesses and property 193.1
Interest revenue 18.0
Unrealised foreign currency gain 139.1
Other unallocated revenue 4.0
Total revenue from ordinary activities 2,241.4
Result
Segment result 141.2 7.8 243 155.3 328.6
Share of net profits of assaciates - 1.6 5.6 3.9 1.1
EBIT 141.2 9.4 29.9 159.2 339.7
Assets
Segment assets 517.1 337.8 215.3 3.380.2 4,450.4
Equity accaunted investments - 9.6 20.1 23.9 53.6
Unallocated assets 100.1
Consolidated total assets 517.1 347.4 235.4 3,404.1 4,604.1
Acquisitions of non current assets during the year 13.3 13.1 6.9 46.9 80.2
2002
Revenue
External segment revenue from sale of
goods and rendering of servicas** 816.2 167.4 163.5 175.6 1,322.7
Proceeds from sales of businesses and property 2.3
Interest revenue 7.0
Other unallocated revenue a1
Total revenue from ordinary activities 1,336.1
Resuit
Segment regsult 108.6 25.9 23.9 13.1 176.7
Share of net profits of associates — 2.0 4.4 3.7 10.1
EBIT 108.6 27.1 343 16.8 186.8
Assets
Segment assets 722.6 135.3 225.9 308.4 1,396.2
Equity accounted investments - 10.9 25.3 22.4 58.6
Unzllocated assets 909.7
Consolidated total assets 722.5 146.2 255.2 330.8 2,364.5
Acquisitions of non current assets during the year 25.8 24.7 1.1 23.7 85.3
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North Latin Asia Consolldated

A3 million - America® America Europe Pacific Total
2001
Revenue

" External segment revenue from sale of
goods and rendering of services* ¥ g17.0 223.8 144.7 171.2 1.356.7
Proceeds from sales of businesses and property 18.3
Interest revenue 13.0
Other unallocated revenue 36
Total revenue from ordinary activities 1,388.6
Result
Segment result 103.0 19.4 27.9 22.7 173.0
Share of net profits of associates - 2.1 5.7 4.6 12.4
EBIT 103.0 21,5 3386 27.3 185.4
Assets .
Segment assets 805.1 347.2 211.8 271.4 1.635.5
Equity accounted investments - 13.4 29.0 245 66.9
Unaliocated assets 158.4
Consolidated total assets 205.1 360.6 240.8 295.9 1,860.8
Acquisiticns of non current assets during the year 36.5 20.2 14.4 17.7 88.8

Refer 1o note 1) for deisils regarding a reclassification of revenues in 2001 and 2002.
*° There were no significant inter-segment sales,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE Z3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Additional geographlcal segment information by country

Unlted New Qther Consolidated
AS million States* Australia Zealand Countries Total
2003
Revenue
External segment revenue from sale of
goods and rendering of services** 629.5 507.9 181.9 567.8 1,887.2
Proceeds from sales of businesses and property ' 193.1
Interest revenue ' 18.0
Unrealised foreign currency gain 139.1
Other unallocated revenue ’ 40
Total revenue fram ordinary activities 2,241.4
Long-lived assets
Property, plant and eguipment 119.6 445.6 187.4 362.3 1.114.9
Intangibles (net) 139.0 1,401.2 444.5 280.6 2,265.3
Total long-lived assets 258.6 1,846.8 621.9 642.9 3.380.2
2002
Revenue
External seément revenue from sale of ]
goods and rendering of services~* 758.6 50.3 17.0 4868 1,322.7
Proceeds from sales of businesses and property 2.3
Interast revenue . 7.0
Other unallocated revenue 4.1
Total revenue from ordinary activities 1,336.1
Long-lived assets
Property, plant and equipment 201.8 57.2 12.1 306.1 577.2
Intangibles (net) 180.7 9.4 3.0 126.3 318.4
Total long-lived assets 382.5 66.6 15.1 432.4 896.6
20Q1
Revenug
Externa! segment revenue from sale of
goods and rendering of services** 746.6 51.8 16.2 542.3 1.356.7
Proceeds from sales of businesses and property i5.3
Interest revenue 13.0
Other unallocated revenue 3.6
Total revenue from ordinary activities ) 1,388.6
Long-lived assets
Property, plant and equipment 245.6 62.1 i1.0 3851 704.1
Intangibles (net) 206.3 9.7 2.9 188.6 407.5
Total long-lived agsets 451.9 71.8 13.9 573.7 1,111.6

»

Refer to note 1()) for details regarding = reclassification af revenues in 2001 and 2002,
** ‘There were no signlficant inter-segment sales.

BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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NOTE 24. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Terminals and Vinegar business segments
On 18 April 2002, the Board announced its plan to sell the Australasian Terminals business and the North American Industrial
Vinegar business. The sales of these businesses were completed in the current year.

Gains on the sales of A$40.7 million (Australasian Terminals business) and A$10.9 million (North American Industrial Vinegar
business) have been brought 1o account in the current year's consolidsted profit (refer note 3(b) for further details).

These businesses have been included in Other businesses in the reporting by business segment in note 23 up until the date
of sale. Additicnal financial information in respect of these businesses is set out below:

_ Terminals Vinegar
AS million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Financial performance Information
for the year ended 30 Juhe :
Revenue from ordinary activities 7.0 31.0 31.3 25.5 84.8 B3.6
Expanses from ordinary activities (5.4)° (23.1) (20.1) (21.8) (73.3) (80.1)
Sagment result (EBIT) 1.6 7.9 11.2 3.7 10.9 9.5
Net interest revenue - 0.1 - 0.1 0.1 0.1
Profit from ordinary activities
before income tax ‘ 1.6 8.0 1.2 3.8 11.0 9.6
Income tax expense {0.1) (0.6) {0.6) - - -
Net profit 1.5 7.4 10.6 3.8 1.0 3.6
Financial position information
as at 30 June
Total assets - 54.3 495 - 83.9 82.4
Total liabilities - 9.4 8.5 - 7.3 8.3
Net assets - 44.9 43.0 - 76.6 74.1
Cash flow information for
the year ended 30 June
Net cash provided by operating activities 0.8 11.8 17.6 6.3 14.6 13.2
Net cash (uséd iny investing activities (2.2) (5.4) (3.3) (0.9) (6.3) (3.5)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash held {(1.4) 6.4 14,3 5.9 8.3 9.7

2003 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 25. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Qlassification of securities as ordinary shares

The following securities have been classified as ordinary shares and included in basic and diluted earnings per share:

(38) ordinary shares

Classification of securities as potential ordlnary shares

The following securities have been classified as potential ordinary shares and included in diluted earnings per share anly:

BPC LTD.

{8) 2003 Opticns cutstanding (refer note 16 for further details)

(b) CP Shares (refer note 16 for further details)

Earnings reconciliation

Consalldated
AS$ million 2003 2002 2001
Net profit 174.3 1495 20.5
Net profit attributable to outside equity interests {4.3) (3.3) (2.0}
170.0 148.2 88.5
Less: CP Shares dividends (17.9) (15.9) -
Basic earnings 152.1 130.3 aa.5
Add: CP Shares dividends 17.9 15.9 -
Diluted earnings 170.0 146.2 88.5
Baslc earnings comprise:
Continuing operations 95.2 111.9 68.3
Discontinued operations(a) 56.9 18.4 20.2
152.1 130.3 88.5
Diluted earnings comprise:
Continuing operations 113.1 127.8 £3.3
Discontinued operatians{a) 56.9 18.4 20.2
170.0 "146.2 88.5
Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Consolidated
Shares (million) 2003 2002 2001
Number for basic earnings per share(b) 1,056.5 751.2 648.6
Adjust for:
Effect of 2003 Options(c) 637.2 850.7 826.0
Effect of CP Shares 797.4 701.4 -
Number for diluted earnings per share 2.491.1 2,303.3 1,474.6

(3) Earnings for the current year include an A310.2 millian gain on sale of the North American (ndustrial Vinegar business

and an A$40,7 million gain on sale of the Australasian Terminals business (refer note 3(b) for further details).

(b) From 1 July 2003 tc 4 Septernber 2003, 251,082,230 2003 Options and 67,839 CP Shares were converted 1o ordinary shares.
These shares have not been included in the calculation of basic EPS as at 30 June 2003.

(¢} During the current year 978.0 million (2002 — 101,1 million; 2001 — 161,71 million} 2003 Options were converted 1o ordinary

shares. The diluted EPS calculation includes that portion of these options assumed 1o be issued for nil considaration, weighted with
reference 1o the date of conversian. The weighted average number included is 472.9 millign (2002 - 33.9 million;

2001 - 35.6 million).

BURNS, PNILP'& COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Burns, Philp &

Consolidated Company Limited
AS million 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
NOTE 26. RELATED PARTIES
Amounts receivable from related parties
Current:
Associates 5.9 1.8 3.6 - -
Wholly owned controfled entities - - - 424.48 251.5
Amounts payable to related parties
Current:
Associates 0.3 03 0.3 - -
Wholly owned controlled entities - - - 62.0 3.7
Transactions with related parties
Dividends received from wholly owned
controlled entities - - - 1.9 16.0
Interest received from wholly cwned
controlled entities - - - 21.8 8.0
Management and guarantee fees received '
from wholly owned controlled entities - - - 4.8 47

Directors and director related entities

The names of persons who held the office of Director of Burns, Philp & Company Limited during the year are: A G McGregor,
M D | Burrows, T | Degnan. G R Hart, B M Murray and F W Smith.

Inforrnatian on the remuneration of Directors is disclosed in note 28,

Directors’ loang

At 30 June 2003, loans to directors of certain controlled entities amounted to A$1,650 (2002 — A$3,771; 2001 — AS7,033). During

the current year, loan repayments of A$2.121 {2002 — A$2,563; 2001 — A$55,286) and interest payments of A$318 {2002 ~ A3382;
2001 - A$44) were received in relation to directors' loans.

Directors’ and director refated entities” holdings of shares and share options

Details of Directors’ and director related entitias’ ordinary share, converting preference share and option holdings in Burns, Philp
& Company Limited at the repanrting date and details of movements in these holdings during the period are set out on page 76.

In respect of these holdings, dividends sre payable to Directors and director refated entities on the same terms and conditions
as other shareholders.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 26. RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

Directors’ and director related entitles” holdings of shares and share options {cont.)

Number of Ordinary Shares, CP Shares and 2003 Options 2003 2002 2001
Ordinary Shares

Balance at beginning of year 107,480,720 107,480,720 107,480,720
Ordinary shares acquired during the year 951,657.189 ~ -
Balance at end of year 1,059,137,909 107,480,720 107.480,720
QOrdinary shares acquired since year end 36,652,583

Balance at 4 September 2003 1,085,790,4%92

CP Shares

Balance st beginning of year 538,376,663 - -
CP Shares acquired during the year 281,350 538‘,375,663 -
Balance at end of year 538,658.013 538,376,663 -
CP Shares acquired since year end 25,000

Balance at 4 September 2003 538,683,013

2003 Options

Balance at beginning of year 987,033,586 887,033,586 987,033,586
2003 Options acquired during the year 1,253,686 - -
2003 Options exercised during the year (951,634,689) - -
Balance at end of year 36,652,583 387,033,586 987,033,586
2003 Options exercised since year end (36,652,583)

Balance st 4 Septamber 2003

Other director and director related entities’ transactions

G R Hart is managing director and substantial shareholder of Rank Group Limited (Rank) and B M Murray is chief financia! officer of
Rank. During the current year, the Company paid to Rank A$1,816,000 (2002 — A31,349,000; 2001 — A%1,542,000) in reimbursement
of salaries and expenses of employges of Rank who performed services for the Company durlng the year,

Mr Hart is also a director of, and through Rank owns 100% of, New Zsaland Diary Foods Holdings Limited and New Zealand Dairy
Foods Limited, a cansumer foods group supplying a range of dairy products. A subsidiary of the Company, Goodman Fielder New

Zealand Limited, packages certain products for New Zealand Dairy Foods Limited. The terms of that arrangement were negotiated

an arms length terms, This arrangement was entered into in August 2003, The value of the work performed and invoiced is

spproximately NZ$6 million per year.

Each of the Directors of Burns, Philp & Company Limited, other than B M Murray, hold ordinary shares and CP Shares at the date
of this report as detailed on page 16 of the Directors' Report. Each of the Directars, other than B M Murray, will participate in benefits
which thay are entitled 1o receive as 8 result of holding the ordinary shares and CP Shares In accordance with thelr relevant terms

af issue,

From time to time Directors of the Company. directors of its controlled entities, or director related entities, may purchase goods from
the conselidated entity. These purchases are on the same terms and conditions as the consolidated entity's employees or customers

and are trivial in nature.
Controlled entities

Information relating to controlled entities is set out in note 28.

Loans are provided to controlled entities at annual interest rates varying from C% to commercial rates.

Details of dividends and interest transactions between Burns, Philp & Company Limited and its controlled entities are set out in note 2,

Associates

Information relating to investments in and dividends received from associates is set out in note 3.

Superannuation plans

Information relating to superarnuation and pensicn plans is set out in nate 27.

Materiality

In sccordance with AASB 1017 Related Party Disclosures, all transactions with directors and director related entities have been
disclosed. However, in respect of other related parties, only material transactions have been disclosed.

BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND 175 CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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NOTE 27. SUPERANNUATION PLANS

The consclidated entity sponsors 4 (2002 — 4; 2001 - 4) defined contribution and 7 (2002 ~ 5; 2001 - 5) defined benefit employee
superannuation plans. -

Superannuation plans have not been extended to some overseas controlled entities where there are suitable national plans available.
In Australia and New Zealand, Burns Philp's employees, other than Goodman Fielder employees, are covered by defined contribution
plans not spansared by the consolidatad entity.

Details of plans sponsored by the consolidated entity are set out below:

Pate of Last

Country Fund Benefit Type Actuarial Valuavion
Australia Goodman Fielder Superannuation Fund Defined Benefit 30 June 2000*
Canada Burns Philp Food Limited Retiremant Savings

Plan for Salaried Employees Accumulation Not required
Canada Burns Philp Food Limited Retiremeant Savings

Pian for Hourly Employees Accumulation Not reguired
Germany Flirsorgeverein der Deutsche Hefewerke GmbH e.V. Defined Benefit {(Pensian) 30 June 2003
New Zealand Goodman Fielder (NZ) Retirerment Plan Defined Benefit 31 March 2002*
Usa Burns Philp inc Retirement Plan for Bargaining

Unit Employees Defined Benefit (Pension) 30 June 2003
usa Burns Philp Inc Retirement Plan for Non Bargaining

Unit Ermployees Defined Benefit (Pension) 30 June 2003
usa Burns Philp In¢. Savings Plan Accumulation Not required
usa Tone Brothers, Inc, Savings Plan Accumuiation Not required
USA Jone Brothers, In¢. Plan Defined Benefit (Lump Sum) 30 June 2003
UsA Tone Brothers, inc. Non Bargaining Retirement Plan Defined Benefit (Lump Sum) 30 June 2003

* Whilst the last full actuarial valuations were carried out on these dates, Information disclosad In this note has begn based on actuarial reviews earried
out as at 31 March 2003 (Goudman Fielder (NZ) Retirement Plan) and 30 June 2003 (Goodman Flelder Supersnnuation Fund),

Plan benefits consist of either cash accumulation plans with defined contribution levels or defined benefit plans with a retirement
benefit based on years of service and final average salary.

In the case of defined benetit plans, employer contributions are based on the advice of the plans’ actuaries. Employee contributions

are based on various percentages of their gross salarias. After serving a qualifying period, zll employees are entitled to benefits on
retirement, disability or death.

Ermployer contributions to defined benefit plans during the year ended 30 June 2003 were A311.6 million (2002 - A$6.7 milllon;
2001 - A$5.8 million).

Employer contributions to defined contribution plans during the year ended 30 June 2003 were A$1.9 million (2002 - A$2.4 miflion:
2001 - A$2.8 million),

idos2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 27. SUPERANNUATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

The accrued benefits, plan assets at net market value and vested benefits of the defined benefit plans based on the most recent
financial statements of the plans are set out in the table below. Accrued benefits are benefits which the plans are presently obliged
1o pay at some future date, as a result of membership of the plans. Vested benefits are benefits which are not conditional upon
the continued membership of the plans or any factor, other than resignation from the plans.

The Directars, based on the advice of the trustees of the defined benefit plans, are not aware of any changes in circumstances since
the date of the most recent financial statements of the plans which would have a material impact on the overall financial position

of the plans.

Defined Benefit Plans

Accrued. Plan Assets at Excess Vesred
Benefits Net Market Value (Deficit) Beneflts
A% miltion 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Goodman Fielder
Superannuation
Fundic) 258.9 -~ - 258.9 - - - -~ - 2589 ~ -
Flrsorgeverein der
Deutsche Hefewarke
GmbH e.V.{a)}d) 20.6 19.2 18.0 1.8 2.5 2.5 (18.8) (16.7) (15.5) 18.6 17.86 16.5
Goodman Fielder (N2)
Retirement Plan(a)c) 44.1 - - 36.8 - - (7.7) - - 43.2 - -
Burns Philp Inc
Retirement Plan
for Bargaining
Unit Employees(a)(d) 5.5 5.6 8.8 3.4 4.1 4.9 {2.1) (1.5} (0.6} 5.5 5.5 53
Burns Philp Inc.
Retirerment Plan
for Non Bargaining
Unit Employees(a)(d) 24.3 28.7 29.2 ~12.0 16.8 205 (12.3) (11.9) (8.7) 19.6 22.6 22.5
Tone Brothers,
Inc. Plan{(d) 8.1 7.4 5.3 9.0 9.8 7.5 0.9 2.4 2.2 7.7 7.0 4.7
Tone Brothers, inc.
Non Bargaining
Retirement Plan(a)(d) 7.3 7.5 6.0 5.1 5.0 4.3 2.2) (2.5) (1.7) 4.0 4.0 3.2
Burns Philp (UK)
Pension Plan(b)(d) - - - 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 - - -

(8) Adeqguate pravision has been made in the cansalidated financial statemants for the deficit.

(b) All members are now covered by a private pension arrangement and the plan is in the process of being wound up,

{c) Details as at 31 March 2003 for the Goodman Fie

Superannuation Fund.

(d) Details s at 30 June in each year,

{der (NZ) Retirement Plan snd 30 June 2003 for the Goodman Fielder

BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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NOTE 28. DIRECTORS' AND EXECUTIVES' REMUNERATION

Directors’ income
The nurmber of Directors of the Company whose income from the Company or any related party fell within the following bands was:

Burns, Philp &
Company Limited
Number of Directors 2003 2002
A%'000
o - 10 2 3
S0 - &0 _ 2
60 - 70 1 -
7c - 80 1 -
140 - 150 - 1
190 - 200 1 -
2,800 - 2,810 1 -
3,880 ~ 3,890 - 1
Burns, Philp &
Consolidated Company Limited
A%°000 2003** 2002 2001 2003 2002
Total income paid or payable, or otherwise made i
available to all Directors of the Company and to all
Directors of the Company and directars of controlled .
entities frorm the Company or any related party* 33.170 17,549 186,650 3,140 4,138

The maximum amount of fees paysble to non executive Directors of Burns, -Philp & Company Limited, in aggregate, is A$450,000 (exclusive of relirement
payments). This was approved at the 1993 Anaual General Meeting. For the year to 30 June 2003, the basic fee paid to a non executive Diractor was
A$60,000, except for the Deputy Chairman who was not paid s fee, The Chairman was pald three tmes the basic fee, le A5180,000, plus statutory
superannuation contribution.

**This armoumt includes payments o direclors of the Goadman Flelder Group (ncluding termination payments) for the period 19 March 2003 ta 30 June 2003,

Executives’ rernuneration

The remuneration of executives who wark whally or mainly outside Australia are not included in this disclosure, Executive officers are
those officers involved in the strategi¢ direction, general management or control of business at-a Company or operating division lavel.

The number of executive officers of the Company and of controlled entities, whose remuneration from the Company or related parties
and from entities in the consolidated entity exceedad A$100,000, is set out on page 80 together with detalls of the bands in which
their remuneration fell.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 28. DIRECTORS' AND EXECUTIVES' REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

Burns, Philp &
Consolidated Company Limited
Number of Australian Executives 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
AS'000
100 110 3 - - - -
110 120 1 1 - - -
140 150 - - 1 - -
150 160 - 1 - - -
160 170 - - 1 - -
170 180 1 - - - -
180 190 2 - - 1 -
190 200 - 1 - - -
200 210 2 - - - -
210 220 - - 1 - -
220 230 - 1 1 - 1
230 240 - - 1 - -
240 250 2 - 1 - -
250 260 1 1 - - 1
260 270 2 - - 2 -
280 290 - ] - - 1
310 320 -~ - 2 - -
320 330 1 - - - -
340 350 - 1 - - 3
37Q 380 ~ 1 - - 1
350 400 1 - - 1 -
400 410 1 - - - -
410 420 - - 1 - -
470 480 1 1 - - 1
480 490 1 - - 1 -
510 520 1 - - 1 -
530 540 1 - - - -
790 800 - - 1 - _
960 970 1 - - - -
930 1.000 1 - - - -
1,090 1,100 1 - - - -
1,380 1,390 1 - - - —
1,520 1,530 1 - - - -
2,730 2,740 1 - - - -
2,800 2,810 1 - - 1 _
3,010 3,020 - - 1 - -
3,880 2,890 - 1 - - 1
Burns, Philp &
Consolidated Company Limited
A%'000 2003* 2002 2001 2003 2002
Total income received, or due and receivable, from the
Company, entitigs in the consolidated entity or related
parties by executive officers of the Company and of
controlled entities whose income is A$100,000 or more 17,298 6,310 6,103 4,913 5,845

* This amount includes payments to Australian executivas of the Goodman Flelder Group (including termination payments) for the period 18 March 2003
to 30 June 2003,

m BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND IT5 CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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NOTE 29. CONTROLLED ENTITIES

BPC LTD.

Except whare otherwise noted, the consolidated entity's interest in ordinary shares of controlied entities is 100% and controlled
entities carry on business in the country of incorporation.

Conrtrolled Entities at 30 june 2002 and
30 june 2003

Campania Argenting de Levaduras SAIC{)Xh)
Sudamericana de Levaduras SA de Inversiones{f{g)
Surgras SA(h)

Bavsel Pty Ltd

BPT Sauth Pacific Pty Ltd

Burns Philp Camellia Pty Lid{2)(f)(g)

Burns Philp Capital Pty Ltd(a)(d)r)

Burns Philp Custadians Pty Ltd(a)

Burns Philp Food Haldings Pty Ltd(a)(fXg)
Burns Philp Food Overseas Haldings Ltd{a)XfXg)
Burns Philp Food Properties Pty Ltd(aXf)(g)
Burns Philp Food Services Pty Lid(a)(f)(g)
8urns Philp Hardware Holdings Pty Ltd(b)
Burns Philp internationa! Investments Pty Ltd
Burns Philp Investments Py Lid{b)

Burns Philp Microbiology Pty Ltd

Burns Philp Middie East Pty Ltd(a)f)(g)

Burns Philp Overseas Holdings Ltd(a){f)(g)
Burns Philp Pakistan Pty Ltd(a)(f)g)

Burns Philp Shipplng Holdings Pty Ltd

Burns Philp South America Pty Lid(a)(f)g)
Burns Philp Technology Pty Ltd{a)f}g)

Burns Philp Technology & Development Pty Lid(a)(f)(g)
8urns Philp Treasury {Australia) Lid{f)g)

E L Bell Pry Lid

indonesian Yeast Company Pty Ltd{a)f)qg}
Integrated Ingredients (ndonesia Pty Ltd(a)
Integrated Ingredients Pty Ltd(b)

Mauwri Fermentation Argentina Pty Lid(a)(f){(g)
Mauri Fermentation Brazil Pty Ltd{a)f}g)
Mauri Ferrnentation Chile Pty Ltd{a)f)(g)
Mauri Fermentation China Pty Ltd(a)ig)
Mauri Fermentation India Pty Ltd{a)(f){(g)
Mauri Fermentation indonesia Pty L1a(aXf){g)
Mauri Fermentation Malaysia Pty Ltd(a}(f)Xg)
Mauri Fermentation Philippines Pty Ltd(@Xfl(g)
Mauri Fermentation Vietnam Pty Ltd(a){f)(g)
Mauri Grocery Pty Ltd )

Mauri Integrated Ingredients Py Ltd(b)
Maurl Yeast Australia Pty Ltd(aXf}o)

MET Engineering Pty Ltd(b)

MBT Fabrication Services Pty Ltd(a)

Nanged Pty Ltd :

Burns Philp A & B Ltd(i)

Burns Philp Brasil Industria e Cornrmercio de
Alimentos Ltda(fi(bb)

Burns Philp Faod Ltd(f)g)

Burns Philp Chlle Inversiones Ltda

Harbln Mauri Yeast Company Ltd(j)

Hebei Mauri Food Campany Ltd(k)

Panyy Mauri Food Company Lid(p)

Yantai Mauri Yeast Company Lid(l)

BEG France SARL(mM)

BEG Backhefe Export GmbH(m)

Burns Philp Deutschland Export
Nahrungsmitta-Vertriebsgeselischaft mbH(fXg)
Burns Philp Deutschiand GmbH{fXg)

Country of
Incorporation

Argentina
Argentina
Argentina
Australia
Australia
Australia
Austratia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australtia
Australia
Australla
Australia
Australia

Australia

Australiz
Australia
Australia
Aystralia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Auystraiia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Aystralia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Bangladesh

Brazil
Canada
Chile
China
China
China
China
Framce
Germany

Germany
Gerrnany

Controlled Entities at 30 June 2002 and
30 June 2003 (cont)

Burns Philp Deutschiand Grundbesitz GmbH(f)(g)
Deutsche Hefewerke GmbH(f{g)cc)

Burns Philp india (Private) Ltd

Cochin Spices Private Ltd

Mauri Yeast india (Private) (td

Burns Philp Alimentos $ de Rl de CV

Burns Philp Mexico, SA de CV

Burns Philp Netherlands European Holdings BV(fXg)
Burns Phitp Treasury (Eurspe) BVIYg)
Burns Philp (New Zealand) Ltd(f}g)

New Zealand Food Industries Ltd(f)(g)
Pinnacle NZ Lid

Mautt Farmentos, SA(Q)

Burns Philp Faod SAINIG)

Burns Philp Lanka (Private) Ltd

Mauri Maya Sanayi AS

Burns Philp (U.K.) PLC(XG)

Burns Philp Europe Ltd

Burns Philp Pension Plan Ltd

Burns Philp Faod Inc(fig)

Burns Phitp Inctf)g)

Tone Brothers, Inc{f{g)

Fitarmar SA(s)

Flodden SA(D{g)

Levadura Uruguaya SA(f{gXs)

Mauri-La Nga Fermentation Co Ltd(0)

Controlled Endtles In voluniary liquidation
at 30 june 2003

Burns Philp Shipping Overseas Holdings Pty Ltd
Burns Philp Shipplng Overseas Investments Pty Ltd
Deftance international Pty Ltd

Hefe-Patent GmbH{(n)

S Hoffnung & Co

Controlied Entitles at 30 June 2002

disposed of during the year

Burns Philp Hardware Overseas Holdings Pty Ltd(dd)
Burns Philp Nominees Pty Ltd{dd)

Burns Philp Retail (Fiji) Pty Ltd(dd)

Burns Philp Rights Sale Service Pty Ltd(dd)
Consolidated Stevedores Holdings Pty Ltd(dd)
Terminals Pty Lid(ee)

Wyong Hargware & Building Supplies Pty Ltd(dd)
Wyong Timber Milling Co Pty Ltd(dd)

Burns Philp Shipping Agencies (Fiji) Lig(dd)
Deutsche Hefewerke GmbH & Co(1f)

Burns Philp Shipping (Far East) Ltd(dd)

Burns Philp Investments (PNG) Ltd(dd)

85T (Auckland) Ltd{ee)

Bulk Storage Termlinals Ltd(ee)

Burns Philp Investments PLC(dd)

Burns Phitp R&D Ltd(dd)

Burns Philp Food North Amaerica Inclag)

Country ot
Incorparation
Germany
Germany

\ndia

India

India

Mexico
Mexico

The Netherlands
The Netherlands
New Zealand
New Zealand
New Zealand
Portugal

Spain

Sri Lanka
Turkey

UK

UK

UK

UsA

USA

USA

Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Vietnarm

Country of
Incorporation
Australia
Australia
Australia
Germany

UK

Country of
Incorperation
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australla
Australia
Australia
Australia

Fijl

Germany
Hong Keng
PNG

New Zealand
New Zealand
UK

UK

usa

doss
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 29. CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Controlled Entities acquired Country of Controlled Entitias acquired Country of
during the year Incorporation during the year (cont.} Incarporation
Goodman Fielder acquisitions Goodman Fielder sequisitions (cont.}

BCW Hotplate Bakery Pty Ltd(fXo)t) Australia Evercrisp Snack Products (South Seas) Ltd{u) Fijt
Cairns Bakerles Holding Co Pty Ltd(t) Australia Goodman Fielder (Fiji) Ltd(u) Fiji
Cobbity Farm Bakeries Ply L1d(t) Australla Goodman Fielder International (Fiji) Ltd(w) Fiji
Country Bake Bakeries Pty Ltd(f)(g)(t) Australia Tucker Group (Fiji) Ltd{u) Fijl
Country Bake Cairns Pty Lid(t) Australia Tuckers (ce Cream Company {Fiji) Ltd(u) Fiji
Country Bake Mid Coast Pty Ltd(1) Australia Goadman Fielder international (China) Ltd(t) Hong Kong
Country Bake Tasmania Pty LId(0 Australia Goodman Fielder International (Hong Kong) Lid(t) Hong Kong
Darwin Bakery Pty Ltd(t) Australia Goodman Fielder International Sdn Bhd(t) Malaysia
Defiance Corporate Pty Ltd(t) Australia Goodman Fielder Nouvelle Caledanie(t) New Caledonia
Detiance Enterprises Pty Ltd(1) Australia Moulins Du Pacifique Sud SA(Y) New Caledonia
Detiance Intarnational Trading Pty Ltd(t) Australla Societe Industrielle Commaerciale et

Defliance Mills Pty Ltd(t) Australia Commerciale el Agro Alimentairetw) New Caledonia
Ernest Adams Australia Pty Ltd(f{g)(D) Australia Bluebird Foods Limited(t) New Zesland
ETA Foods Pty (td(e)f)(g)t) Australla GF finance (NZ) Ltd(t) New Zealand
FGD Share Plan Nominees Pty Lta(t) Australia GF Intertrade Lid(t) New Zealand
Fielder Gillespie Davis Finance Pty Lta(f){gKt) Australia GF Retirement Nominees Lid(t) New Zealand
G F Australia Pty Ltate)fiaxt) Australia Goodman Fielder Milling & Baking New Zealand Ltd(t)  New Zealand
G F D Australia Pty Ltd(f)(g)(1) Australia Goodman Fielder New Zealand Ltd(t) New Zealand
G F Defiance Pty Ltd(f}g) Australia Meadow Lea Food Ltd(t) Ngw 2ealand
GF Finance International Pty Ltd(fYa)(D) Australia NZ Margarine Holdings Ltd(t) New Zealand
GF Finance Py Lid(eXf){g)(t) Australia Quality Bakers New Zealand Ltd(t) New Zealand
GF Fresh Pty Lid(fi{g)0 Australla Associated Miils Ltd(x) PNG
GF Graup Services Pty Ltd(f){ght) Australia Binnen Bakery Ltd{w) PNG
GF Trade Finance Pty Lid{f)}(g)(t) Australia Evercrisp Snacks (PNG) Ltd(t) ) PNG
G Wood Son and Company Pty Lta(fi(g)(t) Australia Golden Crust Bakery Ltd(y) PNG
Gillespie Bros Heldings Pty Ltd(e)f)git) Australia " Goodman Fielder Internaticnal (PNG) Ltd() PNG
Goodman Fielder Consumer Foods Pty Ltd(eXf(gkt) Australia Mount Hagen Bakery Ltd(t) PNG
Goodman Fielder Field Operations Pty Ltd{e)(f)g)v Australia RBPM Ltd(z) PNG
Goadman FfElder Food S_EMC@S P1y Ltce)Ng)0 Austral?a Goodman Fielder (nternational (Philippines) Ine(t) Philippines
Goodman Ffeldw |ngredtelnt_s Pty LidleXfigitt Australia GF insurance & Risk Management Services Pte Lid(1) Singapore
Goodman Fielder International Pty Ltd{eX(i(gXt) Australia GF Investments (Asia) Pte Lid(t) Singapore
Goodman Fielder Pty Ltd(eXDig) Australia ) . .

Goodman Fielder Nominees Pty LtdV aystralia Gooedrman Fialder International (Singapore) Pte Ltd(t) Singapore
Goodman Fielder Superannuation Fund Pty Lid(t) Australia Quality Bakers (asla) Pte Ltd(t) singapare
ML (WA) Export Pty LtaifX e Australia Goodman Fielder international (Si) Ltd(aa) solomon Islands
Mowbray Industries Pty Ltd{e)T){gkt) Australia + GF Ingredients USA Ing(y) UsA
Narnregtown International Pty Ltd(e)Xf)(gkt) Australia Other acquisitians and newly

Provincial Traders Foods Pty Ltd{f{a)(n) Australia Incorparated entitles

QBA Froperties Pty Ltd{f)(g)(1) Australia BPCT Pry Ltd(a)a(f)gxn) Australia
Quality Bakers Aaustralia Pty Ltd(e)f)Xg)t) Australia Burns Philp Australia Pty Ltd(a)(cXfXa)t) Australia
Regal Bakeries Py Ltd(s) Australla Burns Phllp Food Overseas Investments Pty Ltda}eXf@)t)  Australia
Rachna Pty Ltd(fi(e)( . Australia Empresa Brasileira de Fermentos Fleischmann Ltda(t) srazil
Sl.r?us Bfote:hnology international Pty Ltd() Aumalia gurns Philp Colombia SA{QY) Colombia
Sirius Biotechnology Pty Lde)t) Australia Burns Philp Ecuador SA{TYg)(1) Ecuador
Southern Border Bakeries Pty Lidi(t} Australia Burns Philp Guatemala SA(f)a)(Y) Guatemala
Stuart Bakery Pty Ltd(fKg)(t) Australia .

Sunicrust Bakeries Pty LidiM{g)(w) australia Goodman Finance Limited(f{gxt) New Zealand
The Untle Tobys Company Pty Ltd(@XD(g)1) Australia Burns Fhilp Peru SAC(TQ)Y) Peru
Undle Tobys Properties Pty Ltd(f)g)(t) Australia BPCUST Inc(fight) USA
Wakely Bros Pty Ltd(t) Australia Burns Phiip Capital (US) Inc{f)gXu- USA
wide Bay Bakerles Pty Ltd(t) Australia Greensted SA(FIGXY Uruguay
William Jackett & Son Pty Ltd(f{g)t) Australia Burns Philp Venezuela SAR(g)(1) Venezuela
Gaodman Fielder (Shanghal) Co Ltd{u) China

BURNS, PHILF & COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS CONTRQLLED ENTITIES
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(a)
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(d
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(e}

=

(g

A party to a Deed of Cross Guarantes with Burns, Philp & Company Limited dated 13 May 1992. Granted relief from spe‘cified
accounting requirements in accordance with ASIC Class Order 98/1418, Burns Philp Custodians Pty Limited is the Trustee

appointed under this Deed but is not granted relief from specified accounting requirernents in accordance with ASIC Class
Order 98/1418.

Entered into a Deed of Revocation with Burns, Philp & Company Limited dated 15 March 2002 whereby the Deed of Cross
Guarantee ceased 1o apply to such cornpany effective 6 October 2002.

Entered into a Deed of Assumption with Burns, Philp & Company Limited and Burns Philp Custodians Pty Limited dated
15 August 2002, whereby such company was joined as a party to the Deed of Cross Guarantee,

Entered into a Deed of Assumption with Burns, Philp & Company Limited and Burns Philp Custodians Pty Limited dated
13 June 2003, whereby such company was joined as a party 1o the Deed of Cross Guarantee,

Qn 8 August 2003 the status of the company changed fram public ta proprietary.

As part of the security arrangements enterad into with the Burns, Philp & Company Limited Group's financiers (refer note

14 for further details), such controlied entities entered into or acceded 1o & Deed of Guarantee and Indemnity whereby such
entities guaranteed payment of amounts owing under certain financing documents and in addition or, in ¢ertain circumstances,
alternatively, have executed certain securities to secure amounts owing under certain financing documents ({including thase facilities
the subject of the Senior Funding Agreement). There is also an indemnity in support of this guarantee. The Deed of Guarantee and
indemnity and the securities continue in place for the benefit of the financiers party to the Term A Loan Facility and the Term B
Loan Facility, netwithstanding the termination of the Senior Funding Agreement.

As part of the issue of the 8.75% Senior Subordinadted Notes, 10.75% Senior Subordinated Notes and 9.5% Senior Nates (refer
note 14 for further details), such controlled entities entered inta Indentures whergby the payment of principal and interest and
performance of all other obligations in respect of the 9.75% Senior Subordinated Notes, 10.75% Sanior Subordinated Notes and
9.5% Senior Notes, are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Burns, Philp & Company Limited and such controlled entities.

Consolidated entity’s interest in ordinary shares

2003 2002 200
% Y %
(h) 97 97 98
(i 51 51 51
)] 85 85 85
(k) [0 90 30
(5} 60 60 6Q
(m) 20 80 80
(n) 67 67 87
(o) 66 66 66
{p) 100 60 60
(a) 926 96 98
(n 100 100 -
(s) 100 97 96
() 100 - -
(u) 90 - -
(v) 9 - - )
(w) 98 - -
(x) 74 - -
v 89 - -
(2) 75 - -
(aa) 97 - -
(bb) Name changed during the year from Mauri Brasil Industria, Comercia E Importacao Ltda.
(ccy  Name changed since year end from Deutsche Hefewerke Verwaltungs GmbH.

[hoss
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 29. CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)
(dg) Voluntarily liquidated or struck off during the year. There was no profit or loss on the voluntary liquidation
or striking off of these entities.

{ee) Terminals Pty L1d, BST Auckland Ltd and Bulk Storage Terminals Ltd comprised the Australasian Terminals business which was
sold during the year resulting in & gain of A340.7 million being included in the current year's consolidated profit (refer notes
3(b) and 24 for further details).

()  Partnership dissolved during the year.
{gg) Merged into Burns Philp Inc. during the year.

NOTE 30. ACQUISITIONS OF BUSINESSES

(@) On 13 December 2002, the Group announced that it had acquired approximately 14.9% of the outstanding ordinary shares of
Goodman Fielder Limited (Goodman Fielder) for an aggregate purchase price of approximately A$325.6 million. On 3 January
2003, its wholly owned subsidiary, BPC1 Pty Limited made sn unsolicited offer for all of the remaining outstanding ordinary shares
of Goodman Fielder for cash, at 2 price of A$1.85 per share. On 12 February 2003, Goodman Figlder announced tc the Australian
Stock Exchange a dividend of A$0.035 per ordinary share held on the record date of 21 February 2003. On 19 February 2003,
Goodman Fielder announced to the Australian Stock Exchange a special dividend of A$0.20 per ordinary share held on the record
date of 7 March 2003, To reflect the value of the dividend and special dividend, the offer price was reduced to A$1.615 per share,
Cn 13 March 2003 the Graup increased the offer price to AS1.635 per ordinzry share of Goodman Fielder. The Goodman Figlder
board announced that it had recommended to its sharehalders that they accept our revised offer, and the offer was declared free
from conditions. On 19 March 2003, four Burns Philp nominegs were appointed as directors of Goodman Fielder, constituting a
majority of the Goodman Fielder board of directars, with Mr. Alan McGregor appointed as Chairman of the Goodman Fielder
board. The offer closed on 28 March 2003. On 4 April 2003, the Group informed Goodman Fielder's shareholders that it had
received sufficient acceptances of the offer to entitle it to compulsorily acquire all the outstanding Goodman Fielder shares that
it did not currently own and that it had commenced this compulsery acqulsition procedure, Under this procedure, the Group
acquired these remaining shares on 12 June 2003. On 27 May 2003, the Group informed Goodman Fielder aptionholders that
it was alse commencing the compuisory acquisition in refation to Goodman Fielder options and these were compulserily acquired
and cancelled on 8 July 2003,

The aggregate amount of the cost of the acquisition was approximately A$2.0 billien which included transaction costs of A$38.5
million. The results of the operations of Goodman Fielder and its controlled éntities have been consolidated from 19 March 2003,
being the date we gained effective control of Goodman Fielder. As at the acquisition date, a provision of A$15.3 million was
recognised for redundancy costs at Goodman Fielder head office,

On 31 October 2002, the Group acquired the Fleischmann Latin America yeast and bakery ingredients business with operations

in Brazil, Bolivia, Colombia, Costa Rica. Ecuador, €l Salvador, Gustemala, Honduras, Nicaragus, Peru, Venezuela and Uruguay. The
aggregate amount of the cast of the acquisition was A$211.7 million which included transaction costs of A$10.0 million.

(<]

NOTE 31. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE

Interest Rate Risk

The Group enters into interest rate swaps and forward rate agreements to rmanage cash flow risks associated with the interest
rates on borrowings that are floating.

Interest rate swap agreements

interest rate swaps allow the Group to swap floating rate borrowings into fixed rates. Maturities of swap cantracts are principally
between one and five years.

Each contract involves quarterly or seri annual payment or receipt of the net amount of interest, At 30 June 2003, the fixed rates
varied from 2.74% 10 7.15% (2002 - 4.01% 10 7.15%; 2001 ~ 3.85% to 7.15%) and the floating rates were 2t bank kill rates
plus a credit margin.

m BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND IT5 CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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interest rate risk exposure

BPC LID.

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate for classes of financial assets

and liabilities at 30 June is set out below,

Fixed Interest Maturing in

Over Non
1 year 1 year Mare than interest
AS million Floating or less 1o 5 years 5 years bearing Total
2003
financial assets .
Cash assets 180.5 - - - - 180.5
Receivables - - - - 3934 393.4
Cther financial assets 0.7 - - - 4.0 4.7
181.2 - - - 397.4 578.6
Weighted average interest rate 3.71%
Financial liabilities
Senior indebtedness 1,726.1 - - - - 1,726.1
Senior Notes - - - 149.9 - 149.9
Sepnior Subordinated Notes - - - 8994 ~ 899.4
New Zealand Subordinated Capital Notes - - - 185.7 ~ 185.7
Bank overdrafts and other indebtedness 17.7 7.1 6.7 - - 31.5
Payabies - - - - 505.9 505.9
Employee benefits - - - - 109.4 109.4
1.,743.8 7.1 6.7 1,235.0 615.3 3,607.9
Interest rate swaps (532.7) 157.3 375.4 - - -
Weighted average interest rate 6.84% 6.20% 5.18% 9.97%
Fixed Interest Maturing in
Over Non
1 year 1 year More than interest
AS million Floating or less to 5 years 5 years bearing Total
2002
Financial assets
Cash assets 923.6 - - - - 923.6
Receivables - - - - 162.2 162.2
Other financial assets 2.7 - - - 4.0 6.7
926.3 - - - 166.2 1,092.5
. Weighted average interest rate 1.97%
Financial liabilities
Senior indebtedness 756.5 - - - - 756.5
Debt Bonds - 174.8 - - - 174.8
Senior Subordinated Notes - - - 711.0 - 711.0
Bank overdrafts and other indebtedness 9.1 4.1 - - - 13,2
Payables - - - - 146.0 146.0
" Employee benefits - - - - 367 36.7
765.6 178.9 - 711.0 182.7 1,838.2
Interest rate swaps (392.2) 69.7 322.5 - - -~
weighted average interest rate 4.48% 8.52% 5.65% 9.75%

2003 ANNUAL REPORT B85
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Notes to the Financdial Statements (continued)

NOTE 31. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED)

Fixed Interest Maturing in

Quer Non
1 year 1 year More than interest

A$ million Floating or lass to § years 5 years bearing Total
2001
Financial assets
Cash assets 218.2 - - - - 218.2
-Receivables - - - - 234.8 234.8
Other financial assets - - - - 7.6 7.6

218.2 - - - 242.4 460.6
Weighted average interest rate 4.60%
Financial liabilities
Senior indebtedness 595.0 241.4 - - - 336.4
Deb1 Bonds - - 197.4 - - ©197.4
7.5% Notes - 260.9 5.3 - - 266.2
Bank overdrafts and other indebtedness 11.7 - - - - .7
Payables - - - - 174.7 174.7
Employee benefits - - - - 37.9 37.9

606.7 502.3 202.7 ' - 212.6 1,524.3
Interest rate swaps (504.4) $6.5 447 .9 . - - -
Weighted average interest rate 5.28% 7.47% 5.67%

Foreign Exchange Risk

Statement of financial position

The Group does not hedge its statement of financial position using derivative contracts.

Az part of the acquisition of Goodman Fielder. significant additional US dollar denominated borrowings were drawn down during the

current year. In accordance with note 1(c), an unrealised foreign axchange gain of A3133.1 milllon has been included in the
consclidated result for the year ended 3Q Juna 2003.

The Group is currently reviewing its foreign currency pasition,

Anticipated purchase and sale commitments

Foliowing the acquisition of Goodman Fielder, the Group now enters into forward forgign exchange contracts to reduce the exposure

to foreign currency movements in respect of a proportion of anticipated purchase and sale commitments denaminated in foreign

currencies.

The gross value to be received under foreign currency contracts and the weighted average ¢ontracted exchange rates of outstanding

contracts for the Group at 30 June is set out below,

Consolidated

2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001

Weighted average exchange rate AS$ million A$ milion A3 million

Sel} US dollars, buy Australian dollars 0.6042 - - 26.6 - -
Sell New Zealand dollars, buy US dollars a.5980 - - 22.2 - -
Sell Australian dollars, buy New Zealand dollars 1.1270 - - 20.9 - -

All these contracts mature by November 2004.

At 30 June 2003, the unreslised gain {or “mark to market”) on these contracts of A$2.4 million (2002 ~ Nil; 2001 - Nil) has been
included in the ¢urrent year's consolidated profit.

m BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED ANO (T5 CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Commodity Price Risk

Following the acguisition of Goodran Figlder, the Group now enters into commeadity contracts to buy specified amounts of wheat,
protein maals, oils and other grains at pre-determined purchase prices, The contracts are entered inte to caver the requirements of
commodities needed by certaln Goodman Fielder businesses. The procurement/pricing process has the objective of flattening the price
curve of commodity price movements. The Group generally covers 3 to 12 months forward requirements of these Goodman Fielder
businessaes, depending on market view.

At 30 June 2003, outstanding contracts have a face value of A$3.2 million (2002 — Nil; 2001 ~ Nif), with various maturities between
30 June 2003 and March 2004. The net gain deferred on commodity contracts at 30 June 2003 of A30.4 million (2002 — Nil; 2001
Nil), will be recognlised in the consolidated statement of financial performance by March 2004,

Credit Risk Exposure ‘

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties failed to perform as contracted.

Recognised financial instruments

The credit risk on financia! assets, excluding investments, of the consolidated entity which have been recognised on the statement
of financial pasition is the carrying amount, net of any provision for doubtful debts. The Group is not materially exposed to any
indlvidual customer.

Unrecagnised financlal instruments

The credit risk on unrecognised derivative contracts is minimised, a5 counterparties are recognised financial intermediaries with
acceptable credit ratings determinad by 2 recognised rating agency. Swap contracts are subject to credit risk in relation to the
relevant counterparties, which are all large banks. The credit risk on swap contracts is limited to the next amount to be received
from counterparties on contracts that are favourable 1o the Group, There was no accrued amount due to the Group at

30 June 2003 (2002 — Nil; 2007 — Nil).

Net Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Valuation approach

Net fair values of listed financial assets and liabilities are determined by reference to the market price of these instruments adjusted for
transaction casts negessary to realise the asset or settle the liability.

Recognised financial instruments

The carrying amounts and net fair values of financial assets and liabilities as at 30 June are as follows:

Consolidated

Carrying Amount Net fair value

AS million 2003 2002 2001 2002 2002 2001
Financial assets

Cash assets 180.5 923.6 218.2 180.5 923,86 218.2
Receivables 393.4 162.2 234.8 393.4 162.2 234.8
Other financial assets 4.7 6.7 786 4.7 6.7 7.6
Financial liabilities

Senior indebtedness 1,726.1 756.5 836.4 1,726.1 756.5 842.3
Senior Notes 149.9 - - 154.1 - -
Senior Subordinated Notes 899.4 711.0 - 887.1 711.0 -
New Zealand Subordinated Capital Notes 185.7 - - 185.7 - -
Bank overdrafts and other indebtedness 31.5 13.2 1.7 315 13.2 11.7
Debt Bonds - 174.8 187.4 - 174.8 178.9
7.5% Notes ' - - 266.2 - - 352.7
Payables 505.9 ' 146.0 174.7 505.9 146.0 174.7
Employee benefits 109.4 36.7 37.9 108.4 36.7 32.9
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 31. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED)

Unrecognised financial instruments
The net fair values of unrecognised financial instruments held as at 30 June are as follows:

Consolidated

A% million 2003 2002 2001
Interest rate swaps — unrealised (loss) (26.9) (17.0) (4.3)
Commodity contracts — unrealised gain 0.4 - -

The valuations of unrecognised financial instrurments detailed in this note reflect the estimated amounts which the Group expacts
10 pay or receive to terminate the contracts (net of transaction costs) or replace the contracts at their current market rates as at the
reporting date. This is based on independent market quotations and determined using standard valuation technigues.

The unrealised loss (or "mark to market”) on interest rate swaps of A$26.9 million (2002 A%17.0 million loss; 2001 ~ A34.3 million
loss) represents the difference between funding actions of the Group over time, compared to what could have been achieved if all the
funding was renegotiated at year end.

As interest rates are subject o volatility, the Group's economic position on hedging transactions can change substantially in line with
interest rate movements. As the Group enters into these transactions for hedging purposes and does not activaly trade in these

instruments, it is not appropriate to recognise the impact of marking to market the position existing at balance date in the
consolidated result.

NOTE 32. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

From 1 July 2003 1o 14 August 2003 when the 2003 Options expired, 251,082,230 2003 Options were exercised resulting in the
allotment of 251,082,230 ordinary shares {refer note 16 for further details).

No other events have occurred subsequent 1o balance date which would have a material effect on the financial report.

“ BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED AND 1TS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Directors’ Declaration

1.in the opinlon of the Directors of Burns, Philp & Company Limited (the Company):
(2) the financial staterments and notes, set cut on pages 27 1o 88, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and consolidated entity as at 30 June 2003 and
of their performance, as represented by the results of their operations and their cash flows, for the year ended on
that date; and

(i} complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able 1o pay its debts as and when they become
due and payable.

2. There are ressonable grounds to believe that the Company and the controlled entities identified in note 29 will be able to meet
any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become subject to by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee between the
Compary and those controlled entities pursuant ta ASIC Class Order 98/1418,

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

i f

Thomas | Degnan
Managing Director

Sydney, 12 September 2003
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Independent Audit Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF BURNS, PHILP & COMPANY LIMITED

Scope

We have sudited the financial report of Burns, Philp & Company Limited (the Company) for the financial year ended 30 June 2003,
consisting of the statements of financial performance, statements of financia! position, statements of cash flows, accompanying notes
1 to 32, and the directors’ declaration. The financial report includes the consolidated financial statements of the consolidated entity,
comptising the Company and the entities it controlled at the end of the year or from time 1o time during the financial year. The
Company's directors are responsible for the financial report. We have conducted an independent audit of this financial report

in order 10 express an opinion on it 1o the members of the Company,

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide reasonable assurance whether the
financial report is free of material misstatement. Our procedures included examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the
amounts and other disclosures in the financial report, and the evaluation of accounting policies and significant accounting estimates.
These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion whether, in alf material respects, the financial report is presented fairly
in accordance with Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia and statutory
requirements $0-as 10 present a view which is consistent with our understanding of the Company's and the cansofidated entity's
financial position, and performance as represented by the results of their operations and their cash flows.

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis.

Audit Opinion
In our opinion, the financial report of Burns, Philp & Company Limited is in accordance with:

{a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

{iy giving a true and fair view of the Company's and consclidated entity’s financial positién as at 30 June 2003 and
of their performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia.

Kpme- (AL

KPMG Alan Walsh
Partner

Sydney, 12 Septermber 2003
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Five Year Summary

Idoge

AS million unless indicated

2003 2002 2001 2000 19499
Statement of Financial Performance
Sales * 1,887.2 1.322.7 1,356.7 1,214.4 1,268.7
EBIT (before individually significant items) 227.0 2220 185.4 173.9 172.7
Individually significant items 112.7 (35.2) - 5.2 14,7
Total EBIT 339.7 186.8 185.4 179.1 187.4
Net interest expense (156.8) (65.9) (82.8) (81.0) (101.5)
Profit from ordinary activities
before tax and outside equity interests 182.9 1209 102.6 98.1 B85.9
fncome tax {expense) before individualiy
significant income tax item (13.0) (18.3) (12.1) (14.4) (18.3)
individually significant income tax benefit 4.4 47.9 - - -
Qutside equity interests (a.3) (3.3) (2.0 (1.5) (.7
Net profit attributable to Burns, Philp
& Company Limited shareholders 170.0 1486.2 88.5 82.2 65.9
Statement of Financial Position
Equity attributable to Burns, Philp
& Caompany Limited shareholders 732.8 460.8 252.7 111.0 14,6
Net debt 2,812.1 731.9 1,093.5 1,031.4 1,073.2
Total assets 4,604.1 2,364.5 1,860.8 1,696,7 1,417.9
Total tiabilities 3.845.8 1,885.0 1,582.8 1,467.1 1,384.3
Ordinary Share Information
Dividends per share Cents Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Number of shares issued Million 1.780.7 802.7 699.9 538.8 530.6
Number of shareholdars Thousand 285 26.7 24.3 239 234
Share price High $ 0.76 0.74 0.57 0.68 0.43
Low § 0.43 0.36 0.38 0.28 0.06
last § 0.75 0.65 0.48 0.42 0.29
Genetral
Net assets per share 3 0.28 0.28 0.38 0.21 0.03
Net debt to equity
{including cutside equity intarests) % 370.8 152.6 3935 795.8 3.194.0
Basic earnings per share Cents 14.4 17.3 13.6 15.4 12.4
Diluted earnings per share Cents 6.8 6.3 6.0 7.2 5.6
EBIT (before individually significant iterms) to sales % 12.0 16.8 13.7 14.3 13.8
EBIT (before individually significant items) to total assets % 4.8 9.4 10.0 10.8 12.2
EBITDA (before individually significant items) 335.3 254.5 261.8 244.8 243.6
Times interest cavered** ' Times 2.2 28 22 22 1.7
Number of employees Thousand 152 -—3B—— 38T a,1\ 4.2

* Comparalive figures have been adjusied to reflect a reciassification of certain marketing, selling and distribution expenses as detziled in note 1()

to the financlal statements.

** Times Interest covered is the number of times EBIT ¢overs nat interest expense,
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Directory

Corporate Head Office
Level 23

56 Pitt Street

Sydney NSW 2000
Australia

Telephone: +61 2 9258 1111
Facsimile: +61 2 9247 3272

Email: shareholder.enquiries@burnsphilp.com

Website:  www.burnsphilp.com

China East Asia Pacific
Head Office

75 Talavera Road

Macqguarie Park NSW 2113
Australia

Telephone: +61 2 8874 6800
facsimile: +61 2 8874 €998

Yeast/Bakery South & West Asia
Head Office

No 2 Ganapathy Colony

(Off Cenatoph I\ Lang)

Teynampet

Chennai {Madras) €00 018

India

Telephone: +91 44 2432 0321
Facsimile: +91 44 2432 0311

Yeast Latin America

Burns Philp Hispanoamérica

Head Office

Ave. del Libertador 602 - 23B
1001 Buenos Aires

Argentina

Telephane: 54 11 4814 0730
Facsimile: 54 11 4814 0789
Website:  www.burnsphilpla.com

Yeast Latin America

Burns Philp Brazil

Head Office

Rua Cardeal Arcoverde, 1641-12" Andar
CEP 05407-002 Sao Paulo

Brazil

Telephone: +55 11 3038 1802
Facsimile: +55 11 3038 1822
Websites: www.mauri.com.br

www . falecomfleischmann.com.br

BPC LTD.

Yeast Noarth America

Head Office

240 Larkin Willlams Industrial Court
Fenton MO 63026

usa

Telephone: +1 636 349 8300
Facsimile: +1 636 349 8B25
Website;  wwww.breadworld.com

Yeast Europe and Extracts Worldwide
Head Office

22 Priory Hall

stillorgan

Co Dublin

Ireland

Telephone: +353 1 283 6913

Facsimile: +353 1 283 4997

Emnail: john.lynch@bpyeast.com
Website:  www.ohly.de

Tone Brothers, Inc.

Head Office

2301 S.E. Tone's Drive
Ankeny |A 50021 8888
USA

Telephong: +1 515 965 2711
Facsimile: +1 515 965 2801
Website; www.tones.com

Goodman Fielder Pty Limited

Head Office

75 Talavera Road

Macquarie Park NSW 2113

Australia

Telephone: +61 2 8874 6000

Facsimile: +81 2 8874 6099

Website:  www.goodmanfielder.com.au

Design and Production: DownerMancini|design
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